
 

 
13 May 2013 Agenda 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Meeting 
Monday 13 May 2013, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
     

Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 
 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 
Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Vernon L. Brown 
Councilmember George M. Daye 

 
City Officials 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 
 

In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 
 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance and 
operations of the City. 
 



 

 
13 May 2013 Agenda 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
 
V.  ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a) 22 April Short Regular Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1] 
b) 22 April Work Session 

 
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the Council 
must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  The 
sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident, and identify the Agenda Item 
about which you wish to speak on the sign-up sheet.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3  
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-37, 1) Authorizing the Submission of the FY14 

BJA Bulletproof Vest Grant Application & 2) NCLM Risk Management Service 
Reimbursement Funding for the Police Department.  (CAF 13-50)  [See Notebook Tab 2] 

 
 Resolution 13-37 

 
  b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-25. FY13, Budget Amendment #30, Authorizing 

an Additional Assessment of $21,362 for FY12-13 to Kerr-Tar Regional Council of 
Governments for Payment of Funds Owed to the Revolving Loan Funds. (CAF 13-52) [See 
Notebook Tab 3] 

 
 Ordinance 13-25 

 
  c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-38, Authorizing the Dedication and Acceptance 

of Vance Granville Community College Water Main Extension.  (CAF 13-51)  See Notebook 
Tab 4] 

 
 Resolution 13-38 

 
 d) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-34, Approval of Sole Source for New Radio 

Read Water Meter Purchases and to Purchase the Meters from HD Supply Waterworks, 
LTD; and Authorizing the Mayor to Sign the Promissory Note for the Loan for Project #H-
LRX-F-11-1693 for the Purchase of Radio Read Water Meters; and 2) Ordinance 13-24, 
FY13, Budget Amendment #29, Amending the Budget for Above Mentioned Project.  (CAF 
13-48)  [See Notebook Tab 5] 

 
 Resolution 13-34 
 Ordinance 13-24 



 

 
13 May 2013 Agenda 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 e) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-35, Authorizing the Execution of a Contract 

with McGill Associates, P.A. for the Completion of an Engineering Report for the Elmwood 
Cemetery Outfall Project; and 2) Ordinance 13-23, FY13, Budget Amendment #31, 
Establishing a CIP Project Budget for the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project. (CAF 13-49) 
[See Notebook Tab 6] 

 
 Resolution 13-35 
 Ordinance 13-23 

 
  f)  Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-40, Authorizing Vance County to Extend 2,500 

Linear Feet of Waterlines into Warren County.  (CAF 13-58)  [See Notebook Tab 7] 
  

 Resolution 13-40 
 
  g) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-39, Authorizing an Agreement Between the 

Embassy Cultural Center Foundation and the City of Henderson. (CAF 13-57) [See Notebook 
Tab 8] 

 
 Resolution 13-39 

   
 h) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-32, Amending Separate Contracts Between the 

City and Cordell’s Lawn Care, Inc. and Perks Lawn Care, LLC to Include Additional 
Landscaping Services. (CAF 13-46) [See Notebook Tab 9] 

 
 Resolution 13-32 

 
  i)  Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-41, Award of FY13, Audit Contract Between the 

City of Henderson and William L. Stark and Company.  (CAF 13-60) [See Notebook Tab 10] 
 

 Resolution 13-41 
  
IX. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda have either been previously discussed by City 
Council during a previous meeting and/or are considered in the ordinary course of business by 
the City Council and will be enacted-on by one motion and a roll call vote in the form listed.  If 
discussion is desired by either the Council or the Audience, the item in question will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately after the revised consent agenda has been 
approved.  

 
 a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-14, Updating the Sewer Use Ordinance, Chapter 

15. (CAF 13-23) [See Notebook Tab 11] 
 

 Ordinance 13-14 



 

 
13 May 2013 Agenda 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
 b) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-29, Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside Watering 

of Lawns, Plants, and Vegetation from June 1, 2013 through October 31, 2013. (CAF 13-37)  
[See Notebook Tab 12] 

 
 Resolution 13-29 
 

c) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-21, FY13, Budget Amendment #32, Amending 
and/or Closing Out the Following Grants: Fund 55-201: Fire FM Global Grant; Fund 55-203: 
BJA Bulletproof Vests Grant; and Fund 55-302: Orange Breckenridge Redevelopment Grant. 
(CAF 13-42)  [See Notebook Tab 13] 

 
 Ordinance 13-21 

 
 d) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-26, FY13, Budget Amendment #31, Amending 

the General Fund and Water Fund.   (CAF 13-53)  [See Notebook Tab 14] 
 

 Ordinance 13-26 
 
 e) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-18, FY13, Budget Amendment #33, Amending 

Fund 510: Police Department and Fund 530: Fire Department of the General Fund. (CAF 
13-54)  [See Notebook Tab 15] 

 
 Ordinance 13-18 

 
 f) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-28, FY13, Budget Amendment #34, 

Authorizing an Additional Appropriation of $25,000 to the Departmental Budget for the 
City Attorney.  (CAF 13-56)  [See Notebook Tab 16] 

 
 Ordinance 13-28 

 
 g) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-27, FY13 Budget Amendment #36, Closing Out 

the Water Main Replacement/Relocation of the Red Bud Creek Bridge Project Fund 43-848; 
and Amending Capital Reserve Utilities Fund 70.  (CAF 13-55)  [See Notebook Tab 17] 

 
 Ordinance 13-27 

 
  h) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-29, FY13, Budget Amendment #37, Amending 

the General Fund – Recreation Department Budget. (CAF 13-59)  [See Notebook Tab 18] 
 

 Ordinance 13-29 
 
 i)  Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month 

of March 2013.  (CAF 13-20)  [See Notebook Tab 19] 
 
X. WORK SESSION 
 
 a) Quality Inn Presentation [See Notebook Tab 20] 



 

 
13 May 2013 Agenda 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
XI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the Council 
must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  The sign-in 
form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the podium, state your 
name, address and if you are a city resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are 
provided below.3 

 
XII REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
b) City Manager  

i. Declaration of Surplus Property [See Notebook Tab 21] 
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Calendar Update [See Notebook Tab 22] 
ii. Various Departmental Reports 

a) Henderson Fire Department 
b) Henderson-Vance County 911 

 
XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

a) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(6) regarding a Personnel Matter. 
  
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern 
to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three 
minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public 
hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, 
be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be 
directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public 
comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 22 April 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 8 

 City Council Minutes - DRAFT 
Short Regular Meeting 

22 April 2013 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Vernon 
L. Brown and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Recreation and Parks Director Alan Gill, Youth Services 
Director Donna Stearns, Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom Spain and Code 
Compliance Director Corey Williams. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 22 April 2013 Short Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:01 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Brenda Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in a prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   
 
Mayor O’Geary was delighted to have the Leadership Vance Class in attendance and welcomed 
everyone to the meeting. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 22 April 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 8 

ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  City Clerk McCrackin said 
there was one item to be added to the agenda:  Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-36, A 
Resolution of the Henderson City Council Approving the Acceptance of State Revolving Fund 
(SRT) Grant/Loan Funding for the Sandy Creek Pump Station Project No. CS370410-07.  
Council Member Coffey asked for a Closed Session regarding a personnel matter.  Council 
Member Rainey moved to accept the adjusted Agenda.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Inscoe and unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  Council Member 
Daeke moved the approval of the 8 April 2013 minutes as presented.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Daye and unanimously approved. 
 
PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked the Leadership Vance Class of 2013 to stand while he welcomed them.  
He then asked Henderson-Vance County Chamber of Commerce Director John Barnes to come 
forward.  The Mayor read a proclamation declaring 22 April 2013 as Ambassador’s Day and 
welcomed all the Ambassadors present.   
 
The Mayor explained 21-27 April 2013 is National Volunteer Week and thanked all those who 
volunteer on City boards and commissions.  A copy of an official recognition was sent to the 
over 50 City volunteers and copies were distributed to Council. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to 
Council on agenda matters.   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Carey Chapel Crossing Project Update. (Reference:  None) 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked Mr. Dennis Tharrington to come forward and update Council.  Mr. 
Tharrington said after he spoke to Council on the 8 April meeting, he wanted to clarify some of 
his statements regarding Section 8 rental assistance. He said it is true Section 8 funding cannot 
be used to make mortgage payments but his project will be rental property and anyone who has a 
Section 8 voucher can go to any apartment complex, including his, and if they qualify, then the 
landlord is obligated to accept the voucher.  So Mr. Tharrington said if someone came to him and 
qualified with a Section 8 voucher, then, by law, he would be obligated to rent to them.  If 
someone qualified with a Section 8 voucher, they could not use those funds to purchase the 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 22 April 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 8 

property.  He said his goal is to recruit families to purchase the homes rather than courting 
Section 8 people to live in the homes. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked for confirmation that Section 8 vouchers do not count toward 
equity in the homes Mr. Tharrington plans to build.  Mr. Tharrington said that is correct.  He then 
shared there was an individual in the first phase of Carey Chapel Crossing that received some 
type of Section 8 assistance that could not be used to purchase the house.  Mr. Daeke said he 
understood part of the incentive with this program is for people to rent to obtain equity to 
purchase but if someone came with Section 8 assistance, Mr. Tharrington would be bound to let 
them rent.  Mr. Tharrington agreed. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked what happens after 15 years as Section 8 renters when the whole 
purpose is to build equity in the house to be able to get a loan to purchase the house.  She asked 
for clarification that after 15 years, they will still be a renter, as opposed to a home owner unless 
on their own they can come up with a big down payment --- that they would not be building 
equity using Section 8.  Mr. Tharrington agreed that no equity would be built using Section 8.  
He felt the ordinary Section 8 recipient would have a hard time coming up with the funds on 
their own for home ownership. Ms. Coffey then asked how this project is different than what 
already exits.  Mr. Tharrington agreed that this project would be rental property for a period of 
time and said the difference is at the end of that period of time, the people living there would 
become homeowners.  He said when people move in, even with Section 8, they will have to go 
through home ownership training and will be in a purchase mode so Mr. Tharrington said most 
Section 8 individuals would not be interested and qualify for his project. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked if Mr. Tharrington was considering applying for Section 8 
assistance to support the project.  Mr. Tharrington said no. Mr. Kearney said he has limited 
knowledge of the program but thought they would be cutting back and it will be harder to obtain 
Section 8 certificates.  Mr. Kearney confirmed the project will be composed of single family 
homes which does not lend itself to traditional Section 8 housing.  Mr. Tharrington agreed. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked if someone qualified for one of the homes, can they then apply 
for and receive Section 8 assistance.  He said he is not opposed to housing but felt there was no 
need for more Section 8 units.  Mr. Tharrington said to qualify one would have to have income in 
addition to Section 8 assistance. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked how many units would be inside City limits.  Mr. Tharrington 
said he did not know how many units would be inside the City but he would request the entire 
project be inside the City.  Mr. Inscoe said currently the City has no authority in the ETJ except 
for zoning.  Mr. Inscoe asked if Mr. Tharrington was considering voluntary annexation.  Mr. 
Tharrington said yes.  Mr. Inscoe said he was thinking out loud, but was not sure the City could 
or would want to take on this voluntary annexation at this time due to the goods and services the 
City would be required to provide according to the new State laws.   City Attorney Zollicoffer, 
Jr., said the new annexation laws are more restricting; thus making annexation for cities more 
difficult. Mr. Inscoe also asked if he understood correctly that a management company would 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 22 April 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 8 

take over once the project is complete.  Mr. Tharrington said yes, they would keep the grounds 
up.  Mr. Inscoe’s follow-up question was who would have ownership.  Mr. Tharrington said 
ownership would be with whoever purchased the tax credits.  He said he would retain 1% 
ownership until the tax credits expired.  Mr. Inscoe next asked if having the Mayor write a letter 
of support creates any legal problems with other projects.  
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr., said it could set a precedent but did not feel it would be a legal 
issue. 
 
Council Member Rainey felt the Council had the option to endorse only those projects they 
approved.   
 
Council Member Kearney asked to clarify the Section 8 premise, which he understood to be 
based on 30% of an individual’s household income being able to support the housing costs.  Mr. 
Tharrington said that is correct. 
 
Council Member Brown verified that Section 8 assistance cannot be used to make mortgage 
payments and felt perhaps understanding the home ownership program would provide incentive 
for Section 8 recipients to look for ways to make payments to make the mortgage payment so 
they could become homeowners.  Mr. Tharrington said that is correct; however, it might be 
possible for an individual to have enough income to make the mortgage payment on their own 
and still received some Section 8 assistance. 
 
Council Member Daeke said, as a follow up to Mr. Inscoe’s comments, that the Planning Board 
recently approved by special permit, a development within city limits of townhouses on Andrews 
Avenue.  Mr. Daeke felt they are probably trying to obtain the same type of tax credits as Mr. 
Tharrington.  Mr. Tharrington said the difference is the townhouses will always be rentals where 
his project will be home owners. 
 
Council Member Inscoe said only a portion of this project will be within city limits unless the 
City chose to move forward with an annexation and current taxes paid per unit do not cover the 
cost of police, fire and sanitation and expressed concern that this project is a long way from the 
nearest fire station.  On the other hand, the homes in the project outside the city pay 2.5 times in-
city for water and sewer which would provide more revenue. 
 
City Manager Griffin said Council previously authorized a letter of support be written by the 
Mayor O’Geary and said Council now needs to verify that authorization.   
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for the consent of Council which was unanimous as follows:  YES: 
Kearney, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown and Daye.  NO: Coffey. ABSTAIN:  
None.  ABSENT:  None. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 22 April 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 8 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Demolition of the Abandoned Structure Located at 207 Andrews Avenue (West).  
(Reference: CAF 13-43; Ordinance 13-22) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Code Compliance Director Corey Williams to come to the podium to 
advise Council on this matter.  Mr. Williams said the property is owned by Mr. Matt Russell and 
after following proper enforcement procedures is recommending this action.  He added 
additional information was received today during a telephone conversation with Mr. Russell who 
does not disagree with the need to demolish the structure but feels he can have the work done for 
less than the City.  His goal is to demolish the structure himself. 
 
Council Member Kearney inquired about the structure next door to this property that is for sale. 
He stated one individual had lost three tenants due to the condition of these structures.   Mr. 
Williams said the property for sale is not owned by Mr. Russell. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked about the timeframe for demolition.  Mr. Williams said there is a 
thirty (30) day appeal time.  Mr. Rainey asked if there would be any ramifications if Mr. Russell 
chose to demolish the structure during the appeal time.  Mr. Williams responded not that he was 
aware of at this time. 
 
There were no further questions.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Daeke to approve Ordinance 13-22, Demolition of the 
Abandoned Structure located at 207 Andrews Avenue (West).  Motion seconded by Council 
Member Kearney and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, 
Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown and Daye.  NO: None. ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT:  
None.  (See Ordinance Book 8, p 563) 
 
Amending the FY 13-14 Budget Review Calendar and Schedule of Special Council Budget 
Work Sessions.  (Reference:  CAF 13-47; Resolution 13-33) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Council to change the Budget Work Session dates previously 
approved as more time is needed to prepare the FY 13-14 Budget. 
 
Council Member Inscoe stated he had a conflict on the 4 June and 6 June and asked if it would 
be possible to move the dates to the week prior to review regional water and perhaps another 
segment of the budget. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked when the budget process needed to complete.  Mr. Griffin 
responded by the 24th of June.  City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr., said a special meeting could be 
scheduled prior to June 30 which is the deadline.   
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 22 April 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 6 of 8 

Council Member Kearney asked if the delay is being caused by something unusual.  Mr. Griffin 
said it was a combination of being out of town and being ill for a week, along with lack of 
staffing.   
 
City Manager Griffin said he will do his very best and suggested holding a special meeting on 
Monday 20 May for the proposed budget presentation.   
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if this date was agreeable with everyone and there was no disagreement. 
 
Mr. Griffin then suggested Work Sessions be scheduled for 23 May, 28 May and 30 May and the 
work sessions of 3 June, 4 June and 6 June as needed.  Mayor O’Geary asked if this was 
agreeable and again, there was no disagreement. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of Resolution 13-33, Amending the FY 13-
14 Budget Review Calendar and Schedule of Special Council Budget Work Sessions with the 
date changes discussed. Motion seconded by Council Member Daye and APPROVED by the 
following vote:  YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye and Kearney.  
NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 3, p 167) 
 
Approving Acceptance of State Revolving Fund (SRF) Grant/Loan Funding for the Sandy 
Creek Pump Station Project No. CS370410-07. (Reference: No CAF; Resolution 13-36) 
 
City Manager Griffin said this loan/grant arrived late this afternoon and is a technical revision to 
the original loan agreement.  He said there are no changes in the $900,000 principal forgiveness 
and $900,000 loan amount. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked for a reminder regarding the interest on this project. Assistant City 
Manager Frank Frazier said the interest is 0%. 
 
There was no further discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the consensus and approval of 
Council as follows:  YES:  Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney and 
Coffey. NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk McCrackin advised two citizens wished to address City Council.  
 
 Mr. Elbert Ouzts, 421 Fields Avenue  Mr. Ouzts expressed concern regarding the 
derelict homes in his area, many within 1,000 yards of the L.B. Yancy school.  He felt there were 
code violations and were endangering children.  He said this area is in the ETJ but wondered 
what laws govern the school zone, what can be done.  He asked if the taxes were being paid on 
these derelict properties. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 22 April 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 7 of 8 

 
Mayor O’Geary thanked Mr. Ouzts for bringing this before Council and asked the City Manager 
to have staff look into the situation.  Mr. Griffin said he would follow up on this with staff. 
 
 Ms. Geraldine Champion, 325 Charles Street  Ms. Champion expressed her concern 
regarding the Police Department.  She said as an employee if she had as many complaints filed 
against her as the Police Department has against them, she would have been fired.  Ms. 
Champion said her niece has a nine (9) year old child who is being stalked by a predator and that 
a warrant was taken out on her behalf.  She said they have gone to the court house, the City 
Manager, the police department and people in authority have not stayed in contact. Ms. 
Champion understands the Council has no jurisdiction over court cases but she felt the Police 
Chief was unapproachable and asked the City Manager, Mayor and Council to step forward and 
have the Chief of Police do as he should by giving the courtesy of returning calls.  She felt it was 
unacceptable to have to talk with a Captain or Lieutenant.  She asked the City Manager to call 
her within 48 hours so she can know what can be done.   
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr., said her concerns were shared but there are statutory provisions 
that govern actions regarding personnel issues.   
   
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem (No Report)  
 

b) City Manager – Mr. Griffin gave an update regarding Council Member Rainey request to 
look into closing basketball courts near churches during worship hours.  An existing 
ordinance was found by City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. which restricts use of basketball 
courts within 500 feet of churches during worship, revivals or special events.  Mr. Griffin 
asked Parks and Recreation Director Alan Gill to begin enforcing the ordinance and also 
mentioned churches should inform the City when they have special events. 
 

Council Member Rainey thanked the Manager for the follow up and suggested signage be placed 
at basketball courts within the 500 feet of churches. 
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr., suggested churches should also be notified of this ordinance. 
 

c) City Attorney – (No Report) 
 

d) City Clerk – Ms. McCrackin reminded Council of the Day of Prayer breakfast 2 May and 
also the Prayer service at City Hall at noon.  She also reminded Council of the Ethics 
Class webinar on May 15. 

 
Council Member Coffey thanked those who attended the Prayer Walk on Saturday and said over 
300 participated. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 22 April 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 8 of 8 

Mayor O’Geary said the Litter Sweep was successful and thanked those who took part. 
 

Mayor O’Geary then asked if Council was prepared to go into Closed Session and stated there 
would be no report following the session. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Council Member Daeke moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(5) for a Personnel Matter. Motion seconded by Council Member Daye and 
unanimously approved.  
 
Council Member Rainey moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Kearney and unanimously approved.   
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to adjourn and move into the Work Session. 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7:38 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 
 

 



 

Minute Book 42 
22 April 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 1 of 3 
 

City Council Minutes--DRAFT 
Work Session 
22 April 2013  

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry Daeke, Vernon L. 
Brown and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Clerk Esther McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, 
Youth Services Director Donna Stearns, Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom 
Spain and Recreation and Parks Director Alan Gill.  
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 22 April 2013 Work Session of the Henderson City Council was called to order by Mayor 
James D. O’Geary at 7:38 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  City Clerk McCrackin said 
the Quality Inn representatives were unable to attend due to a family emergency and will be 
rescheduled.  It was the consensus of Council to approve the Agenda as adjusted. 
 



 

Minute Book 42 
22 April 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 2 of 3 
 

WORK SESSION ITEMS 
 
Henderson-Vance Parks & recreation Department Master Plan Proposal Presentation.  
(Reference:  None) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Mr. Randy Oxendine, Chairperson of the Parks & Recreation 
Commission to come forward.  Mr. Oxendine shared a PowerPoint presentation.  He expressed 
the importance of grant funding and said the dollar amounts suggested for the master plan came 
from conversations with other municipalities of like size.  Mr. Oxendine has made the same 
presentation to the County and asked Council to consider the plan  which sets the goals for 
coming years. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked what the $40,000 covers.  Mr. Oxendine said they would like to 
begin with a public survey/analytical report. He said they want the plan to be  proactive.   
 
City Manager Griffin asked if the plan included facilities.  Mr. Oxendine said yes and stressed 
the need for upkeep of existing structures along with new facilities. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked if there was potential for private funding.  Mr. Oxendine said at 
this point, private funding is unknown. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked for verification of the City/County agreement.  City Manager 
Griffin said it is currently 55/45 City/County for operations and 50/50 for Capital Improvements. 
 
Mr. Griffin went on to say in the past, the County has honored whatever budget Council 
approves. 
 
There was no further discussion and this item will be considered during the FY 13-14 budget 
process.  
 
Updating the Sewer Use Ordinance, Chapter 15.  (Reference:  CAF 13-36; Ordinance 13-14) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Tom Spain to come forward.  
Mr. Spain said basically this update makes hazy areas specific. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the changes coincide with State requirements.  Mr. Spain said 
yes.  
 
Council Member Daeke asked if the City is able to meet the required changes.  Mr. Spain said 
yes. 
 
Mr. Spain also said he will ensure all business and industrial customers are aware of the changes. 
 
There was no further discussion.  It was the consensus of Council to bring this item forward to 
the next Council meeting. 
 



 

Minute Book 42 
22 April 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 3 of 3 
 

OTHER INFORMATION 
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Kearney  
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



CAF 13-50: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

26 April 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-50 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-37, 1) Authorizing the Submission of the FY14 
BJA Bulletproof Vest Grant Application and 2) NCLM Risk Management Service 
Reimbursement Funding for the Police Department  
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 2: Reduce Crime: To reduce crime and provide for a safe community 
 KSO 8: Financial Resourcing: To provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and capital outlay 

necessary to meet the needs of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory authorities 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 13-37, 1) Authorizing the Submission of the FY14 BJA Bulletproof Vest 

Grant Application and 2) NCLM Risk Management Service Reimbursement Funding for the Police 
Department. 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
The BJA Bulletproof Vest Grant, if awarded, would provide reimbursement for 50% of all expenditures 
(including shipping and handling) for the purchase of law enforcement body armor and body armor 
carriers.  Total project cost is $10,575.  If all estimated vests are purchased the City will be requesting the 
maximum amount available which is $5,287.50.  This grant, if awarded, will take effect 1 October 2013 
and will cover vests purchased after 1 April 2013.   
 
We are also requesting to submit reimbursement funding requests to the NC League of Municipalities 
Risk Management Service in the coming fiscal year for reimbursement of 50% of up to ten (10) vests 
(costing $7000) for the amount of maximum amount allowable under the NCLM grant of $2500. 
 
Enclosures:    

1. Resolution 13-37 
2. Internal Process Form 
3. Grant Application 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 May 13 Reg. Meeting   
 



CAF 13-50: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 6 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
13-37 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN 

APPLICATION TO THE BUREAU OF JUSTICE ASSISTANCE OFFICE  
FOR THE FY14 BULLETPROOF VEST PROGRAM GRANT 

AND NCLM RISK MANAGEMENT GRANT FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 

2013 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 

2: To Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community, and KSO 8:  To Provide 
Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the 
Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department is seeking approval to apply for a grant to assist 

in the purchase of bullet proof vests; and 
 
WHEREAS, the grant application is seeking $5,287.50 in federal funds from the BJAto provide 

for 50% reimbursement of all expenditures for the purchase of law enforcement body 
armor and body armor carriers; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department is also seeking approval to submit a request for 

reimbursement funding from the NC League of Municipalities Risk Management 
Division for the purchase of Ballistic Vests for sworn officers in the 2013-2014 fiscal 
year for the maximum amount allowable under the NCLM grant of $2500. 

  
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE the City Manager to file the grant application to the Bureau 
of Justice Assistance Office and NCLM Risk Management Grant as outlined above. 

 
The foregoing Resolution, introduced by Councilmember ********** and seconded by 
Councilmember ******* on this the **** day of ********* 2013 and having been submitted to 
a roll call vote, was approved by the following votes: Yes:  No:  Absent:  Abstain: 

 
___________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCracken, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



CAF 13-50: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 

CITY OF HENDERSON 
 

INTERNAL PROCESS TO DECIDE WHETHER  
GRANT APPLICATION IS APPROPRIATE 

 
 

Department: Police  Staff Contact: Captain P.L. Twisdale 
 
Funding Sources:  
 
Bureau of Justice Assistance Bullet-Proof Vest Program FY 2014 
NC League of Municipalities Bullet-Proof Vest Program FY 2014 
 
Grant/Project Name: Bulletproof Vest Program Grant 2013-2014 
 
Date Application Due:  May 8, 2013 
 
This is a X NEW or   RECURRING Grant. 
 
Brief Project Summary: 
 
This grant is an application to renew the Henderson Police Department’s participation in 
the Department of Justice’s Bureau of Justice Assistance Bullet-Proof Vest grant 
program.  
 
We are also requesting in advance to apply for reimbursement grant funding from the 
NC League of Municipalities Risk Management Division for the purchase of Ballistic 
Vests for sworn officers in the 2013-2014 fiscal year.  
 
The League Grant is on an “as-purchased” basis and will reimburse 50% of the expense 
for purchasing personal body armor for sworn law enforcement officers up to ten (10) 
vests in a fiscal year. The information from the application for the BJA JAG Bullet-Proof 
Vest Program is also included.  
 
We are estimating that in FY 2013-2014 there will possibly be up to 15 needed vest 
purchases for sworn officers. 
 

 Seven (7) ballistic vests purchased as replacement vests for old vests issued to 
current officers that have exceeded the warranty period of five (5) years from the 
date of manufacture.  

 Five (5) new vests in the upcoming fiscal year for new officers. This includes one 
(1) officer currently being hired at the end of the current fiscal year; replacement 
hires for two (2) officers who are intending to retire in the 2013-2014 fiscal year 
and two (2) unplanned vacancies.  



CAF 13-50: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 Three (3) new vests in the next fiscal year due to either vest problems or weight 
loss by an officer currently issued a vest.  
 

The cost per vest unit is $700 plus $5.00 shipping and handling.  The estimated cost for 
fifteen (15) vests is $10,575.00. The BJA Program will reimburse the department for 
50% of the cost of personal ballistic armor for sworn officers.  
 
We are requesting to submit the application for the BJA JAG Bullet-Proof Grant 
Program for the amount of $10,575 with the reimbursement amount of $5,287.50  
 
We are also requesting to submit reimbursement requests to the NC League of 
Municipalities Risk Management Service in the coming fiscal year for reimbursement of 
50% of up to ten (10) vests (costing $7000) for the amount of maximum amount 
allowable under the NCLM grant of $2500. 
 
PLEASE NOTE: These grants do not cover the cost of tactical exterior body armor such as 
that worn by SWAT Team Members.  
 
Maximum amount available from Funding Sources:  
 
BJA Bullet-Proof Vest Program   $5,287.50 
NCLM Bullet-Proof Vest Program  $2,500.00 
 
Total      $7,787.50 
 
 
Anticipated Award Notification Date:  07/01/2013 
 
Anticipated Grant Term:  Start Date: 09/01/2013 
    Finish Date:  06/01/2014 
 
Amount to be requested:  $7,787.50 
 
Does the amount of the match requirement or other grant requirements 
necessitate City Council approval prior to the award?    Yes   No X 
 
Eligible types of match: Any funding OTHER THAN BJA JAG funding may be used 
as match funding.   
 
If the match is cash, where will the match come from? (Provide Account Number) 
 
The match will be budgeted in the Body Armor line item.  
 
Is this project a cash award or reimbursement (or drawdown)? 
 



CAF 13-50: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 6 

 

This project would be a reimbursement of funds expended by the Police Department 
from our Body Armor line item.  
 
If this is a reimbursement grant, will funds be available?  Yes 
 
Is this project included in? 
 
  Departmental Budget  No 
  Capital Improvements Plan No 
 
No. This grant was not announced until after the department had submitted its budget 
request for the FY 2013-2014 fiscal year.  
 
Grant funds will be used for the following: 
 
 Funds will be used to reimburse the City of the cost of purchasing new Ballistic 
Armor for sworn law enforcement officer.  
 
How will the program be funded after the grant expires?  
 
 There is no recurring cost for the body armor for five (5) years until replacement 
is recommended and the warranty expires.   
 
If the department receives only a portion of the amount requested, how will the 
project be funded? 
 
The grant application is requesting the full amount for this project. 
 
Some additional questions to consider: 
 
Are any other departments within the City of Henderson eligible for this funding? 
 
No.  
 
Are any other departments within the City of Henderson willing to collaborate on 
this project?  
 
This is a law enforcement project only.  
 
Will this project duplicate or compete with another service or program provided 
by the City of Henderson or other local agency?  
 
No, this is a law enforcement only grant. 



CAF 13-50: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 



CAF 13-52:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 9 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

24 April 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 13-52 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-25, FY13 Budget Amendment #30, 
Authorizing an Additional Assessment of $21,362 for FY 12-13, to Kerr-Tar 
Regional Council of Governments for Payment of Funds Owed to the Revolving 
Loan Funds. 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation:   

 
 Approval of Ordinance 13-25, FY13 Budget Amendment #30, Authorizing an Additional 

Assessment of $21,362 for FY 12-13, to Kerr-Tar Regional Council of Governments for 
Payment of Funds Owed to the Revolving Loan Funds. 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
An e-mail was received from the Kerr-Tar Council of Government (KTRCOG) on 24 April 13 , 
followed by a letter dated April 26, 2013 requesting an additional $21,362 as Henderson’s 
portion of funds owed to the Revolving Loan Funds which need to be paid in full immediately.  
According to the information supplied to the City, certain budgeted receivables were 
uncollectable which led to inappropriate and inadvertent use of restricted funds which ultimately 
created this shortage.  
 
 
Enclosure: 
 

1. Ordinance 13-25 
2. Letter from KTRCOG 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 May 13 Reg.  Meeting 



CAF 13-52:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 9 

 

O R D I N A N C E  13-25 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2012 -- 2013 BUDGET 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #30 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 14 June 2012, adopted its 

FY 12-13 Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating budget from time-to-time, said amendment incorporated in this Ordinance; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

  -$             -$               -$             -$             
-$             -$               -$             -$             

Total -$             -$               -$             -$             
-$             

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Governing Body Dues & Subscriptions 10-410-505300 22,000$        20,690$         21,362$        42,052$        
Hend-Vance DDC Grant Match Funds 10-496-509901 50,000$        50,000$         (21,362)$       28,638$        

Total 72,000$        70,690$         -$             70,690$        
70,690$        

variance -$             

Fund: 10: General

Notes:

EXPENDITURES

REVENUES

Ordinance 13-25
FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #30

CAF 13-52; Ordinance 13-25; BA #30; 
13-May-2013

This budget amendment serves to amend the dues & subscriptions budget for 
the Governing Body Department.  The current budget of $22,000 is being 
amended as a result of a request from the Kerr-Tar Regional Council of 
Governments (COG) for additional funding totalling $21,362.  The Economic 
Development Administration has notified  the COG that funds owed to its 
Revolving Loan Fund are to be paid back immediately due to restricted funds 
being used inappropriately.  The COG has issued a special assessment to its 
member governments to fully fund the $310,107.30 required to replenish the 
Revolving Loan Fund.  The City's portion of that assessment is $21,362.  These 
funds are being re-allocated from the $50,000 Grant Match Funds initially  
appropriated as part of the Henderson-Vance Downtown Development 
Commission budget.

Reference:

 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-52:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 9 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-25 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 13 day of May 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 13-52 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-25 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 13 May 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of May 2013. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

  



CAF 13-52:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 9 

 

 

CAF 13-52 
Attachment #2 



CAF 13-52:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 9 

 

 

 



CAF 13-52:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 9 

 

 



CAF 13-52:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 9 

 

 



CAF 13-52:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 9 

 

 



CAF 13-52:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 9 

 

 

 



CAF 13-51: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7 May 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D.O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-51 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-38, Authorizing the Dedication and 
Acceptance of Vance Granville Community College Watermain Extension 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:  
 
 KSO 5 – Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure: To provide reliable, dependable and 

environmentally compliant infrastructure systems. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 13-38, Authorizing the Dedication and Acceptance of Vance 

Granville Community College Watermain Extension. 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Vance Granville Community College has extended approximately 540 LF of 6” DIP water main 
with associated appurtenances to serve the newly acquired building (former Power Equipment 
Plus, located just off of Ruin Creek Road adjacent to the Staples Distribution Center) to be used 
for their school expansion.  The water mains was inspected and constructed in accordance to the 
City’s construction standards.  All testing for the water main has been performed are deemed 
acceptable.  Approval from DENR has been obtained for the use of the water system. 
 
A one year warranty will be placed on the system as a condition for acceptance by the City. 
 
Enclosures 
 

1. Resolution 13-38 
2. Map of Area 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:13 May 13 Reg. Meeting 
    



CAF 13-51: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 6 

 

RESOLUTION 13-38 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DEDICATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF 
VANCE GRANVILLE COMMUNITY COLLEGE WATER MAIN EXTENSION 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 
2013, and during said retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals and 12 
Core Values; and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 5: To 
Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems; and  

WHEREAS, Vance Granville Community College is expanding to an existing building; and 

WHEREAS, approximately 540 LF of 6” water main with associated appurtenances were constructed; 
and 

WHEREAS, the water and sewer mains have been constructed in accordance to City standards; and 

WHEREAS, all testing of the water and sewer mains have been performed with acceptable results; and  

WHEREAS, approval from regulatory agencies (NC DENR) have been received for use of the water 
main; and 

WHEREAS, the water and sewer mains are located within properly recorded easement(s) and/or public 
right-of-ways per Plat Book Y, Page 259 of the Vance County Register of Deeds. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby authorize 
the execution of the Water and Sewer Main Conveyance and Dedication form , Attachment A to 
this Resolution,  for City acceptance of the Vance Granville Community College Water Main 
Extension. 

The foregoing Resolution 13-38, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council Member 
***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was APPROVED on 
this the ** day of *** 2013:  YES: .  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. ** 



CAF 13-51: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF VANCE 

 

WATER AND SEWER MAIN  
CONVEYANCE AND DEDICATION 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this       day of    

  ,  20   by and between  Vance-Granville Community College   

referred to hereinafter as "Grantors", and the City of Henderson, a municipal corporation, 

hereinafter referred to as "Grantee". 

 WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Grantor has installed  6  inch water main(s) in a permanent 

easement and/or street right-of-ways which are shown on the record drawings entitled  

 Vance-Granville Community College    as prepared by  Bobbitt 

Surveying, PA and on file in the Engineering Department of the City of Henderson and on the 

plat recorded in Plat Book(s)   Y  Page(s)  259  of the Vance County 

Register of Deeds. 

WHEREAS, the Grantor is desirous of conveying all of its right, title and interest in said 

water main to the Grantee within the easement and/or right-of-ways with the understanding that 

the Grantee will repair and maintain said  6  inch water main(s) and connecting 

equipment;  and 

NOW THEREFORE, The parties hereto do agree as follows: 

1.  Grantor does hereby dedicate and convey to Grantee the rights-of-way as shown on 

the aforesaid plat, including that certain  6  inch water main(s) within the designated 

easement and rights-of-ways, and manholes, taps and all other equipment and materials 

installed in relation to the water and sewer mains, within the right-of-way, and the Grantor’s 

Resolution 13-38 
Attachment A 



CAF 13-51: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 6 

 

respective interest in the various properties on which the same are located within the right-of-

ways on the above plat. 

2.  Grantee does hereby accept said water and sewer main as property of the Grantee, 

and does hereby covenant to repair and maintain same, at its sole cost, beginning one year 

from and after the date hereof of acceptance.  Grantor does certify to the Grantee a one year 

warranty by the contractor and or payment to the City for repair work performed by the City 

within one year period of acceptance. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be 

executed in duplicate originals, this the day and year first above written.    

  

      Vance-Granville Community College  
 

 
 

       By:                                              (SEAL)  
         (TITLE) 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

County of        

I, the undersigned Notary Public of the County of        and State aforesaid, certify that 

             personally came before me this day and acknowledged 

that he/she is the          of         , a North Carolina  

             and that by authority duly given and as the act of such 

entity, he/she signed the foregoing instrument in its name on its behalf as its act and deed.  Witness my 

hand and Notarial stamp or seal, this      day of       , 20  . 

                           

Notary Public              Notary’s Printed or Typed Name 

         

My Commission expires:           (Affix Seal) 

 



CAF 13-51: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 

CITY OF HENDERSON 

    CITY of Henderson     

(SEAL) 

By:            

James O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

   

             

Esther McCrackin, CITY CLERK 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

County of Vance 

I, the undersigned Notary Public of the County of        and State aforesaid, certify that 

Esther McCrackin personally came before me this day and acknowledged that she is the City Clerk of the 

CITY of Henderson, a North Carolina Municipal Corporation, and that by authority duly given and as the 

act  of  such  entity,  the  foregoing  instrument was  signed  in  its  name  by  its Mayor,  sealed with  the 

Municipal Corporate Seal and attested by the City Clerk. 

Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal, this      day of       , 20  . 

                           

Notary Public              Notary’s Printed or Typed Name 

         

My Commission expires:           (Affix Seal) 

 

 

Approved as to legal form: 

                           

CITY Attorney              Date 



CAF 13-51: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 

CAF 13-51 
Attachment #2 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

23 April 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-48 

Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-34, Approval of Sole Source for New 
Radio Read Water Meter Purchases and to Purchase the Meters from HD Supply 
Waterworks, LTD; and Authorizing the Mayor to Sign the Promissory Note for the 
Loan for Project # H-LRX-F-11-1693 for the Purchase of Radio Read Water Meters; 
and 2) Ordinance 13-24, FY 13 Budget Amendment # 29, Amending the Budget for 
Above Mentioned Project 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5 – Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

Systems. 
 KSO 8   –   Provide Sufficient Funding for Municipal Services. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

Approval of:  
 1) Resolution 13-34, Approval of Sole Source for New Radio Read Water Meter Purchases 

and to Purchase the Meters from HD Supply Waterworks, LTD ;and Authorizing the Mayor 
to Sign the Promissory Note for the Loan for Project # H-LRX-F-11-1693 for the Purchase of 
Radio Read Water Meters 

 2) Ordinance 1, FY 13-24 Budget Amendment #29 Amending the Budget for Above 
Mentioned Project. 

 
Executive Summary 
 
On 26 September 2011, City Council approved, via Resolution 11-88, the application for a 
loan/grant to the NCDENR for various projects with one being the purchase of new radio read 
water meters.  On 17 July 2012, the City of Henderson received notification that a DWSRF loan 
was approved for the purchase of new radio read water meters in the amount of $294,000, which 
lead to Council approving the acceptance of said loan on 13 August 2012 via Resolution 12-63 
and authorizing the Mayor to sign the acceptance agreement. 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

           
 
 
 
Agenda Item:         ___________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 May 13 Regular Meeting 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 13 

 

 
On April 19, 2013 DENR approved and accepted the Part B for the loan offer for $294,000 and 
released the funds to begin the project.  The project will begin immediately with the purchase of 
the following quantity of radio read meters: 
 

 1,276 - ¾” residential water meters 
 20 - 1” water meters 
 5 - 2” water meters 
 2 - 4” water meters 
 1,296 MBX1 lids with 2” holes 

 
The meters that are being utilized by the City are only sold by one company in North Carolina, 
HD Supply.  The manufacturer (Neptune) allows for exclusive rights for their meters in each 
state.  This limits the ability to follow normal procurement procedures if we stay with the 
Neptune brand meters.  Staff recommends staying with the Neptune brand as the City has already 
installed over 2,000 Neptune meters and all of the current spare parts are with the Neptune brand.  
The City staff recommends that the City purchase the Neptune meters and qualify the purchase 
as a sole source product with HD Supply.  The State has accepted the sole source purchase of the 
meters for this project as it has with other communities in similar situations. 
 
The current budget for the project was setup in Ordinance 12-51 based on the original 
Preliminary Engineering Report performed by McGill Associates.  As the meters will be 
installed with in-house forces, the only items on the contract is the purchase of the meters and the 
closing cost fees to the State for the loan.  The meters will be installed in accordance with the 
plan as approved and presented to the City Council via CM 13-04.  Since this is a procurement 
project only, it is recommended that the contingency funds be removed and all funds transferred 
to the Water Meter Purchase line item as shown in the budget amendment and listed below to the 
two line items to remain in the account: 
 
SRF Admin/Closing Fee $     5,879.00 
Water Meter Purchase             $ 288,049.00 
 
The total amount is $293,928.00, which is just below the $294,000 allotted in the SRF loan.     
 
On 22 April 2013, the City received the promissory note from the NC Department of State 
Treasurer for the above mentioned loan.  The loan rate is 20 years at 0% interest with repayment 
of the loan in the amount of $14,696.40 per year to begin no later than 6 months after the 
completion of the project, or in this case, expenditures of all the funds. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution  13-34 
2. Ordinance 13-24 
3. Loan Amortization Schedule  
4. Resolution 11-88 
5. Resolution 12-63 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 13 

 

RESOLUTION 13-34 
 

APPROVAL OF SOLE SOURCE FOR NEW RADIO READ WATER METER 
PURCHASES AND APPROVAL TO PURCHASE THE METERS FROM HD SUPPLY 

WATERWORKS, LTD; AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE 
PROMISSORY NOTE FOR THE LOAN FOR PROJECT # H-LRX-F-11-1693 FOR THE 

PURCHASE OF RADIO READ WATER METERS 

 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2012 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS,   two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 

5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital 
Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 and the NC Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of drinking water 
system improvements, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received an offer of acceptance of a loan for a water system project 

(project number WIF-1693); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City deems it in the best interest to complete this work in order to provide 

reliable, dependable and environmentally compliant infrastructure systems, and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of the loan is $294,000 for twenty years with a 0.00% interest rate; and 
 
WHEREAS, the new meters will be used to replace existing, aging meters throughout the City; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved and accepted the loan per Resolution 12-63; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved the plan and procedures for the location and installation 

of the meters via CM 13-04; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City will continue to utilize Neptune brand meters, effectively allowing sole 

source to HD Supply for the purchase of the water meters; and 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 13 

 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL: 
 

1. Approves the sole source purchase of the water meters with HD Supply, and 
 
2. Authorizes the Mayor to sign the Promissory Note for Project Number H-LRX-F-

11-1693 for the purchase of the radio read water meters being more fully 
articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution.  

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-34 introduced by Council Member ** and seconded by Council 
Member ** on this the ___day of ____ 2013, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was 
*** by the following votes: YES:  .  NO:  .  ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:  . 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
____________________________________   
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
(Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. **.) 
 
 
_________________________   
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and exact copy of Resolution 13-34, adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on      2013 (See Minute Book 42, p. **.).  
This Resolution is recorded in Resolution  Book # 3, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 2013. 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 13 

 

 

Attachment A 
Resolution 13-34 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 13 

 

O R D I N A N C E  13-24 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2012 -- 2013 BUDGET 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #29 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 14 June 2012, adopted its 

FY 12-13 Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the Water Fund, said fund referred to as 43: CIP Water Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

FUND:

PROJECT:

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 13-Aug-12 Budget Amendment Revised

State Revolving Loan 43-851-458100 294,000$      294,000$        (72)$                293,928$                    
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 294,000$      294,000$        (72)$                293,928$                    
293,928$                    

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 13-Aug-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Legal/Admin 43-851-510200 5,000$          5,000$           (5,000)$           -$                           
Engineering Design 43-851-510301 8,000$          8,000$           (8,000)$           -$                           
Water Meter Replacement 43-851-535701 250,000$      250,000$        38,049$          288,049$                    
SRF Admin/Closing Fee 43-851-504514 6,000$          6,000$           (121)$              5,879$                        
Contingency 43-851-509900 25,000$        25,000$         (25,000)$         -$                           
  -$             -$               -$                -$                           

-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 294,000$      294,000$        (72)$                293,928$                    
293,928$                    

Variance -$               

CAF: 13-48; Ordinance 13-24; BA#29 Project budget amended to correspond to award notification from NCDENR.

 On 26 September 2011, Council, via Resolution 11-88, approved the application for a 
loan/grant to the NCDENR for various projects, with one being the purchase of new radio read 
water meters.
On 17 July 2012, the City received notification that a DWSRF loan in the amount of $294,000 
had been approved for the purchase of 250 new radio read water meters.

CAF: 12-92; Ordinance 12-51, BA#6 Project budget was approved.

EXPENDITURES

Reference: Notes:

``

Ordinance 13-24
43: CIP - Water

851: New Radio Read Water Meter 
Purchases FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #29

Project Budget Created: 13 August 2012  
Budget Amendment #1 to this Capital Project

REVENUES

 
 
 
 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 13 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-24, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 13 day of May 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 13-48 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-24 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 13 May 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of May 2013. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 13 

 

 

CAF 13-48 
Attachment #3 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 13 

 

 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 13 

 

RESOLUTION  11—88 
 

APPROVAL OF GRANT/LOAN APPLICATION TO THE NC DRINKING WATER 
STATE REVOLVING FUND FOR VARIOUS WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 

 

WHEREAS,  the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2011 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS,   two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 

5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital 
Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS,  the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 and the NC Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of drinking water 
system improvements, and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Henderson intends to construct drinking water system projects 

generally including water lines, service lines, and related appurtenances to replace aged 
and undersized water lines to provide a more reliable source of drinking water and 
improved operating pressures, the replacement of aged water meters for improved 
efficiencies, and the installation of a finished water pump, controls, valves, and piping for 
redundancy and improved reliability and efficiency, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson intends to request State loan or grant assistance for the 

project, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amount of the loan/grant funding applications are $3.0 Million; and 
 
WHEREAS,    the finished water pump, controls, valves and piping for redundancy would be for 

funding at the Kerr Lake Regional Water Plant. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL: 
 

1. That the City of Henderson (Applicant) will arrange financing for all remaining 
costs of the project, if approved for a State loan or grant award. 

 
2. That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project 

a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate 
funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system and the 
repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 

 
3. That the City Council (governing body) of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan 

agreement a provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the City of 
Henderson to make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the City of 
Henderson any State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government 
unit in an amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a 
repayment of the loan. 

CAF 13-48 
Attachment #4 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 13 

 

 
4. That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on 

completion of construction thereof. 
 

5. That  Mayor James D. O’Geary, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is 
hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with the 
State of North Carolina for a loan or grant to aid in the construction of the project 
described above. 
 

6. That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed to 
furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection with 
such application or the project:  to make the assurances as contained above; and to 
execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the application. 
 

7. That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all 
Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project 
and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 11—88 introduced by Council Member Inscoe and seconded by 
Council Member Kearney on this the 26th day of September 2011, and having been submitted to 
a roll call vote, was APPROVED by the following votes: YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Daye, Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe.  NO: None.  ABSENT:  Davis. 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
____________________________________   
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
(Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. 266.) 
___________________________   
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA:  CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do hereby certify the 
foregoing is a true and exact copy of Resolution 11—88, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session 
on  26 September 2011 (See Minute Book 42, p. 266).  This Resolution is recorded in Resolution Book 2, p. 177. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this 27th day of September 2011. 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 13 

 

RESOLUTION 12-63 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF A LOAN FROM THE NC DRINKING WATER STATE 

REVOLVING FUND FOR PURCHASE OF NEW RADIO READ WATER METERS 

 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2012 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: 
  KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

Systems; and 
  KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 

Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 and the NC Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of drinking water 
system improvements, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received an offer of acceptance of a loan for a water system project 

(project number WIF-1693); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City deems it in the best interest to complete this work in order to provide 

reliable, dependable and environmentally compliant infrastructure systems, and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of the loan is $294,000 for twenty years with a 0.00% interest rate; and; 

 
WHEREAS, the new meters will be used to replace existing, aging meters throughout the City. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL: 
 

1. That the City of Henderson (Applicant) will arrange financing for all remaining 
     costs of the project. 
 

2. That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the 
project a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide 
adequate funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system 
and the repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 

 
3. That the City Council (governing body) of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan 

agreement a provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the City of 
Henderson to make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the City of 
Henderson any State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government 
unit in an amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a 
repayment of the loan. 

 
4. That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project 

on completion of construction thereof. 

CAF 13-48 
Attachment #5 



CAF 13-48: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 13 

 

 
5. That  Mayor James D. O’Geary, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is 

hereby authorized to execute the acceptance of the loan, being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A to this Resolution. 

 
6. That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 

directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in 
connection with such application or the project: to make the assurances as contained 
above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the 
application. 

 
7. That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all 

Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the 
project and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-63 introduced by Council Member Daeke and seconded by Council 
Member Daye on this the 13th day of August 2012, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, 
was APPROVED by the following votes: YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown 
and Daye.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Kearney and Rainey. 
 
             
     ___________________________________   
    James D. O’Geary, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
____________________________________   
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
(Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. 546.) 
 



CAF 13-49: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 9 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

3 May 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-49 

Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-35, Authorizing the Execution of a  
Contract with the McGill Associates, P.A. for the Completion of an Engineering 
Report for the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project; and 2) Ordinance 13-23 FY 
Budget Amendment #31 Establishing a CIP Project Budget for the Elmwood 
Cemetery Outfall Project. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 

 KSO 5:  Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure 
 KSO 8:  Provide Financial Resourcing 
 

Recommendation: 
 
Approval of: 
1) Resolution 13-35, Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with the McGill Associates, 
P.A. for the Completion of an Engineering Report for the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall 
Project; and  
2) Ordinance 13-23 FY Budget Amendment #31 Establishing a CIP Project Budget for the 
Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project. 

 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Elmwood Cemetery Sewer Main Replacement – The Sandy Creek Pump Station 
Improvements project is currently under design and the force main empties into this outfall.  The 
sewer main crossing under the CSX Railroad along Spring Street was completed in 2012 and 
there are additional sections along this main that are in need of rehabilitation/replacement.   
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item:    ______ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 May 13 Reg. Meeting 
 



CAF 13-49: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 9 

 

The City received notice by letter dated 1 April 2013 that this project ranked high enough to 
receive a low interest CWSRF loan of 2% in the amount of $1,800,000, which is contingent on 
approval of the loan through the Local Government Commission.  The intent to fund is also 
contingent on meeting the following milestones. 
 

 Engineering Report Submittal   - 1 July 2013 
 Engineering Report Approval   - 2 December 2013 
 Plans & Specification Submittal  - 2 June 2014 
 Plans & Specs/Permit Approval  - 2 September 2014 
 Advertise Project, Receive Bids,  -  1 December 2014 

Submit Bid Information and 
Receive IFS’s Authority to Award    

 Execute Construction Contracts  - 2 January 2015 
 

McGill Associates has worked with the City in applying for low interest loans and grants in the 
past and is currently working with other CIP projects at this time.  It is recommended that McGill 
Associates perform the Engineering Report that is required due to the work performed thus far in 
preparing the Grant/Loan application.  The cost to perform this work is $19,300 and is 
reimbursable as a part of the project loan proceeds once approved by IFS and the LGC.   
 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 13-35 
2. Ordinance 13-23 



CAF 13-49: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 9 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   13-35 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT 
WITH MCGILL ASSOCIATES, P.A. FOR COMPLETION OF AN 

ENGINEERING REPORT FOR THE ELMWOOD CEMETERY OUTFALL 
PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 2013 

Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 5:  

Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure.  To provide reliable, dependable and 
environmentally compliant infrastructure systems; and KSO 8: Provide Financial Resourcing:  To 
provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and capital outlay necessary to meet the needs 
of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory authorities; and 
 

WHEREAS, McGill Associates has been instrumental in assisting the City in applying for low interest 
loans and grants; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City received notice from the Infrastructure Finance Section that the project ranked high 
enough to receive a low interest CWSRF loan of 2% in the amount of $1,800,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, an Engineering Report is required to be submitted by 2 July 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, McGill Associates , P.A. has submitted a proposed contract in the amount of $19,300 to 

perform this work; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HENDERSON, that James D. O’Geary, Mayor, is authorized to enter into a contract with McGill 
Associates, P.A., being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, for the 
purposes of preparing the Engineering Reports as required by the grant/loan applications. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-35, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council Member 
*** and having been submitted to a roll call vote, received the following votes and was ______________ 
on this the ___ day of __________ 2013:  YES: NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: None. 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
_______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



CAF 13-49: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 9 

 

 

Resolution 13-35 
Attachment A 



CAF 13-49: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 9 

 

 



CAF 13-49: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 9 

 

 



CAF 13-49: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 9 

 

 



CAF 13-49: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 9 

 

O R D I N A N C E   13-23 
 

FY 13 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 35 
AMENDING THE CIP SEWER FUND and  
CAPITAL RESERVE UTILITIES FUND 

TO ESTABLISH BUDGET FOR PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 
REPORT FOR THE ELMWOOD CEMETERY OUTFALL PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 14 June 2012 adopted the FY12-13 

Annual Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the Sewer Fund, said fund referred to as 44: CIP Sewer Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 

FUNDS:
PROJECT:

Approved Current
1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Transfer from Cap Reserve Utilities Fund 44-854-461070 -$                   -$                      19,300$                    19,300$                   
 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        

Total -$                   -$                      19,300$                    19,300$                   
19,300$                   

Approved Current
1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

44-854-510296 -$                   -$                      19,300$                    19,300$                   
  -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        

Total -$                   -$                      19,300$                    19,300$                   
19,300$                   

Variance -$                         

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Fund Balance Appropriated 70-700-491000 -$                   400,000$              19,300$                    419,300$                 
  -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        

Total -$                   400,000$              19,300$                    419,300$                 
419,300$                 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Trans to: 44 CIP Sew er 70-854-561044 -$                   -$                      19,300$                    19,300$                   
  -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        

Total -$                   -$                      19,300$                    19,300$                   
19,300$                   

Variance -$                         

44: CIP SEWER; 70: CAPITAL RESERVE UTILITIES

70: CAPITAL RESERVE UTILITIES FUND EXPENDITURES

70: CAPITAL RESERVE UTILITIES FUND REVENUES

FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #35

Amendment to Establish this Project Budget

Project Budget Created on 13 M ay 13

Preliminary Engineering Report

  

Ordinance 13-23

 

REVENUES

Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project

Resolution 13-35 authorizing execution of contract with McGill Associates for the completion of a 
preliminary engineering report for the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project.  Ordinance 13-23 and BA #35 
establishing a CIP project budget.

EXPENDITURES

 

Notes:Reference:
13 May 13: CAF 13-49; Res 13-35; Ord 13-23; BA#35

 
 



CAF 13-49: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 9 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-23, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the 13th day of May 2013:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 13-49 
  
 
__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-23  adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ________________ 2013. This Ordinance is 
recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p.***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****. 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  
 



CAF 13-58: 15 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 11 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
17 July 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  13-58 

Consideration of Approval Resolution 13-40, Authorizing Vance County to Extend 
2,500 Linear Feet of Waterlines into Warren County 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:  
 
 KSO 5:  Provide reliable, dependable and environmentally compliant infrastructure systems. 
 Core Value 7:  We value teamwork and collaborative efforts with our fellow workers, 

stakeholders and partners and believe that through such efforts we will be better able to 
achieve our goals and objectives.   

 Core Value 9: We value a good working relationship with the County of Vance and believe 
by working together in a cooperative effort we can better address the strategic challenges and 
opportunities facing our community. 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 13-40, Authorizing Vance County to Extend 2,500 Linear Feet of 

Waterlines into Warren County. 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Vance County has been approached by several residents along Tower Road directly across the 
county line within Warren County, requesting Vance County extend their waterlines to service 
that area.  Subsequently, as per Section 15 of the Joint Water Purchase Agreement between the 
City of Henderson and Vance County, Vance County is requesting permission from the City to 
extend their waterlines into Warren County. They will also be presenting a similar request to 
Warren County for their approval of this action. 
 
Enclosures 

1. Resolution 13-40 
2. Agreement with Edits 
3. Letter from Vance County 
4. Map of Area 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

     
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 May 13 Reg. Meeting 
    



CAF 13-58: 15 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 11 

 

RESOLUTION  13-40 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING VANCE COUNTY TO EXTEND 
2,500 LINEAR FEET OF WATERLINES INTO WARREN COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 

January 2013, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals and 12 Core Values; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one Key Strategic Objective as follows: KSO 5: To 

Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution further addresses two of the Core Values and Principles that Guide 

the City’s Work as follows:  CV 7:  Teamwork and Collaborative Efforts, and CV 9:  
Good Working Relationship with Vance County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County has received several requests from residents along Tower Road in 

Warren County, directly across the county lines; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 15 of the joint water purchase agreement between the City of Henderson 

and Vance County states the County is to receive “official approval of the City Council” 
prior to constructing or selling water to customers outside of Vance County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County is requesting approval to extend 2,500 linear feet of waterlines into 

Warren County to service the Tower Road residents.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby  

approve a Memorandum of Agreement, being more fully articulated in Attachment A to 
this Resolution, between the City and County authorizing the request for the above 
mentioned extension of waterlines. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-40, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
*** on this the ***  day of ______ 2013:  YES:  ****.  NO:  **.  ABSTAIN:  **.          
ABSENT:  **. 
        _____________________________ 
ATTEST:      James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. **. 



CAF 13-58: 15 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 11 

 

 

Attachment A 
Resolution 13-40 



CAF 13-58: 15 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 11 

 

 



CAF 13-58: 15 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 11 

 

 



CAF 13-58: 15 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 11 

 

 

CAF 13-58 
Attachment #2 



CAF 13-58: 15 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 11 

 

 



CAF 13-58: 15 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 11 

 

 



CAF 13-58: 15 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 11 

 



CAF 13-58: 15 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 11 

 

 
 

CAF 13-58 
Attachment #3 



CAF 13-58: 15 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 11 

 

 

 

CAF 13-58 
Attachment #3 



CAF 13-57:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 1 of 8 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

8 May 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  13-57 

Approval of Resolution 13-39, Authorizing an Agreement Between the Embassy Cultural 
Center Foundation and the City of Henderson 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 3: Economic Development  - Redevelop Downtown 
 KSO 7:  Expand Leisure and Cultural Services, Programs and Facilities  

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 13-39, Authorizing an Agreement Between The Embassy Cultural Center 

Foundation and the City of Henderson.  
 
Executive Summary 
 
Mr. John Wester, Chairman of the Embassy Cultural Center Foundation (Foundation), has spoken with 
the Mayor, City Attorney and me regarding the next phase of the development of the property on 
Breckenridge Street.  The new development will build a performing arts center, part of the original plan 
set forth by the City and the Foundation.  The City Attorney has briefed members of Council on this 
project and the several requests being made by the Foundation. 
 
Several key elements of the agreement are:  1) the library would revert to the City’s ownership once it has 
been affirmed all debt and encumbrances have been satisfied; 2) the City would waive its right of 
property reversion for McGregor Hall and the Performing Arts Center; 3) Cross easements would be 
provided to the City to continue to use McGregor Hall as the entrance to the Library and a closet on the 
library side would be used by the Foundation for storage; and 4) cross easements on the parking lot for 
use by both facilities. 
 
As previously mentioned, the Foundation is not requesting the City to participate financially in either the 
construction and/or operations of the Performing Arts Center. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 13-39 
2. Letter from John Wester  

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 8 May 2013 Regular Meeting 



CAF 13-57:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 2 of 8 

 

 R E S O L U T I O N   13-39 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE EMBASSY 
CULTURAL CENTER FOUNDATION AND THE CITY OF HENDERSON 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 

January 2013, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 

3: Economic Development - Redevelop Downtown, and KSO 7:  Expand Leisure and 
Cultural Services, Programs and Facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Embassy Cultural Center Foundation (Foundation) will build a performing arts 

center; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement between the Foundation and the City of Henderson would allow the 

Library to revert to City ownership once it is affirmed all debts and encumbrances are 
satisfied; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City will waive its right of property reversion for McGregor Hall and the 

Performing Arts Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, cross easements will be provided to the City to continue to use McGregor Hall as 

the entrance to the Library and a closet on the Library side will be used for storage by the 
Foundation; and 

 
WHEREAS, cross easements will exist on the parking lot for use by both facilities. 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE this agreement (see Attachment A) between the Embassy 
Cultural Center Foundation and the City of Henderson. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-39, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the 13th day of May 2013:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 41, pp. **; CAF 13-57 



CAF 13-57:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 3 of 8 

 

Resolution 13-19 
Attachment A 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
          AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF VANCE 
 
 This Agreement, made and entered into this the ______ day of __________, 2013, by and 
between the CITY OF HENDERSON (hereinafter referred to as “City”) and THE EMBASSY 
CULTURAL CENTER FOUNDATION, INC. (hereinafter referred to as the “Foundation”); 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties hereto entered into Contracts with each other dated February 12, 
2001 and November 10, 2003; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to said Contracts, the Foundation has acquired all of the property 
(located within the City Limits of the City of Henderson) bounded by Chestnut Street on the 
West, Breckenridge Street on the North, Wyche Street on the East and Winder Street on the 
South (hereinafter referred to as the “Block”), excepting only a portion of the southeastern 
parking lot owned by Variety Wholesalers, Inc. relative to which the Foundation has contractural 
rights; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on the northernmost corner of the Block (corner of Chestnut Street and 
Breckenridge Street), the Foundation has constructed the H. Leslie Perry Memorial Library, 
which is bounded on the Southeast by “McGregor Hall” (sometimes referred to as the 
“Gallery”), which serves as an entrance hall to the Library and to the properties located to the 
southeast thereof; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on the properties southeast of McGregor Hall, the Foundation has presently 
contracted with H. G. Reynolds Company, Inc. to construct a Performing Arts Theater building 
(the same being located on the southeast corner of the Block adjoining Wyche Street and 
Breckenridge Street); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Foundation has given a deed of trust for the benefit of Branch Banking 
and Trust Company on the northwestern portion of the Block containing 1.92 acres; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to enter into a new contractural arrangement 
relative to said Block. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

(1) Within fifteen (15) days after the execution of this Agreement by all parties, the 
Foundation will pay off in full its deed of trust to Branch Banking and Trust 
Company and all liens and encumbrances which it may have relative to the 1.92 



CAF 13-57:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 4 of 8 

 

acres consisting of the H. Leslie Perry Memorial Library and the parking lot 
located to the southwest thereof. 

 
(2) Within thirty (30) days after the execution of this Agreement by all parties, the 

Foundation will deed to the City in fee simple the 1.92 acres consisting of the 
northwestern portion of the Block (including the H. Leslie Perry Memorial Library 
and the adjacent parking lot) as described as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto 
and as further shown on the plat marked Exhibit B attached, but excepting 
therefrom the space located in the southeastern corner thereof occupied by the 
building known as McGregor Hall.  The Foundation will have no responsibility 
hereafter relative to the staffing or maintenance of the above property conveyed to 
the City. 

 
(3) Included within the aforesaid said deed will be a permanent cross easement for 

McGregor Hall for each of the parties hereto to access and use as an entrance to the 
their respective facilities.  Also there is a small “vending closet” that is within the 
confines of the H. Leslie Perry Memorial Library building, but which opens onto 
the McGregor Hall lobby, and a permanent easement is reserved by and granted to 
the Foundation to access and use that “vending closet”.   

 
(4) The City will grant a perpetual easement to the Foundation to use ten (10) parking 

spaces located at the southern end of the parking lot on the 1.92 acres conveyed by 
the aforesaid deed to the City, said parking spaces to be utilized by the staff and 
employees of the proposed Performing Arts Theater (hereinafter referred to as 
“Breckenridge Commons”). 

   
(5) The parties agree that the parking lot on the 1.92 acre tract conveyed to the City can 

be utilized by the general public for Special Events occurring in the Breckenridge 
Commons.  The waste bin also located on the 1.92 acres conveyed to the City can 
be jointly used for the Breckenridge Commons domestic and office trash (but not 
used relative to trash generated by productions or during construction). 

 
(6) As consideration of the above conveyance and this Agreement, the City hereby 

quitclaims and conveys to the Foundation all of its right, title and interest 
(including any re-conveyance rights and any reversionary interest or clause under 
any previous Agreement) in and to that portion of the Block (consisting of 1.50 
acres as shown on Exhibit B attached hereto) located Southeast of the 1.92 acres 
herein conveyed to the City together with all of the City’s right, title and interest 
(excepting the joint easement for usage) in the McGregor Hall building located in 
the southeast corner of the 1.92 acre tract.  The City will join in the execution of the 
deed (set forth in Paragraph 2) to recite the above provision.   

 
(7) As further consideration for this Agreement, the City forgives any and all 

indebtedness that may be presently owing by the Foundation to the City and 
releases the Foundation from any liability thereon. 

 



CAF 13-57:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 5 of 8 

 

(8) The Foundation shall be solely responsible for the construction of the Performing 
Arts Theater known as Breckenridge Commons (on the corner of Breckenridge 
Street and Wyche Street) and shall be further responsible for the future operation, 
staffing, maintenance and repair of the same during the life of said facility 
(although the City agrees to join with the Foundation relative to any potential 
grants that could be available relative to the construction, maintenance or operation 
of the facilities on said property without the City assuming any responsibility or 
liability therefor).  The Foundation shall bear all expenses and shall be entitled to 
receive all profits from the operation of the Performing Arts Theater.  It is 
understood and agreed that the Foundation may assign or convey its rights and 
obligations under this Agreement relative to the Performing Arts Theater and/or its 
ownership of the same, in the future, if the Foundation so desires. 

 
(9) During construction of the Performing Arts Theater (Breckenridge Commons), the 

City grants H. G. Reynolds Company, Inc. permission to remove and replace six 
(6) maple trees and light pole fixtures and install security fencing and sandbagging 
along Breckenridge Street and Wyche Street and further to temporarily close fifteen 
(15) parking spaces adjacent to the construction site during construction and to 
further temporarily close ten (10) parking spaces on Wyche Street adjacent to said 
construction site during the actual construction of the Performing Arts Theater. 

 
(10) The City agrees to pay the attorneys’ fees and closing costs relative to the 

preparation and execution of this Agreement and the related deed, including 
recording the deed. 

 
(11) This Agreement supercedes all prior agreements between the City and the 

Foundation and said prior agreements are hereby repealed and rendered null and 
void.   

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been signed by each of the Parties this the 
day and year first above written, all by authority of their respective governing bodies. 
 
CITY OF HENDERSON     THE EMBASSY CULTURAL 
CENTER 
        FOUNDATION, INC. 
By:_______________________________  By:_______________________________ 
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor     John P. Wester, President 
 
Attest: 
__________________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
(Municipal Seal) 



CAF 13-57:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 6 of 8 

 

 



CAF 13-57:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 7 of 8 

 

 
 



CAF 13-57:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 8 of 8 

 

 



CAF 13-46: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 1 of 9 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

9 May 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-46 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-32, Amending Separate Contracts 
Between the City and Cordell’s Lawn Care, Inc. and Perks Lawn Care, LLC to 
Include Additional Landscaping Services. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 1-AP 1-1: Implement Process Improvements.  Process improvement reviews will 

include consideration of privatization of certain services as appropriate. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 13-32, Amending Separate Contracts Between the City and Cordell’s 

Lawn Care, Inc. and Perks Lawn Care, LLC to Include Additional Landscaping Services. 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Cordell’s Lawn Care, Inc., has provided the landscape management services for the Police 
Station and Breckenridge Streetscape since 2006 and Perks Lawn Care, LLC has provided these 
services at the KLRWP and Elmwood Cemetery.  Both have done a very good job of performing 
this work.  Following the guidelines of KSO-1-AP1-1, the staff has reviewed other areas of 
similar type work which could result in providing these services by way of a professional 
landscape firm.  This included the Veterans Triangle at Charles Street and Garnett Street, the 
downtown landscape planters on Garnett Street (from Spring Street to Young Street) and the N. 
Garnett Street landscaped area along William Street just east of Andrews Avenue to just beyond 
Carter’s Crossing.  The City’s Grounds Maintenance crew currently performs the mowing of 
these areas, as well as mowing of vacant lots now owned by the City and County. They also 
perform the mowing of street right of ways, city owned properties and the CSX corridor within 
the City.  Upon relinquishing these areas to a private contractor, it will allow more time to be 
focused on properly maintaining other city owned properties as well as city streets. 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 May 13 Reg. Meeting 
 



CAF 13-46: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 2 of 9 

 

The downtown area planters and general clean-up was once performed by the Downtown 
Development Commission utilizing INCO (Vocational Development) and the N. Garnett Street 
area was taken care of by the Henderson Appearance Commission, through a private landscape 
contractor.  The pruning of the crepe myrtles has always been performed by the city, but this 
would be turned over to Perk’s Lawn Care, LLC, if approved. 
 
Proposals were received from Cordell’s Lawn Care, Inc. and Perk’s Lawn Care, LLC to provide 
monthly landscape services for these areas.  The proposals received are outlined below. 
 
Area Cordell’s Lawn Care, Inc. Perk’s Lawn Care, LLC 
Bennett Perry House $125-mth/  $1,500 Annually $181.83- mth / $2,170 Annually 
Veterans Triangle $160-mth/  $1,920 Annually $169.17- mth/  $2,030 Annually 
Downtown Area $145-mth/  $1,740 Annually $119.58- mth/  $1,435 Annually 
N. Garnett Street $600-mth/  $7,200 Annually $525.00- mth/ $6.300 Annually 
 
Based on these proposals, it is recommended that Cordell’s Lawn Care, Inc. be awarded the 
Bennett Perry House and Veteran’s Triangle Areas and Perk’s Lawn Care, LLC be awarded the 
Downtown area and the N. Garnett Street areas.  Other provisions of each contract would remain 
in effect as previously approved. 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Resolution 13-32 



CAF 13-46: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 3 of 9 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 13-32 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDING SEPARATE CONTRACTS 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF HENDERSON AND CORDELL’S LAWN CARE  

INC. AND PERKS LAWN CARE, LLC TO INCLUDE ADDITIONAL 
LANDSCAPE SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 2013 

Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS, one of the Key Strategic Objectives is addressed by this request as follows: KSO 1:AP 1-1: 

Implement Process Improvement; and 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received from Cordell’s Lawn Care, Inc. and Perk’s Lawn Care, LLC for 

landscape services related to Veterans Triangle, Bennett Perry House, Downtown planter areas 
and the N. Garnett Street landscape area; and 

 
WHEREAS, both firms currently provide landscape management services at various locations and 

perform well at providing these services; and 
 
WHEREAS, Cordell’s Lawn Care Inc. was the low bidder for the landscape services at Veteran’s 

Triangle and Bennett Perry House and 
 
WHEREAS, Perks Lawn Care, LLC was the low bidder for landscape services for the downtown area and 

N. Garnett Street landscape area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the contract would begin1 July 2013 and other existing conditions of each contract would 

remain in effect as previously approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HENDERSON does hereby authorize the Mayor to sign amended contracts with Cordell’s Lawn 
Care Inc., and Perks Lawn Care, LLC and the City of Henderson, being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A to this Resolution, for the additional landscape services at the locations as 
identified in this resolution. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-32, introduced by Council Member ____________ and seconded by Council 
Member _____________ on this the ___th day of ______ 2013 and having been  
submitted to a roll call vote, was _____________ by the following votes: YES:.  NO:.  ABSTAIN:.  
ABSENT:. 
       _____________________________  

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk  
Approved to Legal Form: 
_____________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference Minute Book 42, p 759; CAF 13-25 



CAF 13-46: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 4 of 9 

 

 

Attachment A 
Resolution 13-32 



CAF 13-46: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 5 of 9 

 

 



CAF 13-46: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 6 of 9 

 

 



CAF 13-46: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 7 of 9 

 

 



CAF 13-46: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 8 of 9 

 

 



CAF 13-46: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting  
Page 9 of 9 

 

 



CAF 13-60: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

9 May 2013 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF 13-60 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-41, Award of FY 13 Audit Contract 
between the City of Henderson and William L. Stark and Company. 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 13-41, Award of FY 13 Audit Contract between the City of 

Henderson and William L. Stark and Company. 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Attached is a copy of the proposed contract to audit accounts for the City of Henderson from 
William L. Stark and Company.  It is recommended that this contract be approved and this local 
auditing firm be allowed to conduct the audit for the 2nd consecutive year.  This represents year 
two of a three year proposal submitted by William L. Stark and Company.  The fee for the fiscal 
year 2013 audit totals $41,550.   William L. Stark and Company agrees to complete the audit by 
October 31, following the close of the fiscal year on June 30th. 
 
Enclosures 
 

1. Resolution 13-41 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 May 13 Regular Meeting 
 



CAF 13-60: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 6 

 

 

RESOLUTION 
13-41 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A CONTRACT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF HENDERSON AND WILLIAM L. STARK AND COMPANY 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson (City) is required to have an independent audit of its 
financial records performed on an annual basis; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has utilized the services of William L. Stark and Company (Company) for 

the fiscal year 2012 audit and has found the Company’s services to be beneficial to the 
City and its financial staff, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company has provided a proposal for the FY13 Audit, said services to be in the 

amount of $41,550.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HENDERSON THAT it does hereby authorize the Mayor to sign a contract, being more 
fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, for services with the Company for 
the FY 13 Audit in the amount of $41,550. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT IT IS THE STRONG WISH AND DESIRE OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL THAT the City Finance Staff and William L. Stark and Company staff work 
together in a diligent and time sensitive manner to ensure the FY 13 Audit will be submitted to 
the Local Government Commission by 31 October 2013 as stipulated in paragraph 6 of said 
contract. 
 
The foregoing Resolution 13-41, introduced by Council Member *** and seconded by Council 
Member ***, on this the *** day of _____ 2013 and having been submitted to a roll call vote, 
was *** by the following votes: YES:    NO:  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. *** 



CAF 13-60: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 



CAF 13-60: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 



CAF 13-60: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 



CAF 13-60: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 
 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 1 of 54 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

26 April 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-23   

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-14, Updating the Sewer Use Ordinance, 
Chapter 15. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 1:  Implement Process Improvements 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 13-14, Updating the Sewer Use Ordinance, Chapter 15. 

 
 

Executive Summary 
 

In order to be in complete compliance with the Environmental Protection Agency and 
NCDENR, necessary changes and clarifications are needed to the existing Sewer Use 
Ordinance.  These changes will increase the City’s enforcement authority as well as make the 
wording more concise and comprehensible. In this process outdated sections have also been 
removed. 
 

 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Sections of Highlighted changes of Original Sewer Use Ordinance 
2. Ordinance 13-14 

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 May 13 Reg. Meeting 
 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 2 of 54 

 

 
“DIVISION 2. - REGULATIONS REGARDING THE DISCHARGE INTO THE CITY 
SANITARY SEWER * 

Sec. 15-63. - Definitions and abbreviations.  

Interference. The inhibition, or disruption of the WRF collection system, treatment processes, 

operations, or its sludge process, use, or disposal, which causes or contributes to a violation of any 

requirement of the WRF's NPDES, collection system, or nondischarge permit or prevents sewage sludge 

use or disposal in compliance with specified applicable state and federal statutes, regulations or permits. 

The term includes prevention of sewage sludge use or disposal by the WRF in accordance with section 405 

of the Act, (33 U.S.C. 1345) or any criteria, guidelines, or regulations developed pursuant to the Solid 

Waste Disposal Act (SWDA) (42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq.), the Clean Air Act, the Toxic Substances Act 

(MPRSA) or more stringent state criteria (including those contained in any state sludge management plan 

prepared pursuant to Title IV of SWDA) applicable to the method of disposal or use employed by the 

WRF.  

15.1.  

Pass-through. A discharge which exits the WRF into waters of the state in quantities or 

concentrations which, alone or with discharges from other sources, causes a violation, including an increase 

in the magnitude or duration of a violation, of the WRF's NPDES, collection system, or nondischarge 

permit, or a downstream water quality standard even if not included in the permit.  

Pollutant. Any "waste" as defined in G.S. 143-213(18) and dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator 

residue, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, medical wastes, chemical wastes, biological materials, 

radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock sand, cellar dirt and industrial, 

municipal, and agricultural waste and certain characteristics of wastewater (e.g., pH, temperature, TSS, 

turbidity, color, metals, BOD, COD, toxicity, or and odor).  

Significant noncompliance or reportable noncompliance. A status of noncompliance defined as 

follows:  

(1)Violations of wastewater discharge limits. 

a.Chronic violations. Sixty-six (66) percent or more of the measurements exceed 

(by any magnitude) the same daily maximum limit or the same average limit in a 

six (6) month period.  

(A) Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits, defined here as those 

in which sixty-six (66) percent or more of all the measurements taken for the 

same pollutant parameter (not including flow) during a six month period exceed 

(by any magnitude) a numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including 

instantaneous limits, as defined by 40 CFR Part 403.3(l); 

CAF 13-23 
Attachment #1 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 3 of 54 

 

 

b.Technical review criteria (TRC) violations. Thirty-three (33) percent or more 

of the measurements are equal to or more than the TRC times the limit 

(maximum or average) in a six (6) month period. There are two (2) groups of 

TRCs:  

For conventional pollutants  

BOD, TSS, fats, oil and grease TRC = 1.4  

For all other pollutants TRC = 1.2  

 
(B) Technical Review Criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in 
which thirty-three (33) percent or more of all the measurements taken for the 
same pollutant parameter during a six-month period equal or exceed the product 
of the numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including instantaneous 
limits, as defined by 40 CFR Part 403.3(l) multiplied by the applicable TRC; 
(TRC = 1.4 for BOD, TSS, fats, oil and grease, 1.2 for all other pollutants 
(except flow and pH); 

 

c.Any other violation(s) of an effluent limit (average or daily maximum) that the 

city believes has caused, alone or in combination with other discharges, 

interference or pass-through, or endangered the health of the WRF personnel or 

the public. 

 
(C) Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as 
defined by 40 CFR Part 403.3(l) (daily maximum, long-term average, 
instantaneous limit, or narrative standard) that the Control Authority and/or 
POTW determines has caused, alone or in combination with other discharges, 
interference or pass through (including endangering the health of POTW 
personnel or the general public); 

 

d.Any discharge of a pollutant that has caused imminent endangerment to 

human health/welfare or to the environment or has resulted in the WRF's 

exercise of its emergency authority to halt or prevent such a discharge. 

(D) Any discharge of a pollutant or wastewater that has caused imminent 

endangerment to human health, welfare or to the environment or has resulted in 

either the Control Authority’s or the POTW's, if different from the Control 

Authority, exercise of its emergency authority under 40 CFR Part 

403.8(f)(1)(vi)(B) and Section 15-79 (e) of this SUO to halt or prevent such a 

discharge;  

(2) 

(E)      Violations of compliance schedule milestones, contained in a 

pretreatment permit or enforcement order, for starting construction, completing 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 4 of 54 

 

construction, and attaining final compliance by ninety (90) days or more after 

the schedule date.  

 

(3) 

(F) Failure to provide reports for compliance schedule, self-monitoring data, 

baseline monitoring reports, ninety (90) day compliance reports, and periodic compliance 

reports within thirty (30) days from the due date.  

 

(4) 

(G) Failure to accurately report noncompliance. 

 

(5) 

(H) Any other violation or group of violations that the city considers to be 

significant.  determines will adversely affect the operation or implementation of the local 

pretreatment program. 

Sec. 15-73. - Permits.  

 (b)  Wastewater permits. All significant industrial users shall obtain a significant industrial user 

permit prior to the commencement of discharge to the WRF. Existing industrial users who are 

determined by the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director to be significant industrial users shall 

obtain a significant industrial user permit within one hundred eighty (180) days of receiving 

notification of the WRF director's determination. Industrial users who do not fit the significant 

industrial user criteria may at the discretion of the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director be 

required to obtain a wastewater discharge permit for nonsignificant industrial users.  

(1)  Significant industrial user determination. All persons proposing to discharge 

nondomestic wastewater, or proposing to change the volume or characteristics of an 

existing discharge of nondomestic wastewater, shall first request from the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director a significant industrial user determination. If the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director determines or suspects that the proposed discharge fits the 

significant industrial user criteria he will require that a significant industrial user permit 

application be filed.  

(2)  Significant industrial user permit application. Users required to obtain a significant 

industrial user permit shall complete and file with the City of Henderson, an application 

in the form prescribed by the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director, and accompanied 

by an application fee in the amount prescribed in the schedule of charges and fees. 

Significant industrial users shall apply for a significant industrial user permit within 

ninety (90) days after notification of the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director's 

determination in section 15-73(b)(1). In support of the application, the user shall submit, 

in units and terms of appropriate for evaluation, the following information:  

a.  Name, address, and location, (if different from the address); 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 5 of 54 

 

b.  Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) codes for pretreatment, the industry 

as a whole, and any processes for which categorical pretreatment standards have 

been promulgated;  

c.  Analytical data on wastewater constituents and characteristics including but 

not limited to those mentioned in division 3, of this article, any of the priority 

pollutants (section 307(a) of the Act) which the applicant knows or suspects are 

present in the discharge as determined by a reliable analytical laboratory, and 

any other pollutants of concern to the WRF; sampling and analysis shall be 

performed in accordance with procedures established by the EPA pursuant to 

section 304(g) of the Act and contained in 40 CFR, Part 136, as amended and as 

required in section 15-76 and 15-76.1  

d.  Time and duration of the indirect discharge; 

e.  Average daily and thirty (30) minute peak wastewater flow rates, including 

daily, monthly and seasonal variations if any; 

f.  Site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans and details to show all 

sewers, floor drains, sewer connections, director of flow and appurtenances by 

the size, location and elevation;  

g.Description of activities, facilities and plant processes on the premises 

including all materials which are or could be accidentally or intentionally 

discharged;  

h.  Where known, the nature and concentration of any pollutants in the discharge 

which are limited by any city, state, or federal pretreatment standards, and a 

statement regarding whether or not the pretreatment standards are being met on 

a consistent basis and if not, whether additional operation and maintenance 

(O&M) and/or additional pretreatment is required for the user to meet applicable 

pretreatment standards.  

i.  If additional pretreatment and/or O&M will be required to meet the 

pretreatment standards, the shortest schedule by which the user will provide 

such additional pretreatment. The completion date in this schedule shall not be 

longer than the compliance date established for the applicable pretreatment 

standard. The following conditions apply to this schedule.  

1.  The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates 

for the commencement and completion of major events leading to the 

contraction and operation of additional pretreatment required for the 

user to meet the applicable pretreatment standards. No increment in the 

schedule shall exceed nine (9) months.  

2.  No later than fourteen (14) days following each date in the schedule 

and the final date for compliance, the user shall submit a progress 

report to the pretreatment coordinator including, at a minimum, 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 6 of 54 

 

whether or not it complied with the increment of progress, the reason 

for any delay, and if appropriate, the steps being taken by the user to 

return to the established schedule. In no event shall more than nine 

months elapse between such progress to the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director.  

j.  Each product produced by type, amount, process or processes and rate of 

production; 

k.  Type and amount of raw materials processed (average and maximum per 

day); 

l.  Number and type of employees, and hours of operation of plant and proposed 

or actual hours of operation of pretreatment system; 

m.  If subject to a categorical standard, a baseline monitoring report in 

accordance with 40 CFR 403.12(b) and 15A NCAC 2H .0908(a), as outlined in 

section 15-74, of this article.  

n.  Any other information as may be deemed by the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director to be necessary to evaluate the permit application. 

     
Users required to obtain a significant industrial user permit shall complete and 
file with the City, an application in the form prescribed by the WRF Director 
and accompanied by an application fee in the amount prescribed in the schedule 
of charges and fees.  Significant industrial users shall apply for a significant 
industrial user permit within 90 days after notification of the WRF Directors 
determination in 15-73. (b)(1) above.  The application shall include at a 
minimum: 

  (A) name of industrial user; 
(B) address of industrial user; 
(C) standard industrial classification (SIC) code(s) or expected 
classification and industrial user category; 
(D) wastewater flow; 
(E) types and concentrations (or mass) of pollutants contained in the 
discharge; 
(F) major products manufactured or services supplied; 
(G) description of existing on-site pretreatment facilities and practices; 
(H) locations of discharge points; 
(I) raw materials used or stored at the site; 
(J) flow diagram or sewer map for the industrial user; 
(K) number of employees; 
(L) operation and production schedules; and 
(M) description of current and projected waste reduction activities in 
accordance with G.S. 143-215.1(g); 

 

 (6) 

Permit synopsis. A fact sheet providing a brief synopsis of the application shall be 

prepared by the WRF staff for submission to the applicant and the approval authority and 

shall be made available to the public upon request. The contents of such fact sheets shall 

include at least the following information:  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 7 of 54 

 

a.  A sketch and detailed description of the industrial facilities and pretreatment 

facilities including the location of all points of discharge to the WRF and all 

established compliance monitoring points.  

b.  A quantitative description of the discharge described in the application which 

includes at least the following: 

(i)  The rate of frequency of the proposed discharge, if the discharge is 

continuous, the average daily flow; 

(ii)  The actual average daily discharge in pounds per day of any 

limited pollutant and any pollutant identified in the application as 

known or suspected present; and  

(iii)  The basis for the pretreatment limitations including the 

documentation of any calculations in applying categorical pretreatment 

standards. 

 
Permit supporting documentation.  The WRF staff shall prepare the following 
documents for all Significant Industrial User permits. 
(a) An allocation table (AT) listing permit information for all Significant 
Industrial Users, including but not limited to permit limits, permit effective and 
expiration dates, and a comparison of total permitted flows and loads with 
Division approved maximum allowable loadings of the POTW, including flow, 
on forms or in a format approved by the Division.  The AT shall be updated as 
permits are issued or renewed, and as permits are modified where the permitted 
limits or other AT information is revised. 
(b) The basis, or rationale, for the pretreatment limitations, including the 
following: 
(i) documentation of categorical determination, including documentation 
of any calculations used in applying categorical pretreatment standards; and 
(ii) documentation of the rationale of any parameters for which monitoring 
has been waived under 40 CFR Part 403.12(e)(2). 

  

 (8)  Hearings.  

a.  Initial adjudicatory hearing. An applicant whose permit is denied, or is 

granted subject to conditions he deems unacceptable, a permittee/user assessed a 

civil penalty under section 15-80, or one (1) issued an administrative order 

under section 15-79 shall have the right to an adjudicatory hearing before the 

city manager upon making written demand, identifying the specific issues to be 

contested, to the city manager within thirty (30) days following receipt of the 

significant industrial user permit, civil penalty assessment, or administrative 

order. Unless such written demand is made within the time specified herein the 

action shall be final and binding and further appeal is barred.  For modified 

permits, only those parts of the permit being modified may be adjudicated.  The 

city manager shall make a final decision on the contested permit, penalty, or 

order within forty-five (45) days of the receipt of the written demand for a 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 8 of 54 

 

hearing. The city manager shall transmit a copy of the decision by registered or 

certified mail as described in paragraph (c) below.  The terms and conditions of 

a permit under appeal shall be as follows:  

(i)  New permits. Upon appeal, including judicial review in the general 

courts of justice, of the terms or conditions of a newly issued permit, 

the terms and conditions of the entire permit are stayed and the permit 

is not in effect until either the conclusion of judicial review or until the 

parties reach a mutual resolution.  

(ii)  Renewed permits. Upon appeal, including judicial review in the 

general courts of justice, of the terms or conditions of a renewed 

permit, the terms and conditions of the existing permit remain in effect 

until either the conclusion of judicial review or until the parties reach a 

mutual resolution.  

 

(iii) Terminated Permits.  Upon appeal, including judicial review in the 
General Courts of Justice, of a terminated permit, no permit is in effect 
until either the conclusion of judicial review or until the parties reach a 
mutual resolution. 

 

b.  Final appeal hearing. Any decision of the city manager made as a result of 

an adjudicatory hearing held under subsection a. above may be appealed, to the 

city council upon filing a written demand within ten (10) days of receipt of 

notice of the decision. Hearings held under this subdivision shall be conducted 

in accordance with the hearings procedure of the city. Failure to make written 

demand within the time specified herein shall bar further appeal. The city 

council shall make a final decision on the appeal within ninety (90) days of the 

date the appeal was filed from receipt of the demand filed under paragraph (a) 

and shall transmit a written copy of its decision by registered or certified mail as 

described in paragraph (c) below.  The decision is a final decision for the 

purposes of seeking judicial review. .  

c.  Official record. When a final decision is issued under subsection b. above, 

the city council shall prepare an official record of the case that includes:  

(i)  All notices, motions, and other like pleadings; 

(ii)  A copy of all documentary evidence introduced; 

(iii)  A certified transcript of all testimony taken, if testimony is 

transcribed. If testimony is taken and not transcribed, then a narrative 

summary of any testimony taken;  

(iv)  A copy of the final decision of the city council. 

d.  Judicial review. Any person against whom a final order or decision of the 

city council is entered pursuant to the hearing conducted under subsection c. (b) 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 9 of 54 

 

above, may apply for a writ of certeriorari from the order or decision of the city 

council (within thirty (30) days after receipt of notice by registered or certified 

mail of the order or decision, but not thereafter) to the Superior Court of Vance 

County. Upon the granting of the writ of certeriorari, the city shall send a 

transcript certified by the city clerk of all testimony and exhibits introduced 

before the city council, the order or decision, and the application for the writ of 

certeriorari to the superior court.  

Sec. 15-75.3. - Reports of changed conditions.  

Each user must notify the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director of any planned significant 

changes to the user's operations or systems which might alter the nature, quality, or volume of its 

wastewater at least sixty (60) days before the change.  The permittee shall not begin the changes until 

receiving written approval from the City.   See section 15-75.4(d), for other reporting requirements.  

(a)  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may require the user to submit such 

information as may be deemed necessary to evaluate the changed condition, including the 

submission of a wastewater discharge permit application under this article.  

(b)  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may issue a wastewater discharge permit 

under section 15-73, of this article or modify an existing wastewater discharge permit 

under section 15-73, of this article in response to changed conditions or anticipated 

changed conditions.  

(c)  For purposes of this requirement, significant changes include, but are not limited to, 

flow or pollutant increases of twenty-five (25) percent or greater, and the discharge of 

any previously unreported pollutants.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 10 of 54 

 

ORDINANCE  13-14 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE UPDATING THE SEWER USE ORDINANCE  
 

The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 
 
Section 1.  That Chapter 15 of the City Code be amended by deleting Divisions 2 through 7 
inclusive (Section 15-62 through 15-82b) and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“DIVISION 2. - REGULATIONS REGARDING THE DISCHARGE INTO THE CITY 
SANITARY SEWER * 

Sec. 15-62. - Purpose and policy 

This article sets forth uniform requirements for direct and indirect contributors unto the 

wastewater collection and treatment system for the City of Henderson, hereinafter referred to as the city, 

and enables the city to comply with all applicable state and federal laws, including the Clean Water Act (33 

U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.) and the General Pretreatment Regulations (40 CFR, Part 403). The objectives of this 

division are:  

(a)  To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the municipal wastewater system which 

will interfere with the operation of the system or contaminate the resulting sludge;  

(b)  To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the municipal wastewater system which 

will pass-through the system, inadequately treated, into any waters of the state or 

otherwise be incompatible with the system;  

(c)  To promote reuse and recycling of industrial wastewater and sludges from the 

municipal system; 

(d)  To protect both municipal personnel who may be affected by sewage, sludge, and 

effluent in the course of their employment as well as protecting the general public;  

(e)  To provide for equitable distribution of the cost of operation, maintenance and 

improvement of the municipal wastewater system; and  

(f)  To ensure that the municipality complies with its NPDES or nondischarge permit 

conditions, sludge use and disposal requirements and any other federal or state laws to 

which the municipal wastewater system is subject;  

This article provides for the regulation of direct and indirect contributors to the municipal 

wastewater system, through the issuance of permits to certain nondomestic users and through enforcement 

of general requirements for the other users, authorizes monitoring and enforcement activities, requires user 

reporting and provides for the setting of fees for the equitable distribution of costs resulting from the 

program established herein.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 11 of 54 

 

This article shall apply to all users of the municipal wastewater system as authorized by G.S. 

160A-312 and/or 153A-225. Except as otherwise provided herein, the city manager shall administer, 

implement, and enforce the provisions of this division. Any powers granted to or imposed upon the city 

manager may be delegated by the city manager to other city personnel. By discharging wastewater into the 

municipal wastewater system, industrial users located outside the city limits agree to comply with the terms 

and conditions established in this article, as well as any permits, enforcement actions, or orders issued 

hereunder (to which they each agree to be subject).  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-63. - Definitions and abbreviations.  

Unless the context specifically indicates otherwise, the following terms and phrases, as used in 

this article, shall have the meanings hereinafter designated:  

Act or "the act." The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known as the Clean Water Act, as 

amended, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.  

Approval authority. The Director of the Division of Water Quality of the North Carolina 

Department of Environment and Natural Resources or his designee.  

Authorized representative of the industrial user.  

(1)  If the industrial user is a corporation, authorized representative shall mean: 

a.  The president, secretary, or a vice-president of the corporation in charge of a 

principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy or 

decision making functions for the corporation, or  

b.  The manager of one (1) or more manufacturing production, or operation 

facilities employing more than two hundred fifty (250) persons or having gross 

annual sales or expenditures exceeding twenty-five million dollars 

($25,000,000.00) (in second-quarter 1980 dollars), if authority to sign 

documents has been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with 

corporate procedures.  

(2)  If the industrial user is a partnership or sole proprietorship, an authorized 

representative shall mean a general partner or the proprietor, respectively.  

(3)  If the industrial user is a federal, state or local government facility, an authorized 

representative shall mean a director or highest official appointed or designated to oversee 

the operation and performance of the activities of the government facility, or their 

designee.  

(4)  The individuals described in paragraphs (1)—(3) above may designate another 

authorized representative if the authorization is in writing, the authorization specifies the 

individual or position responsible for the overall operation of the facility from which the 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 12 of 54 

 

discharge originates or having overall responsibility for environmental matters for the 

user, and the written authorization is submitted to the city.  

(5)  If the designation of an authorized representative is no longer accurate because a 

different individual or position has responsibility for the overall operation of the facility, 

or overall responsibility for environmental matters for the company, a new authorization 

satisfying the requirements of this section must be submitted to WRF director prior to or 

together with any reports to be signed by an authorized representative.  

Biochemical oxygen demand (BOD). The quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical oxidation 

of organic matter under standard laboratory procedures for five (5) days at twenty (20) degrees centigrade, 

usually expressed as a concentration (e.g. mg/l).  

Building sewer. A sewer conveying wastewater from the premises of a user to the WRF.  

Bypass. The intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of a user's treatment facility.  

Categorical standards. National categorical pretreatment standards or pretreatment standard.  

Environmental protection agency or EPA. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, or where 

appropriate the term may also be used as a designation for the administrator or other duly authorized 

official of said agency.  

Grab sample. A sample which is taken from a waste stream on a one-time basis without regard to 

the flow in the waste stream and over a period of time not to exceed fifteen (15) minutes.  

Holding tank waste. Any waste from holding tanks, including but not limited to such holding tanks 

as vessels, chemical toilets, campers, trailers, septic tanks, and vacuum-pump tank trucks.  

Indirect discharge or discharge. The discharge or the introduction from any nondomestic source 

regulated under Section 307(b), (c), or (d) of the Act, (33 U.S.C. § 1317), into the WRF (including holding 

tank waste discharged into the system).  

Interference. The inhibition, or disruption of the WRF collection system, treatment processes, 

operations, or its sludge process, use, or disposal, which causes or contributes to a violation of any 

requirement of the WRF's NPDES, collection system, or nondischarge permit or prevents sewage sludge 

use or disposal in compliance with specified applicable state and federal statutes, regulations or permits. 

The term includes prevention of sewage sludge use or disposal by the WRF in accordance with section 405 

of the Act, (33 U.S.C. 1345) or any criteria, guidelines, or regulations developed pursuant to the Solid 

Waste Disposal Act (SWDA) (42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq.), the Clean Air Act, the Toxic Substances Act 

(MPRSA) or more stringent state criteria (including those contained in any state sludge management plan 

prepared pursuant to Title IV of SWDA) applicable to the method of disposal or use employed by the 

WRF.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 13 of 54 

 

Medical waste. Isolation wastes, infectious agents, human blood and blood products, pathological 

wastes, sharps, body parts, contaminated bedding, surgical wastes, potentially contaminated laboratory 

wastes, and dialysis wastes.  

National categorical pretreatment standards or categorical standard. Any regulation containing 

pollutant discharge limits promulgated by EPA in accordance with sections 307(b) and (c) of the Act (33 

U.S.C. § 1317) which applies to a specific category of industrial users, and which appears in 40 CFR 

Chapter 1, Subchapter N, Parts 405-471.  

National prohibitive discharge standard or prohibitive discharge standard. Absolute prohibitions 

against the discharge of certain substances; these prohibitions appear in section 15-64 of this article and are 

developed under the authority of 307(b) of the Act and 40 CFR, section 403.5.  

New source.  

(1)  Any building, structure, facility, or installation from which there may be a discharge 

of pollutants, the construction of which commenced after the publication of proposed 

categorical pretreatment standards under section 307(c) of the Act which will be 

applicable to such source if such standards are thereafter promulgated in accordance with 

section 307(c), provided that:  

(a)  The building, structure, facility, or installation is constructed at a site which 

no other source is located; or 

(b)  The building, structure, facility, or installation totally replaces the process or 

production equipment that causes the discharge of pollutants at an existing 

source; or  

(c)  The production or wastewater generating processes of the building, 

structure, facility, or installation are substantially independent of an existing 

source at the same site. In determining whether these are substantially 

independent, factors such as the extent to which the new facility is integrated 

with the existing plant, and the extent to which the new facility is engaged in the 

same general type of activity as the existing source, should be considered.  

(2)  Construction on a site at which an existing source is located results in a modification 

rather than a new source if the construction does not create a new building, structure, 

facility, or installation meeting the criteria of subsection (1)(b) or (c), above but 

otherwise alters, replaces, or adds to the existing process or production equipment.  

(3)  For purposes of this definition, construction of a new source has commenced if the 

owner or operator has: 

(a)  Begun, or caused to begin, as part of a continuous on-site construction 

program: 

1.  Any placement, assembly, or installation of facilities or equipment; 

or 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 14 of 54 

 

2.  Significant site preparation work including clearing, excavation, or 

removal of existing buildings, structures or facilities which is necessary 

for the placement, assembly, or installation of new source facilities or 

equipment; or  

(b)  Entered into a binding contractual obligation for the purchase of facilities or 

equipment which are intended to be used in its operation within a reasonable 

time. Options to purchase or contracts which can be terminated or modified 

without substantial loss, and contracts for feasibility, engineering, and design 

studies do not constitute a contractual obligation under this definition.  

Noncontact cooling water. Water used for cooling which does not come into direct contact with 

any raw material, intermediate product, waste product, or finished product.  

National pollution discharge elimination system or NPDES permit. A permit issued pursuant to 

section 402 of the Act (33 U.S.C. § 1342), or pursuant to G.S. 143-215.1 by the state under delegation from 

EPA.  

Nondischarge permit. A disposal system permit issued by the state pursuant to G.S. 143-215.1.  

Pass-through. A discharge which exits the WRF into waters of the state in quantities or 

concentrations which, alone or with discharges from other sources, causes a violation, including an increase 

in the magnitude or duration of a violation, of the WRF's NPDES, collection system, or nondischarge 

permit, or a downstream water quality standard even if not included in the permit.  

pH. A measure of the acidity or alkalinity of a substance, expressed as standard units, and 

calculated as the logarithm (base 10) of the reciprocal of the concentration of hydrogen ions expressed in 

grams per liter of solution.  

Pollutant. Any "waste" as defined in G.S. 143-213(18) and dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator 

residue, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, medical wastes, chemical wastes, biological materials, 

radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock sand, cellar dirt and industrial, 

municipal, and agricultural waste and certain characteristics of wastewater (e.g., pH, temperature, TSS, 

turbidity, color, metals, BOD, COD, toxicity, and odor).  

Pretreatment or treatment. That reduction of the amount of pollutants, the elimination of 

pollutants, or the alteration of the nature of pollutant properties, or the alteration of the nature of pollutant 

properties in wastewater prior to or in lieu of discharging or otherwise introducing such pollution into a 

WRF. The reduction or alteration can be obtained by physical, chemical or biological processes, or process 

changes or other means, except by diluting the concentration of the pollutants unless allowed by an 

applicable pretreatment standard.  

Pretreatment coordinator. The person working under the WRF director responsible for the daily 

oversight and operation of the pretreatment program.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 15 of 54 

 

Pretreatment program. The program for the control of pollutants introduced into the WRF from 

nondomestic sources which was developed by the city in compliance with 40 CFR 403.8 and approved by 

the approval authority as authorized by G.S. 143-215.3(a)(14) in accordance with 40 CFR 403.11.  

Pretreatment requirements. Any substantive or procedural requirement related to pretreatment, 

other than a pretreatment standard.  

Pretreatment standards. Prohibited discharge standards, categorical standards, and local limits.  

Severe property damage. Substantial physical damage to property, damage to the user's treatment 

facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and permanent loss of natural resources 

which can reasonably be expected to occur in the absence of a bypass. Severe property damage does not 

mean economic loss caused by delays in production.  

Significant industrial user. Any industrial users of the wastewater disposal system who:  

(1)  Has an average daily process wastewater flow of twenty-five thousand (25,000) 

gallons or more; or 

(2)  Contributes more than five percent of any design or treatment capacity (i.e. allowable 

pollutant load) of the WRF receiving the indirect discharge; or  

(3)  Is required to meet a national categorical pretreatment standard; or 

(4)  Is found by the city, the Division of Water Quality, or the U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency (EPA) to have the potential for impact, either singly or in combination 

with other contributing industrial users, on the wastewater treatment system, the quality 

of sludge, the system's effluent quality, or compliance with any pretreatment standards or 

requirements.  

Significant noncompliance. A status of noncompliance defined as follows: 

(1) Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits, defined here as those in which 

sixty-six (66) percent or more of all the measurements taken for the same 

pollutant parameter (not including flow) during a six month period exceed (by any 

magnitude) a numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including 

instantaneous limits, as defined by 40 CFR Part 403.3(l); 

(2) Technical Review Criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which thirty-

three (33) percent or more of all the measurements taken for the same pollutant 

parameter during a six-month period equal or exceed the product of the numeric 

Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including instantaneous limits, as defined 

by 40 CFR Part 403.3(l) multiplied by the applicable TRC; (TRC = 1.4 for BOD, 

TSS, fats, oil and grease, 1.2 for all other pollutants (except flow and pH); 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 16 of 54 

 

(3) Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as defined by 40 

CFR Part 403.3(l) (daily maximum, long-term average, instantaneous limit, or 

narrative standard) that the Control Authority and/or POTW determines has 

caused, alone or in combination with other discharges, interference or pass 

through (including endangering the health of POTW personnel or the general 

public); 

(4) Any discharge of a pollutant or wastewater that has caused imminent 

endangerment to human health, welfare or to the environment or has resulted in 

either the Control Authority’s or the POTW's, if different from the Control 

Authority, exercise of its emergency authority under 40 CFR Part 

403.8(f)(1)(vi)(B) and Section 15-79 (e) of this SUO to halt or prevent such a 

discharge;  

(5) Violations of compliance schedule milestones, contained in a pretreatment permit 

or enforcement order, for starting construction, completing construction, and 

attaining final compliance by ninety (90) days or more after the schedule date.  

(6) Failure to provide reports for compliance schedule, self-monitoring data, baseline 

monitoring reports, ninety (90) day compliance reports, and periodic compliance 

reports within thirty (30) days from the due date.  

(7) Failure to accurately report noncompliance. 

(8) Any other violation or group of violations that the city determines will adversely 

affect the operation or implementation of the local pretreatment program. 

Slug load or discharge. Any discharge at a flow rate or concentration which has a reasonable 

potential to cause interference or pass-through, or in any other way violates the WRF's regulations, local 

limits, or industrial user permit conditions. This can include but is not limited to spills and other accidental 

discharges; discharges of a nonroutine, episodic nature, a noncustomary batch discharge, or any other 

discharges that can cause a violation of the prohibited discharge standards in division 3, of this article.  

Standard industrial classification (SIC). A classification pursuant to the Standard Industrial 

Classification Manual issued by the Executive Office of the President, Office of Management and Budget, 

1987.  

Stormwater. Any flow occurring during or following any form of natural precipitation and 

resulting therefrom.  

Suspended solids. The total suspended matter that floats on the surface of, or is suspended in, 

water, wastewater or other liquids, and which is removable by laboratory filtering.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 17 of 54 

 

Upset. An exceptional incident in which there is unintentional and temporary noncompliance with 

categorical pretreatment standards because of factors beyond the reasonable control of the user. An upset 

does not include noncompliance to the extent caused by operational error, improperly designed treatment 

facilities, inadequate treatment facilities, lack of preventative maintenance, or careless or improper 

operation.  

Wastewater. The liquid and water carried industrial or domestic wastes from dwellings, 

commercial buildings, industrial facilities, mobile sources, treatment facilities and institutions, together 

with any groundwater, surface water, and stormwater that may be present, whether treatment or untreated, 

which are contributed into or permitted to enter the WRF.  

Wastewater permit. As set forth in section 15-73 of this article.  

Waters of the state. All streams, lakes, ponds, marshes, watercourse, waterways, wells, springs, 

reservoirs, aquifers, irrigation system, drainage systems and all other bodies or accumulations of water, 

surface or underground, natural or artificial, public or private, which are contained within, flow through, or 

border upon the state on any portion thereof.  

Water reclamation facility or municipal wastewater system (herein referred to as "WRF". A 

treatment works as defined by section 212 of the Act, (33 U.S.C. § 1292) which is owned in this instance 

by the City of Henderson. This definition includes any devices or systems used in the collection, storage, 

treatment, recycling, and reclamation of municipal sewage or industrial wastes of a liquid nature. It also 

includes sewers, pipes, and other conveyances only if they convey wastewater to the WRF treatment plant. 

For the purposes of this article, "WRF" shall also include any sewers that convey wastewater to the WRF 

from persons outside the city who are, by contract or agreement with the city, or in any other way, users of 

the city's WRF.  

WRF director. The person designated by the City of Henderson to supervise the operation of the 

water reclamation facility and who is charged with certain duties and responsibilities by this article, or his 

duly authorized representative. In the city's case the proper title is WRF director.  

WRF treatment plant. That portion of the WRF designed to provide treatment to wastewater.  

The following abbreviations when used in this article, shall have the designated meanings:  

(1)  BOD—Biochemical oxygen demand. 

(2)  CFR—Code of Federal Regulations. 

(3)  COD—Chemical oxygen demand. 

(4)  EPA—Environmental protection agency. 

(5)  gpd—Gallons per day. 

(6)  l—Liter. 

(7)  mg—Milligrams. 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 18 of 54 

 

(8)  mg/l—Milligrams per liter. 

(9)  G.S.—North Carolina General Statutes. 

(10)  NPDES—National pollution discharge elimination system. 

(11)  O & M—Operation and Maintenance. 

(12)  WRF—Water Reclamation Facility. 

(13)  RCRA—Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. 

(14)  SIC—Standard Industrial Classification. 

(15)  SWDA—Solid Waste Disposal Act. 

(16)  TSS—Total suspended solids. 

(17)  TKN—Total Kjeldahl nitrogen. 

(18)  U.S.C.—United States Code. 

Any reference in this chapter to any statute, code, ordinance, regulation, or law shall be deemed to 

also refer to any amendment, revision, modification, rewriting of the same and any substitution or 

replacement thereof.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  
 

 

FOOTNOTE(S): 
 

* Editor's note— An ordinace passed Sep. 8, 2008, repealed ch. 15, div. 2, §§ 15-62, 15-63, in its entirety 

and enacted new provisions to read as herein set out. Prior to amendment, div. 2 pertained to similar 

subject matter and derived from ordinances adopted May 3, 1994; Oct. 9, 2000, §§ 1(a)—(c); Mar. 26, 

2001, § 1 and Nov. 10, 2003, § 4 (Back) 

DIVISION 3. GENERAL SEWER USE REQUIREMENTS.* 

Sec. 15-64. - Prohibited discharge standards.  

(a) General prohibitions. No user shall contribute or cause to be contributed into the WRF, 

directly or indirectly, any pollutant or wastewater which causes interference or pass-through. 

These general prohibitions apply to all users of a WRF whether or not the user is a significant 

industrial user or subject to any national, state, or local pretreatment standards or requirements.  

(b)  Specific prohibitions. No user shall contribute or cause to be contributed into the WRF the 

following pollutants, substances, or wastewater:  

(1)  Pollutants which create a fire or explosive hazard in the WRF, including, but not 

limited to, waste streams with a closed cup flashpoint of less than one hundred forty 

(140) degrees Fahrenheit (sixty (60) degrees Celsius) using the test cup methods specified 

in 40 CFR 261.21. Prohibited materials include, but are not limited to, gasoline, kerosene, 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 19 of 54 

 

naphtha, benzene, toluene, xylene, ethers, alcohols, ketones, aldehydes, peroxides, 

chlorates, perchlorates, bromates, carbides, hydrides, and sulfides and any other 

substances which the city, the state or EPA has notified the user is a fire hazard or a 

hazard to the system. Consideration of accepting groundwater reclamation discharges 

containing petroleum products will be considered on a case by case basis and accepted 

only after approval by the City Council, the North Carolina Division of Water Quality 

and/or EPA and is found not to have a detrimental effect on the WRF. If accepted, such 

discharge shall be pretreated using the best available technology.  

(2)  Solid or viscous substances in amounts which will cause obstruction of the flow in 

the WRF resulting in interference but in no case solids greater than one-half (½) inch in 

any dimension. Such substances include, but are not limited to: grease, animal guts, or 

tissues, paunch, manure, bones, hair, hides, or fleshings, animal wastes, entrails, whole 

blood, feathers, ashes, cinders, sand, spent lime, stone or marble dust, metal, glass, straw, 

wastepaper, wood, plastics, gas, tar, asphalt, residues, residues from refining or 

processing of fuel or lubricating oil, mud, or glass grinding or polishing wastes.  

(3)  Petroleum oil, nonbiodegradable cutting oil, or products of mineral oil origin, in 

amounts that will cause interference or pass-through.  

(4)  Any wastewater having a pH less than 6.0 or more than 10.0 or wastewater having 

any other corrosive property capable of causing damage to the WRF or equipment.  

(5)  Any wastewater containing pollutants, including oxygen demanding pollutants, 

(BOD, etc) in sufficient quantity, (flow or concentration) either singly or by interaction 

with other pollutants, to cause interference.  

(6)  Any wastewater having a temperature greater than one hundred fifty (150) degrees 

Fahrenheit (sixty-six (66) degrees Celsius), or which will inhibit biological activity in the 

WRF resulting in interference, but in no case wastewater which causes the temperature at 

the introduction into the WRF to exceed one hundred four (104) degrees Fahrenheit 

(forty (40) degrees Celsius).  

(7)  Any pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors or fumes within the 

WRF in a quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety problems.  

(8)  Any trucked or hauled pollutants unless specifically authorized by the WRF director 

and at a discharge point specifically approved by the director.  

(9)  Any noxious or malodorous liquids, gases, or solids or other wastewater which, 

either singly or by interaction with other wastes, are sufficient to create a public nuisance 

or hazard to life or are sufficient to prevent entry into the sewers for maintenance and 

repair.  

(10)  Any substance which may cause the WRF's effluent or any other product of the 

WRF such as residues, sludges, or scums, to be unsuitable for reclamation and reuse or to 

interfere with the reclamation process. In no case, shall a substance discharged to the 

WRF cause the WRF to be in noncompliance with sludge use or disposal regulations or 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 20 of 54 

 

permits issued under section 405 of the Act; the Solid Waste Disposal Act, the Clean Air 

Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, or state criteria applicable to the sludge 

management method being used. Pollutants that significantly increase the cost of 

treatment and/or land application or sludge shall not be discharged unless approved by 

the WRF director.  

(11)  Any wastewater which imparts color which cannot be removed by the treatment 

process, including, but not limited to dye wastes and vegetable tanning solutions, which 

consequently imports sufficient color to the WRF's effluent to render the waters injurious 

to public health or secondary recreation or to aquatic life and wildlife or to adversely 

affect the palatability of fish or aesthetic quality or impair the receiving waters for any 

designated uses.  

(12)  Any wastewater containing any radioactive wastes or isotopes except as specifically 

approved by the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director in compliance with applicable 

state or federal regulations.  

(13)  Stormwater, surface water, groundwater, artesian well water, roof runoff, subsurface 

drainage, swimming pool drainage, condensate, deionized water, and unpolluted 

industrial wastewater, unless specifically authorized by the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director.  

(14)  Any sludges, screenings or other residues from the pretreatment of industrial 

wastes. 

(15)  Any medical wastes, except as specifically authorized by the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director in a wastewater discharge permit.  

(16)  Any material containing ammonia, ammonia salts, or other chelating agents which 

will produce metallic complexes that interfere with the municipal wastewater system.  

(17)  Any material that would be identified as hazardous waste according to 40 CFR Part 

261 if not disposed of in a sewer, except as may be specifically authorized by the 

pretreatment coordinator/WRF director.  

(18)  Any wastewater causing the WRF effluent to violate state water quality standards 

for toxic substances as described in 15A NCAC 2B .0200.  

(19)  Wastewater causing, alone or in conjunction with other sources, the WRF's effluent 

to fail a toxicity test. 

(20)  Recognizable portions of the human or animal anatomy. 

(21)  Any wastes containing detergents, surface active agents, or other substances which 

may cause excessive foaming in the municipal wastewater system.  

(22)  At no time, shall two successive readings on an explosion hazard meter, at the point 

of discharge into the system (or at any point in the system) be more than five (5) percent 

not any single reading over ten (10) percent of the lower explosive limit (LEL) of the 

meter.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 21 of 54 

 

(23)  Any uncontaminated water such as, but not limited to, uncontaminated cooling 

water and boiler blowdown water; provided, however, that the city may issue a discharge 

permit for these wastes if discharge to a natural stream or outlet in accordance with 

applicable state, local, and/or federal requirements and other disposition thereof is not 

feasible by reason of economic, environmental or financial constraints. All permits to 

discharge uncontaminated water into the City of Henderson Sanitary Sewer System shall 

be approved by the WRF director prior to such discharge.  

Pollutants, substances, wastewater, or other wastes prohibited by this section shall not be 

processed or stored in such a manner that they could be discharged to the municipal wastewater system. All 

floor drains located in process or materials storage areas must discharge to the industrial user's pretreatment 

facility before connecting with the system.  

When the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director determines that a user(s) is contributing to the 

WRF any of the above enumerated substances in such amounts which may cause or contribute to 

interference of WRF operation or pass-through, the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director shall:  

(1)  Advise the user(s) of the potential impact of the contribution on the WRF in 

accordance with section 15-79; and  

(2)  Take appropriate actions in accordance with division 5, of this article for such user to 

protect the WRF from interference or pass-through.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

 

Sec. 15-65. - Additional prohibitions.  

The pretreatment coordinator and/or the WRF director may establish certain specific 

concentrations and/or mass limits for potential toxic or hazardous pollutants such as, but not limited to, 

heavy metals, pesticides, herbicides, or other organic chemical compounds. Such limits shall be established 

by the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director when in his judgment the limits are necessary for the 

protection of the WRF, and discharging any pollutant in quantities or concentration in excess of the limits 

for that pollutant established by the city is prohibited.  

No statement contained in this article shall be construed as preventing any special agreement 

between the city and any person whereby an industrial waste may be admitted into the sanitary sewers by 

the city either before or after approved pretreatment, and subject to payment thereof by the industry as 

hereinafter provided. Such special arrangements between the city and any industrial user cannot be less 

stringent than any applicable federal or state pretreatment standard, nor can any special violation of the 

NPDES permit held by the city for the WRF be allowed.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-66. - National categorical pretreatment standards.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 22 of 54 

 

Users subject to categorical pretreatment standards are required to comply with applicable 

standards as set out in 40 CFR Chapter 1, Subchapter N, Parts 405-471 and incorporated herein.  

(a)  Where a categorical pretreatment standards is expressed only in terms of either the 

mass or the concentration of a pollutant on wastewater, the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF superintendent may impose equivalent concentration or mass limits in 

accordance with 40 CFR 403.6(c).  

(b)  When wastewater subject to a categorical pretreatment standard is mixed with 

wastewater not regulated by the same standard, the pretreatment coordinator/WRF 

director shall impose an alternate limit using the combined waste stream formula in 40 

CFR 403.6(e).  

(c)  A user may obtain a variance from a categorical pretreatment standard if the user can 

prove, pursuant to the procedural and substantive provisions in 40 CFR 403.13, that 

factors relating to its discharge are fundamentally different from the factors considered by 

EPA when developing the categorical pretreatment standard.  

(d)  A user may obtain a net gross adjustment to a categorical standard in accordance with 

40 CFR 403.15.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-67. - Local limits.  

An industrial waste survey is required prior to a user discharging wastewater containing in excess 

of the following average discharge limits.  

 mg/l 

BOD 300 

TSS 170 

COD 600.0 

TKN 35  

Phosphorous 8 

Arsenic 0.003 

Cadmium 0.003 

Copper .0645 

Cyanide 0.015 

Lead .05 

Mercury 0.0003 

Nickel .04 

Silver 0.005 

Chromium 0.05 

Zinc .18 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 23 of 54 

 

Phenols .05 

Oil & grease 75.0 

  

Industrial waste survey information will be used to develop user-specific local limits when 

necessary to ensure that the WRF's maximum allowable headworks loading are not exceeded for particular 

pollutants of concern. User-specific local limits for appropriate pollutants of concern shall be included in 

wastewater permits. The WRF director may impose mass based limits in addition to, or in place of 

concentration based limits.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-68. - State requirements.  

State requirements and limitations on discharges shall apply in any case where they are more 

stringent than federal requirements and limitations or those in this article.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-69. - Right of revision.  

The city reserves the right to establish limitations and requirements which are more stringent than 

those required by either state or federal regulations if deemed necessary to comply with the objectives 

presented in section 15-62 of this article or the general and specific prohibitions in this division of this 

article, as is allowed by 40 CFR 403.4.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

 

Sec. 15-70. - Dilution.  

No user shall ever increase the use of process water or, in any way, attempt to dilute a discharge as 

a partial or complete substitute for adequate treatment to achieve compliance with the limitations contained 

in the national categorical pretreatment standards, unless expressly authorized by an applicable 

pretreatment standard, or in any other pollutant specific limitation developed by the city or state.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-70.1. - Pretreatment of wastewater.  

(a)  Pretreatment facilities. Users shall provide wastewater treatment as necessary to comply with 

the article and wastewater permits issued under section 15-73 of this article and shall achieve 

compliance with all national categorical pretreatment standards, local limits, and the prohibitions 

set out in division 3 of this article within the time limitations as specified by EPA, the state, or the 

pretreatment coordinator/WRF director, whichever is more stringent. Any facilities necessary for 

compliance shall be provided, operated, and maintained at the user's expense. Detailed plans 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 24 of 54 

 

showing the pretreatment facilities and operating procedures shall be submitted to the city for 

review, and shall be approved by the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director before construction 

of the facility. The review of such plans and operating procedures shall in no way relieve the user 

from the responsibility of modifying the facility as necessary to produce an effluent acceptable to 

the city under the provisions of this article. Any subsequent changes in the pretreatment facilities 

or method of operation shall be reported to and be approved by the pretreatment coordinator/WRF 

director prior to the user's initiation of the changes.  

(b)  Additional pretreatment measures.  

(1)  Whenever deemed necessary, the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may 

require users to restrict their discharge during peak flow periods, designate that certain 

wastewater be discharged only into specific sewers, relocate and/or consolidate points of 

discharge, separate sewage waste streams from industrial waste streams, and meet such 

other conditions as may be necessary to protect the WRF and determine the user's 

compliance with the requirements of this article.  

(2)  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may require any person discharging into 

the WRF to install and maintain, on their property and at their expense, a suitable storage 

and flow-control facility to ensure equalization of flow. A wastewater discharge permit 

may be issued solely for flow equalization.  

(3)  Grease, oil, and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the 

pretreatment coordinator/WRF director, they are necessary for the proper handling of 

wastewater containing excessive amounts of grease and oil, or sand; except that such 

interceptors shall not be required for residential users. All interception units shall be of 

type and capacity approved by the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director and shall be so 

located to be easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. Such interceptors shall be 

inspected, cleaned, and repaired regularly, as needed, by the user at their expense.  

(4)  Users with the potential to discharge flammable substances may be required to install 

and maintain an approved combustible gas detection meter.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-71. - Accidental discharge/slug control plan.  

The WRF director shall evaluate whether each significant industrial user needs a plan or other 

action to control and prevent slug discharges and accidental discharges as defined in section 15-63. All 

SIUs must evaluated within one (1) year of being designated an SIU. The WRF director may require any 

user to develop, submit for approval, and implement such a plan or other specific action. Alternatively, the 

WRF director may develop such a plan for any user. All SIUs are required to notify the WRF immediately 

of any changes at its facility affecting the potential for spills and other accidental discharge, discharge of a 

nonroutine, episodic nature, a noncustomary batch discharge, or a slug load. Also see sections 15-75.3 and 

15-75.4. An accidental discharge/slug control plan shall address, at a minimum, the following:  

(a)  Description of discharge practices, including non-routine batch discharges; 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 25 of 54 

 

(b)  Description of stored chemicals; 

(c)  Procedures for immediately notifying the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director of 

any accidental or slug discharge as required by this chapter.  

(d)  Procedures to prevent adverse impact from any accidental or slug discharge. Such 

procedures include, but are not limited to, inspection and maintenance of storage areas, 

handling and transfer of materials, loading and unloading operations, control of plant site 

runoff, worker training, building of containment structures or equipment, measures for 

containing toxic organic pollutants, including solvents, and/or measures and equipment 

for emergency response.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

 

Sec. 15-71.1. - Hauled wastewater.  

(a)  Septic tank waste may be introduced into the WRF only at locations designated by the WRF 

director, and at such a time as are established by the WRF director. Such waste shall not violate 

division 3, of this article or any other requirements established by the city. The pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director may require any septic tank hauler to obtain a wastewater discharge 

permit.  

(b)  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director shall require haulers of industrial waste to obtain 

wastewater discharge permits. The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may require generators 

of hauled industrial waste to obtain wastewater discharge permits. The pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director also may prohibit the disposal of hauled industrial waste. The discharge 

of hauled industrial waste is subject to all other requirements of this article.  

(c)  Industrial waste haulers may discharge loads only at locations designated by the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director. No load may be discharged without prior consent of the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director. The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may require the industrial 

waste hauler to provide a waste analysis of any load prior to discharge.  

(d)  Industrial waste haulers must provide a waste-tracking form for every load. This form shall 

include, at a minimum, the name and address of the industrial waste hauler, permit number, track 

identification, names and addresses of sources of waste, and volume and characteristics of waste. 

The form shall identify the type of industry, known or suspected waste constituents, and whether 

any wastes are RCRA hazardous wastes. It shall be illegal for anyone to knowingly make any false 

or misleading statement or representation to the city relative to the above information.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-71.2 - Low pressure sewer systems.  

(a)  Purpose. The city understands the importance of properly designed and properly functioning 

wastewater treatment and disposal systems. The city also recognizes that gravity sewer 

service is not available in many areas of the ETJ/County and the lack of sewer service creates 

a hardship for many property owners.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 26 of 54 

 

The purpose of this section of the city Code is to help eliminate failing septic tanks and provide 

sewer service to existing lots of record that would not otherwise have sewer service. The ordinance is not 

intended to provide sewer to new subdivisions and new development and not intended to replace the 

installation of gravity sewer where gravity sewer is practical. The developer shall remain responsible for 

providing sewer service to those developments according to the city's existing ordinances and policies.  

(b)  Applicability. The low pressure system policy is intended to serve all homes and commercial 

establishments that exist on January 1, 2010 on roads with a sanitary sewer force main 

constructed within the road right-of-way or a city easement immediately adjacent to the road 

right-of-way. New single family homes and new commercial development constructed on lots 

of record as of January 1, 2010 on roads with a sanitary sewer force main constructed within 

the road right-of-way or an easement immediately adjacent to the road right-of-way would 

also be able to connect to the sanitary sewer force main under the provisions of this section. 

This ordinance is not intended to provide service to new lots being subdivided for 

development. If a property owner subdivides an existing lot of record into six (6) or fewer lots 

and all lots have frontage along the road containing the sewer force, the new lots would be 

able to receive sewer service under this section if there is sufficient capacity in the force main 

and each lot meets all other requirements as outlined in the section and city standards and 

specifications.  

The existing or proposed structure must be connected to the city water system if city water is 

available. If water is available and the structure is not connected, the property owner must agree to connect 

to the city water system and pay all applicable fees before sewer service hereunder is initiated. If water 

service is not available, the property owner shall agree to have a meter installed on their well in accordance 

with the latest standards to which will be used as the measure of the sewer flow for billing purposes.  

(c)  Policy. Under the ordinance, the city will allow, where feasible, connections of single family 

homes and commercial establishments to existing sewer force mains located in state rights-of-

way or in city easements immediately adjacent to the road right-of-way. The property owners 

must meet the requirements outlined in this section and pay all applicable fees.  

Where access to the city water system is available, the respective property owners must be 

connected to the city water system so the amount of sewer will be billed based upon actual water usage. 

Where access to the city water system is not readily available, the property owner must agree to have a 

meter installed on his well or other water source and have the sewer charges based upon measured flow 

from the well (or other water source) to the house. Where a meter cannot be installed on the well, the 

director of public utilities or assistant city manager may require a meter to be installed on the sewer flow or 

otherwise require satisfactory flow measurements to be generated by the particular use and establish a rate 

for the sewer service charge. The property owner shall be responsible for all costs of installing the meter.  

(d)  Procedures.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 27 of 54 

 

(1)  The city council shall establish the fees and charges associated with the low pressure 

sewer program on a regular basis. The fees and charges shall be established by ordinance 

and included within the other schedule of water and sewer fees and charges.  

(2)  Residential connections:  

a.  To receive service under this program and ordinance, the single family home 

property owner must make application to the city for sewer service and must 

meet all of the requirements of the ordinance including lot location and type of 

service. The engineering department and director of the water reclamation 

facility shall review the application to make sure that it meets the requirements 

of this section and plans meet city standards and specifications and that the 

specific low pressure sewer connection is feasible.  

b.  If the application meets the requirements of the program and is satisfactory to 

the city, the single family home property owner would be notified and the 

property owner would be advised of the estimated total amount of city fees that 

must be paid along with any other legal forms necessary for the city approval of 

the application.  

c.  The property owner and/or his engineer would then apply for NC DENR 

construction permit for installation of the sewer pump station.  

d.  Upon receipt of the NC DENR authorization to construct, the property owner 

would then schedule the work to be done. The installation shall only be 

performed by licensed plumbers in conjunction with licensed electricians and 

licensed engineers.  

e.The property owner responsible for hiring a properly licensed plumber or 

utility contractor and licensed electrician to provide a power source from the 

house to the proposed location of the sewer pump station. The cost of providing 

electricity to the pump station and the monthly electrical charges associated with 

operation of the station and proper maintenance of the pump station are the 

responsibility of the property owner.  

(3)  Commercial connections:  

a.  To receive service under this program, commercial property owners must 

make application to the city for sewer service and must meet all of the 

requirements for the program lot location and type of service. The city 

engineering department and director of the water reclamation facility shall 

review the application to make sure that it meets the requirements of this section 

and that the specific low pressure sewer connection is feasible.  

b.  If the application meets the requirements of the ordinance and is satisfactory 

to the city, the commercial property owner would be notified and the property 

owner would be notified of the estimated total amount of fees that must be paid 

to the city for the city's approval of the application.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 28 of 54 

 

c.  Upon payment of the fees and the execution of all required easements to the 

city, the public utility staff and director of the water reclamation facility would 

meet with the property owner to determine the exact location of the sewer tap. 

The commercial property owner would be responsible for hiring an engineering 

firm to prepare the drawings and NC DENR permit application necessary to 

install the pump station. Upon receipt of the NC DENR permit, the commercial 

property owner could install the required grinder pump station. The pump 

station must meet the minimum requirements of the city. The installation shall 

only be performed by licensed plumbers in conjunction with licensed 

electricians and licensed engineers. The property owner is responsible for hiring 

a properly licensed plumber or utility contractor and licensed electrician to 

provide a power source from the building being served to the proposed location 

of the sewer pump station. The cost of providing electricity to the pump station 

and the monthly electrical charges associated with operation of the station are 

the responsibility of the property owner.  

(4)  To minimize the number of connections to the major transmission mains, connections 

to major transmission mains must be spaced at least one thousand (1,000) feet apart. 

Where a property owner desires connection to the main closer than one thousand (1,000) 

feet from the nearest tap, a smaller force main shall be run to the nearest tap.  

(5)  The individual pump station shall be designed in such a manner to hold at least two 

hundred (200) gallons and be able to pump against a head condition of at least two 

hundred (200) feet.  

(6)  As new force mains are constructed within road rights-of-way, the city may notify 

the existing property owners who adjoin the road right-of-way that sewer service under 

this program may now be available.  

(7)  Once the individual pump stations are installed, the property owner responsibilities 

for operation and maintenance shall be the same as the other properties served by 

individual pump stations installed under other programs. The city shall NOT be 

responsible for the operation or maintenance (including failures to operate properly) of 

said pump stations.  

(8)  If the property is not connected to the city's water system and water is available, the 

property owner must make application and connect to the city water system prior to 

installation of the individual pump stations. If city water is not readily available, the 

property owner must pay to have a meter installed on their well (to be installed at the 

same time as the installation of the individual pump station).  

(9)  The city will install the tap from the primary main to the edge of the street right-of-

way; the city's responsibility shall be solely for the main as it lies within said right-of-

way. The maintenance of all of the sewer facilities (outside of the street right of way) is 

the sole responsibility of the property owners.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 29 of 54 

 

(10)  No taps will be allowed on force mains larger than six (6) inches. The city reserves 

the right to reject any or all connections to any existing force mains.  

(11)  Properties connected under this program shall pay the same base rate and sewer 

service charges as other customers connected to the city sewer system unless the city 

council provides otherwise.  

(12)  Under the low pressure sewer main policy of the City of Henderson, commercial 

and residential new structure owners must pay all tap fees at the time of application for 

service. Property owners of existing residential structures must pay all tap fees at the time 

of application for sewer service.  

(13)  All property owners are to recognize the potential problems in tapping a force sewer 

main or low pressure sewer main and are aware that considerable damages may result 

from the failure of any component of such a tap, pump station, protective valve, and other 

equipment utilized in tapping force mains and low pressure sewer systems; all of the 

property owners (and their heirs and assigns and successors in title), by utilizing said tap 

and systems, specifically assume such risks and agree to release and hold the City of 

Henderson (and its officers, employees, and contractors) harmless from any claims and 

liability arising from or growing out of any of the same. If requested, property owners 

agree to sign on behalf of themselves, their heirs, assigns, and successors in title, any 

documents (in the form approved by the city) reaffirming said assumptions of risks and 

release of liability and hold harmless agreements protecting the City of Henderson, which 

documents shall be in recordable form and reaffirm these covenants running with the 

land. Each property owner is encouraged to purchase and maintain insurance relative to 

potential back flow problems.  

(Ord. No. 10-5, § 1, 4-12-10)  

 
 

FOOTNOTE(S): 
 

(*) Editor's note— An ordinace passed Sep. 8, 2008, repealed ch. 15, div. 3, §§ 15-64—15-70, 15-70.1, 

15-71, 15-71.1, in its entirety and enacted new provisions to read as herein set out. Prior to amendment, 

div. 3 pertained to similar subject matter and derived from ordinances adopted May 3, 1994 and Nov. 10, 

2003, §§ 1, 3. (Back) 

DIVISION 4. FEES AND CHARGES. * 

Sec. 15-72. - Fees and charges.  

(a)  Purpose. It is the purpose of this chapter to provide for the recovery of costs from users of the 

City of Henderson wastewater disposal system and the implementation of the program established 

herein. The specific and applicable charges and/or fees shall be set forth in the City of Henderson's 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 30 of 54 

 

schedule of fees and charges which will be separately adopted in ordinance form by the city 

council, generally on an annual basis as part of the budget process, but may also be subject to 

periodic amendment by the city council on an "as needed" basis.  

(b)  User charges. A user charge shall be levied on all users including, but not limited to, persons, 

firms, corporations or governmental entities that discharge, cause or permit the discharge of 

sewage into the WRF.  

(1)  The user charge shall reflect at least the cost of debt service, operation and 

maintenance (including replacement) of the WRF.  

(2)  Each user shall pay its proportionate cost based on volume of flow. 

(3)  The City Manager of the City of Henderson shall review annually (or more 

frequently as necessary) the sewage contributions of users, the total costs of debt service, 

operation and maintenance of the WRF and will make recommendations to the City of 

Henderson City Council for adjustments in the schedule of charges and fees as necessary.  

(4)  Charges for flow to the WRF not directly attributable to the users shall be distributed 

among all users of the WRF based upon the volume of flow of the users.  

(c)  Surcharges. All industrial users of the WRF are subject to industrial waste surcharges on 

discharges which exceed the following levels with the rates per pound as set forth in the schedule 

of fees and charges adopted by the city council (in ordinance form):  

 mg/l 

BOD 300 

COD 600 

TSS 170 

TKN 35  

Phosphorous 8 

  

The amount of surcharges will be based upon the mass emission rate (in pounds per day) 

discharged above the levels listed above. The amount charged per pound of excess will be set forth in the 

schedule of fees and charges will be separately adopted in ordinance form by the city council.  

(d)  The volume of flow used in determining the total discharge of wastewater for payment of user 

charges and surcharges shall be based on the following:  

(1)  Metered water consumption as shown in the records of meter readings maintained by 

the City of Henderson; or 

(2)  If required by the City of Henderson or at the individual discharger's option, other 

flow monitoring devices which measure the actual volume of wastewater discharged to 

the sewer. Such devices shall be accessible and safely located, and the measuring system 

shall be installed in accordance with plans approved by the City of Henderson. The 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 31 of 54 

 

metering system shall be installed and maintained at the user's expense according to 

arrangements that may be made with the City of Henderson.  

(3)  Where any user procures all or part of his water supply from sources other than the 

City of Henderson, the user shall install and maintain at his own expense a flow 

measuring device of a type approved by the City of Henderson.  

(e)  The character and concentration of the constituents of the wastewater used in determining 

surcharges shall be determined by samples collected and analyzed by the City of Henderson. 

Samples shall be collected in such a manner as to be representative of the actual discharge and 

shall be analyzed using procedures set forth in 40 CFR Part 136.  

(f)  The determination of the character and concentration of the constituents of the wastewater 

discharge by the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director or his duly appointed representatives 

shall be binding as a basis for charges. Should split samples be taken by the user and there are 

large discrepancies in the results, the pretreatment coordinator may judge compliance and the 

surcharge rate based on the past six (6) months data of the user and of the city, provided the 

analyses were performed to local, state and federal requirements. The discrepancies must be larger 

than the accepted tolerances for wastewater tests as defined by the North Carolina Division of 

Water Quality.  

(g)  Pretreatment program administration charges. The schedule of charges and fees adopted by 

the City of Henderson may include charges and fees for:  

(1)  Reimbursement of costs of setting up and operating the pretreatment program; 

(2)  Monitoring, inspections and surveillance procedures; 

(3)  Reviewing slug control plans, including accidental and/or slug load discharge 

procedures and construction plans and specifications; 

(4)  Permitting; 

(5)  Sampling fees; 

(6)  Application fees; and 

(7)  Other fees as the City of Henderson may deem necessary to carry out the 

requirements of the pretreatment program. 

(h)  Sampling fees. Fees shall be paid by the user to the City of Henderson to cover the cost of 

individual sampling as set forth in the schedule of fees and charges adopted by the city council 

through technical ordinances (which may or may not be included within the budget ordinances).  

(i)  Application fees for new permits and renewals shall be charged as set forth in the schedule of 

fees and charges adopted by the city council through technical ordinances (which may or may not 

be included within the budget ordinances).  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

 
 

FOOTNOTE(S): 
 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 32 of 54 

 

(*) Editor's note— An ordinace passed Sep. 8, 2008, repealed ch. 15, div. 4, § 15-72, in its entirety and 

enacted new provisions to read as herein set out. Prior to amendment, div. 4 pertained to similar subject 

matter and derived from ordinances adopted May 3, 1994; Aug. 26, 1996, § 2 and Nov. 10, 2003, §§ 1—

3. (Back) 

DIVISION 5. WASTEWATER PERMIT APPLICATION AND ISSUANCE.* 

Sec. 15-73. - Permits.  

(a)  Wastewater dischargers. It shall be unlawful for any person to connect or discharge to the 

WRF without first obtaining the permission of the City of Henderson. When requested by the 

pretreatment coordinator/WRF director, a user must submit information on the nature and 

characteristics of its wastewater within thirty (30) days of the request. The pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director is authorized to prepare a form for this purpose and may periodically 

require users to update this information. It shall be illegal for anyone to knowingly make any false 

statement or representation to the city relative to this information.  

(b)  Wastewater permits. All significant industrial users shall obtain a significant industrial user 

permit prior to the commencement of discharge to the WRF. Existing industrial users who are 

determined by the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director to be significant industrial users shall 

obtain a significant industrial user permit within one hundred eighty (180) days of receiving 

notification of the WRF director's determination. Industrial users who do not fit the significant 

industrial user criteria may at the discretion of the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director be 

required to obtain a wastewater discharge permit for nonsignificant industrial users.  

(1)  Significant industrial user determination. All persons proposing to discharge 

nondomestic wastewater, or proposing to change the volume or characteristics of an 

existing discharge of nondomestic wastewater, shall first request from the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director a significant industrial user determination. If the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director determines or suspects that the proposed discharge fits the 

significant industrial user criteria he will require that a significant industrial user permit 

application be filed.  

(2)  Significant industrial user permit application. 

     
Users required to obtain a significant industrial user permit shall complete and 
file with the City, an application in the form prescribed by the WRF Director 
and accompanied by an application fee in the amount prescribed in the schedule 
of charges and fees.  Significant industrial users shall apply for a significant 
industrial user permit within 90 days after notification of the WRF Directors 
determination in 15-73. (b)(1) above.  The application shall include at a 
minimum: 

  (a) name of industrial user; 
(b) address of industrial user; 
(d) standard industrial classification (SIC) code(s) or expected 
classification and industrial user category; 
(d) wastewater flow; 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 33 of 54 

 

(e) types and concentrations (or mass) of pollutants contained in the 
discharge; 
(f) major products manufactured or services supplied; 
(g) description of existing on-site pretreatment facilities and practices; 
(h) locations of discharge points; 
(i) raw materials used or stored at the site; 
(j) flow diagram or sewer map for the industrial user; 
(k) number of employees; 
(l) operation and production schedules; and 
(m) description of current and projected waste reduction activities in 
accordance with G.S. 143-215.1(g); 

 

(3)  Application signatories and certification. All wastewater discharge permit 

applications and user reports must be signed by the current authorized representative of 

the user on file with the WRF as defined in section 15-63 and contain the following 

certification statement:  

"I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared 

under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure 

that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. 

Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those 

persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted 

is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate and complete. I am aware 

that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the 

possibility of fine and imprisonment for known violations."  

It shall be illegal to knowingly make any false statement or representation relative to the 

above.  

(4)  Application review and evaluation. The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director will 

evaluate the data furnished by the user and may require additional information.  

a.  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director is authorized to accept 

applications for the City of Henderson and shall refer all applications to the 

WRF staff for review and evaluation.  

b.  Within thirty (30) days of receipt the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director 

shall acknowledge and accept the complete application; or if not complete, shall 

return the application to the applicant with a statement of what additional 

information is required.  

(5)  Tentative determination and draft permit.  

a.  The WRF staff shall conduct a review of the application and an on-site 

inspection of the significant industrial user, including any pretreatment facilities, 

and shall prepare a written evaluation and tentative determination to issue or 

deny the significant industrial user permit.  

b.  If the staff's tentative determination in paragraph a above is to issue the 

permit, the following additional determinations shall be made in writing.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 34 of 54 

 

(i)  Proposed discharge limitations for those pollutants proposed to be 

limited; 

(ii)  A proposed schedule of compliance, including interim dates and 

requirements, for meeting the proposed limitations; and 

(iii)  A brief description of any other proposed special conditions which 

will have significant impact upon the discharge described in the 

application.  

c.  The staff shall organize the determinations made pursuant to Paragraphs (a) 

and (c) above and the general permit conditions of the city  into a significant 

industrial user permit. 

 

(6)  Permit supporting documentation.  The WRF staff shall prepare the following 

documents for all Significant Industrial User permits. 

 
(a)  An allocation table (AT) listing permit information for all Significant 
Industrial Users, including but not limited to permit limits, permit effective and 
expiration dates, and a comparison of total permitted flows and loads with 
Division approved maximum allowable loadings of the POTW, including flow, 
on forms or in a format approved by the Division.  The AT shall be updated as 
permits are issued or renewed, and as permits are modified where the permitted 
limits or other AT information is revised. 
(b)  The basis, or rationale, for the pretreatment limitations, including the 
following: 
 

(i) documentation of categorical determination, including documentation 
of any calculations used in applying categorical pretreatment standards; and 
(ii) documentation of the rationale of any parameters for which monitoring 
has been waived under 40 CFR Part 403.12(e)(2). 

  

(7)  Final action on significant industrial user permit applications.  

a.  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director shall take final action on all 

applications not later than ninety (90) days following receipt of a complete 

application.  

b.  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director is authorized to: 

(i)  Issue a significant industrial user permit containing time schedules 

for achieving compliance with applicable pretreatment standards and 

requirements.  

(ii)  Issue a significant industrial user permit containing time schedules 

for achieving compliance with applicable pretreatment standards and 

requirements;  

(iii)  Modify any permit upon not less than sixty (60) day's notice and 

pursuant to subsection (4), hereof; 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 35 of 54 

 

(iv)  Revoke any permit pursuant to division 7, of this article; 

(v)  Suspend a permit pursuant to division 7, of this article; 

(vi)  Deny a permit application where in the opinion of the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director such discharge may cause or contribute to 

pass-through or interference of the WRF or where necessary to 

effectuate the purposes of G.S. 143-215.1.  

(8)  Hearings.  

a.  Initial adjudicatory hearing. An applicant whose permit is denied, or is 

granted subject to conditions he deems unacceptable, a permittee/user assessed a 

civil penalty under section 15-80, or one (1) issued an administrative order 

under section 15-79 shall have the right to an adjudicatory hearing before the 

city manager upon making written demand, identifying the specific issues to be 

contested, to the city manager within thirty (30) days following receipt of the 

significant industrial user permit, civil penalty assessment, or administrative 

order. Unless such written demand is made within the time specified herein the 

action shall be final and binding and further appeal is barred.  For modified 

permits, only those parts of the permit being modified may be adjudicated.  The 

city manager shall make a final decision on the contested permit, penalty, or 

order within forty-five (45) days of the receipt of the written demand for a 

hearing. The city manager shall transmit a copy of the decision by registered or 

certified mail as described in paragraph (c) below.  The terms and conditions of 

a permit under appeal shall be as follows:  

(i)  New permits. Upon appeal, including judicial review in the general 

courts of justice, of the terms or conditions of a newly issued permit, 

the terms and conditions of the entire permit are stayed and the permit 

is not in effect until either the conclusion of judicial review or until the 

parties reach a mutual resolution.  

(ii)  Renewed permits. Upon appeal, including judicial review in the 

general courts of justice, of the terms or conditions of a renewed 

permit, the terms and conditions of the existing permit remain in effect 

until either the conclusion of judicial review or until the parties reach a 

mutual resolution.  

 

(iii)  Terminated Permits.  Upon appeal, including judicial review in the 
General Courts of Justice, of a terminated permit, no permit is in effect 
until either the conclusion of judicial review or until the parties reach a 
mutual resolution. 

 

b.  Final appeal hearing. Any decision of the city manager made as a result of 

an adjudicatory hearing held under subsection a. above may be appealed, to the 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 36 of 54 

 

city council upon filing a written demand within ten (10) days of receipt of 

notice of the decision. Hearings held under this subdivision shall be conducted 

in accordance with the hearings procedure of the city. Failure to make written 

demand within the time specified herein shall bar further appeal. The city 

council shall make a final decision on the appeal within ninety (90) days from 

receipt of the demand filed under paragraph (a) and shall transmit a written copy 

of its decision by registered or certified mail as described in paragraph (c) 

below.  The decision is a final decision for the purposes of seeking judicial 

review.   

c.  Official record. When a final decision is issued under subsection b. above, 

the city council shall prepare an official record of the case that includes:  

(i)  All notices, motions, and other like pleadings; 

(ii)  A copy of all documentary evidence introduced; 

(iii)  A certified transcript of all testimony taken, if testimony is 

transcribed. If testimony is taken and not transcribed, then a narrative 

summary of any testimony taken;  

(iv)  A copy of the final decision of the city council. 

d.  Judicial review. Any person against whom a final order or decision of the 

city council is entered pursuant to the hearing conducted under subsection (b) 

above, may apply for a writ of certeriorari from the order or decision of the city 

council (within thirty (30) days after receipt of notice by registered or certified 

mail of the order or decision, but not thereafter) to the Superior Court of Vance 

County. Upon the granting of the writ of certeriorari, the city shall send a 

transcript certified by the city clerk of all testimony and exhibits introduced 

before the city council, the order or decision, and the application for the writ of 

certeriorari to the superior court.  

(9)Permit modification.  

a.  Modifications of permits shall be subject to the same procedural requirements 

as the issuance of permits except as listed below. Any changes or new 

conditions in the permit shall include a reasonable time schedule for compliance.  

(i)  Changes in the ownership of the discharge when no other change in 

the permit is indicated; 

(ii)  A single modification of any compliance schedule not in excess of 

four (4) months; 

(iii)  Modification of compliance schedules (construction schedules) in 

permits for new sources where the new source will not begin to 

discharge until control facilities are operational.  

b.  Within nine (9) months of the promulgation of a national categorical 

pretreatment standard, the wastewater discharge permit of users subject to such 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 37 of 54 

 

standards shall be revised to require compliance with such standard within the 

time frame prescribed by such standard. Where a user, subject to a national 

categorical pretreatment standard, has not previously submitted an application 

for a wastewater discharge permit as required by this article, the user shall apply 

for a wastewater discharge permit within one hundred eighty (180) days after the 

promulgation of the applicable national categorical pretreatment standard.  

c.  A request for a modification by the permittee shall constitute a waiver of the 

sixty (60) day notice required by G.S. 143-215.1(b) for modifications.  

(10)  Permit conditions.  

a.  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director shall have the authority to grant a 

permit with such conditions attached as he believes necessary to achieve the 

purpose of this article and G.S. 143-215.1. Wastewater permits shall contain, but 

are not limited to, the following:  

(i)  A statement of duration (in no case more than five (5) years); 

(ii)  A statement of nontransferability; 

(iii)  Applicable effluent limits based on categorical standards or local 

limits or both; 

(iv)  Applicable monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and 

record keeping requirements. These requirements shall include an 

identification of pollutants to be monitored, sampling location, 

sampling frequency, and sample type based on federal, state, and local 

law;  

(v)  Requirements for notifying the WRF in the event of an accidental 

discharge or slug load as defined in section 15-63  

(vi)  Requirements to implement a plan or other controls for prevention 

of accidental discharges and/or slug loads as defined in section 15-63, 

if determined by the WRF director to be necessary for the user; and  

(vii)  Requirements for immediately notifying the WRF of any changes 

at its facility affecting the potential for spills and other accidental 

discharges, or slug load as defined in 15-63. Also see sections 15-75.3 

and 15-75.4  

(viii)  A statement of applicable civil and criminal penalties for 

violation of pretreatment standards and requirements and any 

applicable compliance schedule.  

b.  In addition, permits may contain, but are not limited to, the following: 

(i)  Limits on the average and/or maximum rate of discharge, and/or 

requirements for flow regulation and equalization. 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 38 of 54 

 

(ii)  Limits on the instantaneous, daily and monthly average and/or 

maximum concentration, mass, or other measure of identified 

wastewater pollutants or properties.  

(iii)  Requirements for the installation of pretreatment technology or 

construction of appropriate containment devices, etc. designed to 

reduce, eliminate, or prevent the introduction of pollutants into the 

treatment works.  

(iv)  Development and implementation of waste minimization plans to 

reduce the amount of pollutants discharged to the municipal wastewater 

system.  

(v)  The unit charge or schedule of user charges and fees for the 

management of the wastewater discharged to the system. 

(vi)  Requirements for installation and maintenance of inspection and 

sampling facilities and equipment. 

(vii)  Specifications for monitoring programs which may include 

sampling locations, frequency of sampling, number, types, and 

standards for tests, and reporting schedules.  

(viii)  Requirements for immediate reporting of any instance of 

noncompliance and for automatic re-sampling and reporting within 

thirty (30) days where self-monitoring indicates a violation(s).  

(ix)  Compliance schedules for meeting pretreatment standards and 

requirements. 

(x)  Requirements for submission of periodic self-monitoring or special 

notification reports. 

(xi)  Requirements for maintaining and retaining plans and records 

relating to wastewater discharges as specified in this article and 

affording the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director, or his 

representatives, access thereto.  

(xii)  Requirements for prior notification and approval by the 

pretreatment coordinator/WRF director of any new introduction of 

wastewater pollutants or of any significant change in the volume or 

character of the wastewater prior to introduction in the system.  

(xiii)  Requirements for the prior notification and approval by the 

pretreatment coordinator/WRF director of any change in the 

manufacturing and/or pretreatment process used by the permittee.  

(xiv)  A statement that compliance with the permit does not relieve the 

permittee of responsibility for compliance with all applicable federal 

and state pretreatment standards, including those which become 

effective during the terms of the permit.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 39 of 54 

 

(xv)  Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director to ensure compliance with this chapter, and 

state and federal laws, rules, and regulations.  

(11)  Permits duration. Permits shall be issued for a specified time period, not to exceed 

five (5) years. A permit may be issued for a period less than a year or may be stated to 

expire on a specific date.  

(12)  Permit transfer. Wastewater permits are issued to specific user for a specific 

operation. A wastewater discharge permit shall not be reassigned or transferred or sold to 

a new owner, new user, different premises, or a new or changed operation.  

(13)  Permit reissuance. A significant industrial user shall apply for permit reissuance by 

submitting a complete permit application in accordance with this divisions a minimum of 

one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the expiration of the existing permit.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

 
 

FOOTNOTE(S): 
 

(*) Editor's note— An ordinance passed Sep. 8, 2008, repealed ch. 15, div. 5, § 15-73, in its entirety and enacted 

new provisions to read as herein set out. Prior to amendment, div. 5 pertained to similar subject matter and derived 

from an ordinance adopted May 3, 1994. (Back) 

DIVISION 6. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.* 

Sec. 15-74. - Baseline monitoring reports.  

(a)  Within either one hundred eighty (180) days after the effective date of a categorical 

pretreatment standard, or the final administrative decision on a category determination under 40 

CFR 403.6(a)(4), whichever is later, existing categorical users currently discharging to or 

scheduled to discharge to the WRF shall submit to the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director a 

report which contains the information listed in paragraph (b) below. At least ninety (90) days prior 

to commencement of their discharge, new sources, and sources that become categorical users 

subsequent to the promulgation of an applicable categorical standard, shall submit to the 

pretreatment coordinator/WRF director a report which contains the information listed in paragraph 

(b), below. A new source shall report the method of pretreatment it intends to use to meet 

applicable categorical standards. A new source also shall give estimates of its anticipated flow and 

quantity of pollutants to be discharged.  

(b)  Users described above shall submit the information set forth below. It shall be illegal for any 

person to knowingly make any false statement or representation relative thereto.  

(1)  Identifying information. The name and address of the facility, including the name of 

the operator and owner.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 40 of 54 

 

(2)  Environmental permits. A list of any environmental control permits held by or for the 

facility.  

(3)  Description of operations. A brief description of the nature, average rate of 

production, and standard industrial classifications of the operation(s) carried out by such 

user. This description should include a schematic process diagram which indicates points 

of discharge to the WRF from the regulated processes.  

(4)  Flow measurement. Information showing the measured average daily and maximum 

daily flow, in gallons per day, to the WRF from regulated process streams and other 

streams as necessary to allow use of the combined waste stream formula set out in this 

article.  

(5)  Measurement of pollutants.  

a.  The categorical pretreatment standards applicable to each regulated process. 

b.  The results of sampling and analysis identifying the nature and concentration, 

and/or mass, where required by the standard or by the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director, of regulated pollutants in the discharge from each 

regulated process. Instantaneous, daily maximum, and long-term average 

concentrations, or mass, where required, shall be reported. The sample shall be 

representative of daily operations and shall be analyzed in accordance with 

procedures set out in this article.  

c.  Sampling must be performed in accordance with procedures set out in section 

15-76.1 of this article and 40 CFR 403.12(b) and (g), including 40 CFR 

403.12(g)(4).  

(6)  Certification. A statement, reviewed by the user's current authorized representative as 

defined in section 15-63 and certified by a qualified professional, indicating whether 

pretreatment standards are being met on a consistent basis, and, if not, whether additional 

operation and maintenance (O&M) and/or additional pretreatment is required to meet the 

pretreatment standards and requirements.  

(7)  Compliance schedule. If additional pretreatment and/or O&M will be required to 

meet pretreatment standards, the shortest schedule by which the user will provide such 

additional pretreatment and/or O&M. The completion date in this schedule shall not be 

later than the compliance date established for the applicable pretreatment standard. A 

compliance schedule pursuant to this section must meet the requirements set out in this 

article.  

(8)  Signature and certification. All baseline monitoring report must be signed and 

certified in accordance with section 15-73(b)(3), hereof.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-75. - Compliance schedule progress reports.  

The following conditions shall apply to the compliance schedule required by this article:  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 41 of 54 

 

(a)  The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates for the 

commencement and completion of major events leading to the construction and operation 

of additional pretreatment required for the user to meet the applicable pretreatment 

standards. (Such events include, but are not limited to, hiring an engineer, completing 

preliminary and final plans, executing contracts for major components, commencing and 

completing construction, and beginning and conducting routine operation.);  

(b)  No increment referred to above shall exceed nine (9) months; 

(c)  The user shall submit a progress report to the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director 

no later than fourteen (14) days following each date in the schedule and the final date of 

compliance including, as a minimum, whether or not it complied with the increment of 

progress, the reason for any delay, and, if appropriate, the steps being taken by the user to 

return to the established schedule; and  

(d)  In no event shall more than nine (9) months elapse between such progress reports to 

the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director. 

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-75.1. - Reports on compliance with categorical pretreatment standard deadline.  

Within ninety (90) days following the date for final compliance with applicable categorical 

pretreatment standards, or in the case of a new source following commencement of the introduction of 

wastewater into the WRF, any user subject to such pretreatment standards and requirements shall submit to 

the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director a report containing the information described in this division of 

this chapter. For users subject to equivalent mass or concentration limits established in accordance with the 

procedures in 40 CFR 403.6(c), this report shall contain a reasonable measure of the user's long term 

production rate. For all other users subject to categorical pretreatment standards expressed in terms of 

allowable pollutant discharge per unit of production (or other measure of operation), this report shall 

include the user's actual production during the appropriate sampling period. All compliance reports must be 

signed and certified in accordance with section 15-73(b)(3), of this article.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-75.2. - Periodic compliance reports.  

(a)  All significant industrial users shall, at a frequency determined by the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director but in no case less than once every six (6) months, submit a report 

indicating the nature and concentration of pollutants in the discharge which are limited by 

pretreatment standards and the applicable flows for the reporting period. Sampling and analysis 

must be performed in accordance with procedures set out in section 15-76 and 15-76.1 of this 

article. All periodic compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with section 

15-73(b)(3), of this article.  

(b)  All wastewater samples must be representative of the user's discharge. Wastewater monitoring 

and flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, kept clean, and maintained in good 

working order at all times. The failure of a user to keep its monitoring facility in good working 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 42 of 54 

 

order shall not be grounds for the user to claim that sample results are unrepresentative of its 

discharge.  

(c)  If a user subject to the reporting requirement in this section monitors any pollutant more 

frequently than required by the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director, using the procedures 

prescribed in this division, the results of this monitoring shall be included in the report.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

 

Sec. 15-75.3. - Reports of changed conditions.  

Each user must notify the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director of any planned significant 

changes to the user's operations or systems which might alter the nature, quality, or volume of its 

wastewater at least sixty (60) days before the change.  The permittee shall not begin the changes until 

receiving written approval from the City.   See section 15-75.4(d), for other reporting requirements.  

(a)  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may require the user to submit such 

information as may be deemed necessary to evaluate the changed condition, including the 

submission of a wastewater discharge permit application under this article.  

(b)  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may issue a wastewater discharge permit 

under section 15-73, of this article or modify an existing wastewater discharge permit 

under section 15-73, of this article in response to changed conditions or anticipated 

changed conditions.  

(c)  For purposes of this requirement, significant changes include, but are not limited to, 

flow or pollutant increases of twenty-five (25) percent or greater, and the discharge of 

any previously unreported pollutants.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-75.4. - Reports of potential problems.  

(a)  In the case of any discharge, including, but not limited to, accidental discharges, discharges of 

a non-routine, episodic nature, a non-customary batch discharge, or a slug load as defined in 

section 15-63, that may cause potential problems for the WRF, the user shall immediately 

telephone and notify the WRF director (at 431-6080 or his current telephone number) of the 

incident. This notification shall include the location of the discharge, type of waste, concentration 

and volume, if known, and corrective actions taken by the user.  

(b)  Within five (5) days following such discharge, the user shall, unless waived by the 

pretreatment coordinator/WRF director, submit a detailed report describing the cause(s) of the 

discharge and the measures to be taken by the user to prevent similar future occurrences. Such 

notification shall not relieve the user of any expense, loss, or damage, or other liability which may 

be incurred as a result of damage to the WRF, natural resources, or any other damage to person or 

property, nor shall such notification relieve the user of any fines, penalties or other liability which 

may be imposed pursuant to this article or otherwise.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 43 of 54 

 

(c)  A notice shall be permanently posted on the user's bulletin board or other prominent place 

advising employees who to call in the event of a discharge described in paragraph (a), above. 

Employers shall ensure that all employees, who may cause such a discharge to occur, are advised 

of the emergency notification procedure.  

(d)  All SIUs are required to notify the WRF immediately of any changes at its facility affecting 

the potential for spills and other accidental discharge, discharge of a nonroutine, episodic nature, a 

noncustomary batch discharge, or a slug load as defined in section 15-63. 

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-75.5. - Reports from unpermitted users.  

All users not required to obtain a wastewater discharge permit shall provide appropriate reports to 

the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director as required.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-75.6. - Notice of violation/repeat sampling and reporting.  

(a)  If sampling performed by a user indicates a violation, the user must notify the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director within twenty-four (24) hours of becoming aware of the violation. The 

user shall also repeat the sampling and analysis and submit the results of the repeat analysis to the 

pretreatment coordinator/WRF director within thirty (30) days after becoming aware of the 

violation. If allowed by the WRF director, the user is not required to resample.  

(i)  If the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director monitors at the user's facility at least 

once a month, or 

(ii)  If the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director samples between the user's initial 

sampling and when the user receives the results of this sampling. The city shall notify the 

user in writing whether or not repeat sampling is required.  

(b)  If the WRF director does not require the user to perform any self-monitoring and the WRF 

sampling of the user indicates a violation, the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director shall repeat 

the sampling and obtain the results of the repeat analysis within thirty (30) days after becoming 

aware of the violations, unless one (1) of the following occurs:  

(i)  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director monitors at the user's facility at least once 

a month; or 

(ii)  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director samples the user between their initial 

sampling and when the WRF receives the results of this initial sampling; or  

(iii)  The WRF director requires the user to perform sampling and submit the results to 

the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director within the thirty (30) day deadline of the 

WRF becoming aware of the violation.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-75.7. - Notification of the discharge of hazardous waste.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 44 of 54 

 

The City of Henderson prohibits the discharge of hazardous waste into the city sewer collection 

system. Any user who makes such discharge shall notify the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director 

immediately.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-76. - Analytical requirements.  

All pollutant analyses, including sampling techniques, to be submitted as part of a wastewater 

discharge permit application or report shall be performed in accordance with the techniques prescribed in 

40 CFR Part 136, unless otherwise specified in an applicable categorical pretreatment standard. If 40 CFR 

Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the pollutant in question, sampling and 

analyses must be performed in accordance with procedures approved by EPA.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-76.1. - Grab and composite sample collection.  

(a)  All wastewater samples must be representative of the user's discharge. Wastewater monitoring 

and flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, kept clean, and maintained in good 

working order at all times. The failure of a user to keep its monitoring facility in good working 

order shall not be grounds for the user to claim that sample results are unrepresentative of its 

discharge.  

(b)  Grab samples must be used for pH, cyanide, total phenols, oil and grease, sulfide, volatile 

organic compounds, and any other pollutants as required by 40 CFR 136. The WRF shall 

determine the number of grabs necessary to be representative of the User's discharge. See 40 CFR 

403.12(g)(5) for additional grab sample number requirements for BMR and 90-Day Compliance 

Reports. Additionally, the WRF director may allow collection of multiple grabs during a twenty-

four (24) hour period which are composited prior to analysis as allowed under 40 CFR 136.  

(c)  Composite samples: All wastewater composite samples shall be collected with a minimum of 

hourly aliquots or grabs for each hour that there is a discharge. All wastewater composite samples 

shall be collected using flow proportional composite collection techniques, unless time-

proportional composite sampling or grab sampling is authorized by the WRF director. When 

authorizing time-proportional composites or grabs, the samples must be representative and the 

decision to allow the alternative sampling must be documented.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-76.2. - Timing.  

Written reports will be deemed to have been submitted on the date postmarked. For reports which 

are not mailed, postage prepaid, into a mail facility serviced by the United States Postal Service, the date of 

receipt of the report shall govern.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-77. - Recordkeeping.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 45 of 54 

 

Users subject to the reporting requirements of this article shall retain, and make available for 

inspection and copying, all records of information obtained pursuant to any monitoring activities required 

by this article and any additional records of information obtained pursuant to monitoring activities 

undertaken by the user independent of such requirements. Records shall include the date, exact place, 

method, and time of sampling, and the name of the person(s) taking the samples; the dates analyses were 

performed; who performed the analyses; the analytical technique or methods used; and the results of such 

analyses. These records shall remain available for a period of at least three (3) years. This period shall be 

automatically extended for the duration of any litigation concerning the user or the City of Henderson, or 

where the user has been specifically notified of a longer retention period by the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-78. - Confidential information.  

Information and data on a user obtained from reports, questionnaires, permit applications, permits 

and monitoring programs and from inspections shall be available to the public or other governmental 

agency without restriction unless the user specifically requests and is able to demonstrate to the satisfaction 

of the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director that the release of such information would divulge 

information, processes or methods of production entitled to protection as trade secrets of the user. Any such 

request must be asserted at the time of submission of the information or data.  

When requested by the person furnishing a report, the portions of a report which might disclose 

trade secrets or secret processes shall not be made available for inspection by the public, but shall be made 

available upon written request to governmental agencies for uses related to this article, the national 

pollutant discharge elimination system (NPDES) permit, nondischarge permit and/or the pretreatment 

programs; provided, however, that such portions of a report shall be available for use by the state or any 

state agency in judicial review or enforcement proceedings involving the person furnishing the report. 

Wastewater constituents and characteristics will not be recognized as confidential information.  

All records relating to compliance with pretreatment standards shall be made available to officials 

of the approval authority and EPA upon request.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-78.1. - Monitoring facilities.  

(a)  The City of Henderson requires the user to provide and operate at the user's own expense, 

monitoring facilities to allow inspection, sampling, and flow measurement of the building 

sewer and/or internal drainage systems. The monitoring facility should normally be situated 

on the user's premises, but the City of Henderson may, when such a location would be 

impractical or cause undue hardship on the user, allow the facility to be constructed in the 

public street or sidewalk area and located so that it will not be obstructed by landscaping or 

parked vehicles.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 46 of 54 

 

There shall be ample room in or near such sampling manhole or facility to allow accurate 

sampling and preparation of samples for analysis. The facility, sampling, and measuring equipment shall be 

maintained at all times in a safe and proper operating condition at the expense of the user.  

Whether constructed on public or private property, the sampling and monitoring facilities shall be 

provided in accordance with the City of Henderson's requirements and all applicable local construction 

standards and specifications. Construction shall be completed within ninety (90) days following written 

notification by the City of Henderson.  

(b)  Inspection and sampling. The City of Henderson will inspect the facilities of any user to 

ascertain whether the purpose of this article is being met and all requirements are being 

complied with. Persons or occupants of premises where wastewater is created or discharged 

shall allow the City of Henderson, approval authority and EPA or their representatives ready 

access at all reasonable times to all parts of the premises for the purposes of inspection, 

sampling, examination and copying records or in the performance of any of their duties. The 

City of Henderson, approval authority and EPA shall have the right to set up on the user's 

property such devices as are necessary to conduct sampling, inspection, compliance 

monitoring and/or metering operations. Where a user has security measures in force which 

would require proper identification and clearance before entry into their premises, the user 

shall make necessary arrangements with their security guards so that upon presentation of 

suitable identification, personnel from the City of Henderson, approval authority and EPA 

will be permitted to enter, without delay, for the purposes of performing their specific 

responsibilities. Denial of the city, approval authority's, or EPA's access to the users premises 

shall be a violation of this article and shall be illegal. Unreasonable delays may constitute 

denial of access.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-78.2. - Search warrants.  

If the city, approval authority, or EPA has been refused access to a building, structure, or property, 

or any part thereof, and is able to demonstrate probable cause to believe that there may be a violation of this 

article, or that there is a need to inspect and/or sample as part of a routine inspection and sampling program 

of the City of Henderson designed to verify compliance with this article or any permit or order issued 

hereunder, or to protect the overall public health, safety and welfare of the community, then the city, 

approval authority, or EPA may seek issuance of a search warrant from the appropriate authorities.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  
 

 

FOOTNOTE(S): 
 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 47 of 54 

 

(*) Editor's note— An ordinace passed Sep. 8, 2008, repealed ch. 15, div. 6, §§ 15-74, 15-75.1—15-75.7, 15-76, 15-

76.1, 15-76.2, 15-77, 15-78, 15-78.1, 15-78.2, in its entirety and enacted new provisions to read as herein set out. 

Prior to amendment, div. 6 pertained to similar subject matter and derived from ordinances adopted May 3, 1994. 

(Back) 

DIVSION 7. ENFORCEMENT.* 

Sec. 15-79. - Administrative remedies.  

(a)  Notification of violation. Whenever the pretreatment coordinator finds that any industrial user 

has violated or is violating this chapter, wastewater permit, or any prohibition, limitation or 

requirements contained therein or any other pretreatment requirement, the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director may serve upon such a person a written notice stating the nature of the 

violation. Within thirty (30) days from the date of this notice, an explanation for the violation and 

a plan for the satisfactory correction thereof shall be submitted to the City of Henderson by the 

user. Submission of this plan does not relieve the discharger of liability for any violations 

occurring before or after receipt of the notice of violation.  

(b)  Consent orders. The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director is hereby empowered to enter 

into consent orders, assurances of voluntary compliance, or other similar documents establishing 

an agreement with the person responsible for the noncompliance. Such orders will include specific 

action to be taken by the discharger to correct the noncompliance within a time period also 

specified by the order. Consent orders shall have the same force and effect as an administrative 

order issued pursuant to subsection (d), below.  

(c)  Show cause hearing. The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may order any industrial 

user who causes or is responsible for an unauthorized discharge, has violated this chapter or is in 

noncompliance with a wastewater discharge permit to show cause why a proposed enforcement 

action should not be taken. In the event the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director determines that 

a show cause order should be issued, a notice shall be served on the user specifying the time and 

place for the hearing, the proposed enforcement action, the reasons for such action, and a request 

that the user show cause why this proposed enforcement action should not be taken. The notice of 

the hearing shall be served personally or by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested) 

at least ten (10) days before the hearing. Service may be made on any agent or officer of a 

corporation. The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director shall review the evidence presented at the 

hearing and determine whether the proposed enforcement action is appropriate. A showcause 

hearing under this section is not a prerequisite to the assessment of a civil penalty under section 

15-80 nor is any action or inaction taken by the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director under this 

section subject to an administrative appeal under section 15-73(b)(8).  

(d)  Administrative orders. When the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director finds that an 

industrial user has violated or continues to violate this chapter, permit or orders issued hereunder, 

or any other pretreatment requirement the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may issue an 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 48 of 54 

 

order to cease and desist all such violations and direct those persons in noncompliance to do any 

one (1) or more of the following:  

(1)  Immediately comply with all requirements; 

(2)  Comply in accordance with a compliance time schedule set forth in the order; 

(3)  Take appropriate remedial or preventive action in the event of a continuing or 

threatened violation; 

(4)  Disconnect unless adequate treatment facilities, devices, or other related 

appurtenances are installed and properly operated within a specified time period.  

(e)  Emergency suspensions. The WRF director may suspend the wastewater treatment service 

and/or wastewater permit when such suspension is necessary in order to stop an actual or 

threatened discharge which presents or may present an imminent or substantial endangerment to 

the health or welfare of persons or the environment, interferes with the WRF or cause the WRF to 

violate any condition of its NPDES or nondischarge permit.  

Any user notified of a suspension of the wastewater treatment service and/or the wastewater 

permit shall immediately stop or eliminate the contribution. A hearing will be held within fifteen (15) days 

of the notice of suspension to determine whether the suspension may be lifted or the user's waste discharge 

permit terminated. In the event of a failure to comply voluntarily with the suspension order, the WRF 

director shall take such steps as deemed necessary including immediate severance of the sewer connection, 

to prevent or minimize damage to the WRF system or endangerment to any individuals. The WRF director 

shall reinstate the wastewater permit and the wastewater treatment service upon proof of the elimination of 

the noncompliant discharge. The industrial user shall submit a detailed written statement describing the 

cause of the harmful contribution and the measures taken to prevent any future occurrence to the 

pretreatment coordinator/WRF director prior to the date of the above-described hearing.  

(f)  Termination of permit or permission to discharge. The WRF director may revoke a wastewater 

discharge permit or permission to discharge for good cause, including, but not limited to, the 

following reasons:  

(1)  Failure to accurately report the wastewater constituents and characteristics of his 

discharge; 

(2)  Failure to report significant changes in operations, or wastewater constituents and 

characteristics; 

(3)  Refusal of reasonable access to the user's premises for the purpose of inspection or 

monitoring; or 

(4)  Violation of conditions of the permit or permission to discharge, conditions of this 

article, or any applicable state and federal regulations.  

Noncompliant industrial users will be notified of the proposed termination of their wastewater 

permit and will be offered an opportunity to show cause under section 15-79, of this article why the 

proposed action should not be taken.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 49 of 54 

 

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-80. - Civil penalties.  

(a)  Any user who is found to have failed to comply with any provision of this article, or the 

orders, rules, regulations and permits issued hereunder, may be fined up to twenty-five thousand 

dollars ($25,000.00) per day per violation.  

a.  Penalties between ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) and twenty-five thousand dollars 

($25,000.00) per day per violation may be assessed against a violator only if:  

i.  For any class of violation, only if a civil penalty has been imposed against the 

violator with in the five (5) years preceding the violation, or  

ii.  In the case of failure to file, submit, or make available, as the case may be, 

any documents, data, or reports required by this article, or the orders, rules, 

regulations and permits issued hereunder, only if the WRF director determines 

that the violation was intentional and a civil penalty has been imposed against 

the violator within the five (5) years preceding the violation.  

(b)  In determining the amount of civil penalty, the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director shall 

consider the following: 

(1)  The degree and extent of the harm to the natural resources, to the public health, or to 

the public or private property resulting from the violation;  

(2)  The duration and gravity of the violation; 

(3)  The effect on ground or surface water quantity or quality or on air quality; 

(4)  The cost of rectifying the damage; 

(5)  The amount of money saved by noncompliance; 

(6)  Whether the violation was committed willfully or intentionally; 

(7)  The prior record of the violator in complying or failing to comply with the 

pretreatment program; 

(8)  The cost of enforcement to the City of Henderson. 

(c)  Appeals of civil penalties assessed in accordance with this section shall be as provided in 

section 15-73(b)(8).  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-80.1. - Other available remedies.  

Remedies, in addition to those previously mentioned in this chapter, are available to the 

pretreatment coordinator/WRT director who may use any single one or combination against a 

noncompliance user. Additional available remedies include, but are not limited to:  

(a)  Criminal violations. The district attorney for the 9th judicial district may, at the 

request of the City of Henderson, prosecute noncompliance users who violate the 

provisions of G.S. 143-215.6B or any other statute with criminal penalties.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 50 of 54 

 

(b)  Injunctive relief. Whenever a user is in violation of the provisions of this chapter or 

an order or permit issued hereunder, the city manager, through the city attorney, may 

petition the superior court of justice for the issuance of a restraining order or a 

preliminary and permanent injunction which restrains or compels the activities in 

questions.  

(c)  Water supply severance. Whenever an industrial user is in violation of the provisions 

of this chapter or an order or permit issued hereunder, water service to the user may be 

severed and service will only recommence, at the user's expense, after it has satisfactorily 

demonstrated ability to comply.  

(d)  Public nuisances. Any violation of the prohibitions or effluent limitations of this 

article or of a permit or order issued hereunder, is hereby declared to be and constitute a 

public nuisance and shall be corrected or abated as directed by the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director. Any person(s) creating a public nuisance shall be subject to 

the provisions of the City Code or other laws governing such nuisances, including 

reimbursing the WRF of any costs incurred in removing, abating, or remedying said 

nuisance.  

Remedies nonexclusive. The remedies provided for in this section are not exclusive. The 

pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may take any, all, or any combination of these actions against a 

noncompliant user. Enforcement of pretreatment violations will generally be in accordance with any 

enforcement response plan However, the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may take any lawful 

action against any user when the circumstances warrant. Further the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director 

is empowered to take more than one (1) enforcement action against any noncompliant user.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-80.2. - Annual publication of significant noncompliance.  

At least annually, the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director shall publish in the largest daily 

newspaper circulated in the service area, a list of those industrial users which were found to be in 

significant noncompliance, also referred to as reportable noncompliance in 15A NCAC 2H .0903(b)(10), 

with applicable pretreatment standards and requirements during the previous twelve (12) months.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-81. - Affirmative defenses to discharge violations; upset.  

(a)  An upset shall constitute an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with 

categorical pretreatment standards if the requirements of paragraph (b), below, are met.  

(b)  A user who wishes to establish the affirmative defense of upset shall demonstrate, through 

properly signed, contemporaneous operating logs, or other relevant evidence that:  

(1)  An upset occurred and the user can identify the cause(s) of the upset; and 

(2)  The facility was at the time being operated in a prudent and workman-like manner 

and in compliance with applicable operation and maintenance procedures; and  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 51 of 54 

 

(3)  The user has submitted the following information to the pretreatment 

coordinator/WRF director within twenty-four (24) hours of becoming aware of the upset:  

a.  A description of the indirect discharge and cause of noncompliance; and 

b.  The period of noncompliance, including exact dates and times, or, if not 

corrected, the anticipated time the noncompliance is expected to continue; and  

c.  Steps being taken and/or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrence 

of the noncompliance. 

(c)  In any enforcement proceeding, the user seeking to establish the occurrence of an upset shall 

have the burden of proof. 

(d)  Users will have the opportunity for a judicial determination on any claim of upset only in an 

enforcement action brought for noncompliance with categorical pretreatment standards.  

(e)  Users shall contain production of all discharges to the extent necessary to maintain compliance 

with categorical pretreatment standards upon reduction, loss, or failure of its treatment facility 

until the facility is, restored or an alternative method of treatment is provided. This requirement 

applies in the situation where, among other things, the primary source of power of the treatment 

facility is reduced, lost, or fails.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-81.1. - Prohibited discharge standards defense.  

A user shall have an affirmative defense to an enforcement action brought against it for 

noncompliance with the general prohibitions in section 15-64(a) of this article or the specific prohibitions 

in section 15-64(b)(2), (3) and (5)—(7) of this article if it can prove that it did not know, or have reason to 

know, that its discharge, alone or in conjunction with discharges from other sources, would cause pass-

through or interference and that either:  

(a)  A local limit exists for each pollutant discharged and the user was in compliance with 

each limit directly prior to, and during, the pass-through or interference; or  

(b)  No local limit exists, but the discharge did not change substantially in nature or 

constituents from the user's prior discharge when the city was regularly in compliance 

with its NPDES permit, and in the case of interference, was in compliance with 

applicable sludge use or disposal requirements.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

 

 

 

Sec. 15-82. - Bypass.  

(a)  A user may allow any bypass to occur which does not cause pretreatment standards or 

requirements to be violated, but only if it also is for essential maintenance to assure efficient 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 52 of 54 

 

operation. These bypasses are not subject to the provision of paragraphs (b) and (c), of this 

section.  

(b)   (1)   If a user knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall submit prior                                                  

notice to the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director, at least twenty (20) days before the 

date of the bypass, if possible.   

(2)  A user shall submit oral notice to the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director of an 

unanticipated bypass that exceeds applicable pretreatment standards within twenty-four 

(24) hours from the time it becomes aware of the bypass. A written submission shall also 

be provided within five (5) days of the time the user becomes aware of the bypass. The 

written submission shall contain a description of the bypass and its cause, the duration of 

the bypass, including exact dates and times, and, if the bypass has not been corrected, the 

anticipated time it is expected to continue; and steps taken or planned to reduce, 

eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the bypass. The pretreatment coordinator/WRF 

director may waive the written report on a case-by-case basis if the oral report has been 

received within twenty-four (24) hours and if he is otherwise satisfied a written report or 

record is not needed (by the city or any other government entity).  

(c)         (1)  Bypass is prohibited, and the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may take an 

enforcement action against a user for a bypass, unless:  

a.  Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe 

property damage; 

b.  There were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary 

treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal 

period of equipment downtime. This condition is not satisfied if adequate back-

up equipment should have been installed in the exercise of reasonable 

engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal periods 

of equipment downtime or preventive maintenance; and  

c.  The user submitted notices as required under paragraph (b), of this section. 

(2)  The pretreatment coordinator/WRF director may approve an anticipated bypass, after 

considering its adverse effects, if the pretreatment coordinator/WRF director determines 

that it will meet the three (3) conditions listed in paragraph (c)(1), of this section.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-82a. - Severability.  

If any provision, paragraph, word, section or article of this article is invalidated by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions, paragraphs, words, sections, and chapters shall not be 

affected and shall continue in full force and effect.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  

Sec. 15-82b. - Conflict.  



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 53 of 54 

 

All other ordinances and parts of other ordinances inconsistent or conflicting with any part of this 

article are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict.  

(Ord. of 9-8-08)  
 

 

FOOTNOTE(S): 
 

(*) Editor's note— An ordinance passed Sep. 8, 2008, repealed ch. 15, div. 7, §§ 15-79, 15-80, 15-80.1, 15-80.2, 15-

81, 15-81.1, 15-82, in its entirety and enacted new provisions to read as herein set out. Prior to amendment, div. 7 

pertained to similar subject matter and derived from ordinances adopted May 3, 1994 and Mar. 26, 2001, § 2 

(Back).” 



CAF 13-23: 13 May 13 Council Meeting :  22 April 2013 Work Session 
Page 54 of 54 

 

Section 2.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-14______, upon motion of Council member ____________ 
and seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll 
call vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the 
____ day of _______________, 2013:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 4**, p. **. 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-14, An 
Ordinance Updating the Sewer Use Ordinance, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in 
Regular Session on **  ** 20** (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
                        



CAF 13-37: 22 April 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
15 March 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-37  

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-29, Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside Watering 
of Lawns, Plants and Vegetation from June 1, 2013 through October 31, 2013. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approve Resolution 13-29, Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside Watering of Grass, Plants and 

Vegetation from June 1, 2013 through October 31, 2013. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
For the past several years the City Council has authorized the issuance of sewer credits due to 
outside watering of grass, plants, and vegetation.   
 
The City Council has offered this credit in an effort to reduce the cost to the customer for such 
watering.  If this policy is adopted, the City Council does have the discretion to discontinue it 
prior to October if it is not in the City’s best interest due to drought and/or implementation of 
water conservation measures. 
 
 
Enclosures  
 

1. Resolution 13-29 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 May 13 Regular Meeting 
 



CAF 13-37: 22 April 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
13-29 

 
A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUING OF A SEWER CREDIT FOR 

OUTSIDE WATERING OF GRASS, PLANTS AND VEGETATION 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has provided for a sewer credit to its customers for the 

period of June, July and August provided certain conditions are met via adopting a 
“Sewer Credit Due to Outside Watering of Grass, Plants and Vegetation” on 9 June 2008; 
the details of the policy are more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, 
and 

 
WHEREAS, in the past this credit has been extended to include the months of September and 

October, and 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE the Amended Policy for Sewer Credit Due to Outside 
Watering of Grass, Plants and Vegetation Policy to include the months of June, July, 
August, September and October. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-29, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
APPROVED on this the ** day of *** 2013:  YES: .  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: 
 
 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. ** 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-37: 22 April 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

          Resolution 13-29 
          Attachment A 
 

Sewer Credit Due to Outside Watering of  
Grass, Plants and Vegetation Policy 

 
Qualifications 
 

1.  A customer of whose monthly water and sewer consumption in question is equal to or 
greater than 1.5 times the average water and sewer consumption of the preceding twelve months 
may request an adjustment.  Where a customer has not been on the City’s system for a full 
twelve months, the average shall be computed using the total number of months on the system; 
but, in no case shall a customer who has not been on the system for at least six months be 
eligible for an adjustment. 

 
2.  The general time frame for these credits can be for the June billing until the October 

billing for that residence; however the City Council shall set the time frame each year prior to 
this period and can be for less than or more than the stated June – October period if 
circumstances due to water restrictions or any other unforeseen emergency situations that are 
occurring during these months and/or is not to the City’s best interest to allow these adjustments.  
The City Council also has the discretion to discontinue these “watering credits for sewer” at any 
time. 

 
3.  After City Council approval, the Finance Director or designee shall be authorized to 

adjust the customer’s monthly sewer bill as follows: 
 

a. The customer’s average monthly water and sewer consumption for the preceding 
twelve months shall be established and 1.5 times that average should be used to 
determine the average monthly cost of service using current sewer rates. 

b. This average monthly cost of sewer shall then be subtracted from the monthly 
sewer charge in question. 

c. The Director of Finance (or her designee) shall be authorized to reduce the 
customer’s monthly sewer charge in question by a maximum of seventy-five (75) 
percent for the difference between the twelve (12) months average sewer charge 
and the monthly sewer charge in question. 

d. The customer must request this adjustment in writing and affirm he/she has been 
irrigating grass, plants and vegetation from the collections office after receiving 
the bill in question but in no case shall be issued a credit for more than the 
previous two months after failing to request the adjustment in the first month.  
Failure to request this adjustment after the two months period shall result in no 
adjustment. 

e. This policy shall not apply for individuals that use water to fill swimming pools. 
f. This policy shall be effective for the June – October 2013 period.  

 
 
 



CAF 13-42: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
4 May 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 13-42 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-21 FY 13 Budget Amendment # 32, 
Amending and/or Closing Out the Following Grants : Fund 55-201: Fire FM Global 
Grant; Fund 55-203: BJA Bulletproof Vests Grant; and Fund 55-302: Orange 
Breckenridge Redevelopment Grant 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Ordinance 13-21 FY 13 Budget Amendment # 32, Amending and/or Closing 

Out the Following Grants : Fund 55-201: Fire FM Global Grant; Fund 55-203: BJA 
Bulletproof Vests Grant; and Fund 55-302: Orange Breckenridge Redevelopment Grant 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
Capital Improvement Project and/or Grant Project funds for active capital projects and grant 
projects are open for the life of the grant or project.  Once the project or grant has been 
completed, it is necessary to “close out” these funds.  Ordinance 13-21 officially closes out the 
following Grant project: 

Fund 55-201: Fire FM Global Grant; The Fire Department received notification in 
June 2012 that this grant was being awarded to be used towards the purchase of a digital 
camera with accessories, hydrocarbon detector and a battery powered tool set to be used 
for Fire Department operations.  The grant funds were received in July 2012. 

Fund 55-203: BJA Bulletproof Vests Grant; The Resolution to accept this grant was 
approved by Council at its meeting on November 5, 2012.  This grant was awarded to 
assist the Police Department with the purchase of new law enforcement ballistic vests. 
The grant budget was initially established by BA #18 which was also approved by 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 May 13 Regular Meeting 



CAF 13-42: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 6 

 

Council at that same meeting. The grant budget is being amended to reflect funds 
received from the NCLM to offset the City’s match for this grant. 

Fund 55-302:  Orange Breckenridge Redevelopment Grant; The City received a grant 
for the acquisition and demolition of properties in the Orange-Breckenridge 
Redevelopment Area in 2007-08.  The funding was a grant from the NC General 
Assembly and was administered by the Kerr-Tar Regional Council of Governments.  
Very few funds were remaining in the grant the Mr. Banes wished to have the funds 
transferred to the City for demolition of one last property – located at 647 Ransom Street.  
The Redevelopment Commission concurred with this adjustment.  All funds have been 
allocated and paid out to the contractors, and per Code Compliance Director Corey 
Williams, the demolition and cleanup within the project area is complete and the grant 
can be closed. 

 
Enclosure: 
 

Ordinance 13-21  



CAF 13-42: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 6 

 

O R D I N A N C E   13-21  
FY 2012-2013 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 32 

CLOSING OUT and/or AMENDING THE FOLLOWING  
GRANT PROJECTS: 

 55: GRANTS FUND PROJECTS 
55-201: FIRE FM GLOBAL GRANT 

55-203: BJA BULLETPROOF VESTS GRANT 
55-302: ORANGE BRECKENRIDGE REDEVELOPMENT GRANT 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council (Council) of the City of Henderson on 14 June 2012 adopted the 

FY12-13 Annual Operating Budget; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NC General Statues, the Council has created and uses Capital 
Improvements Projects and Grant Projects funds for active capital projects and grant 
project funds; and 

WHEREAS, the capital project and grant project funds are open for the life of the project and/or 
grant, they are nevertheless managed on a day-to-day basis and through the annual fiscal 
year cycle; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements and grant project budgets from time-to-time. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 
the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

Part 1: 55-201 Fire FM Global 
Grant

FUND:
PROJECT: 55-201 Fire FM Global Grant

Initial Budget Current
9-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Fire FM Global Grant 55-201-507-400 2,200$          2,200$           (2,200)$           -$                           
-$                           

Total 2,200$          2,200$           (2,200)$           -$                           
-$                           

Initial Budget Current
9-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

55-201-507-400 2,200 2,200$           (2,200)$           -$                           
-$                           

Total 2,200$          2,200$           (2,200)$           -$                           
-$                           

Variance -$               

Grant was established via Ord 12-47 and Resoluton 12-A-19 on 9 Jul 12

CAF 13-42; Budget Ordinance 13-21; Budget Amendment 32; 
Council Meeting held on 13 May 2013 Grant closeout.  This amendment has the effect of tak ing the project 'off of the books."

Capital Outlay < $5,000

Reference: Notes:

55-201 Fire FM Global Grant Expenditures

Ordinance 13-21
55-Grants Fund FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #32

Part 1

55-201 Fire FM Global Grant Revenues

 



CAF 13-42: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 6 

 

Part 2: 55-203 BJA Bulletproof Vests Grant 
 

FUNDS:

PROJECT:

Initial Budget Current
5-Nov-12 Budget Amendment Revised

BJA Grant 55-203-458-218 4,199$          4,199$           -$                4,199$                        
55-203-461010 -$             4,199$           -$                4,199$                        

Total 4,199$          8,398$           -$                8,398$                        
8,398$                        

Initial Budget Current
5-Nov-12 Budget Amendment Revised

55-203-503-605 4,199 8,398$           -$                8,398$                        
-$                           

Total 4,199$          8,398$           -$                8,398$                        
8,398$                        

Variance -$               

Approved Current
1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

NCLM Bulletproof Vests Grant - Police 10-100-455072 -$             -$               2,500$            2,500$                        
 -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               2,500$            2,500$                        
2,500$                        

Approved Current
1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

10-512-509901 37,900 33,701$         2,500$            36,201$                      
Trans to: 55-203 Grants Fund 10-512-561055 -               4,199$           (2,500)$           1,699$                        

10-660-561055 -$             -$               2,500$            2,500$                        

Total 37,900$        37,900$         2,500$            40,400$                      
40,400$                      

Variance -$               

Ordinance 13-21
55: Grants Fund & 10: General Fund FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #32

Part 2

55-203 BJA Bullet Proof Vests 2012 Revenues

Grant was established via Ord 12-79 on 5 Nov 12; BA #18 
(See also CAF 12-67; CAF 12-A-67, Resolution 12-14 and 12-

A-14 Establish the project grant

Bullet Proof Vests

Trans Fr: 10 General Fund 

55-203 BJA Bullet Proof Vests 2012 Expenditures

Budget Ordinance:  13-16, budget amendment 27; Council 
Meeting held on 25 Mar 2013 Establish the grant match from Police Asset Forfeitures

CAF 13-42; Ordinance 13-21; BA #32

Revise the budget for the Bulletproof Vests Grant to incorporate a $2,500 grant from the NCLM.  This grant 
was to cover a portion of the City's grant match, thereby reducing the amount required for a grant match from 
Police Asset Forfeitures from $4,199 to $1,699.

Reference: Notes:

55-203 BJA Bullet Proof Vests 2012 

FUND 10: GENERAL FUND REVENUES

 

FUND 10: GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
Police Asset Forfeiture: Grant Match Funds

Trans to: 55-203 Grants Fund

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-42: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 
Part 3: 55-302 Orange Breckenridge Redevelopment Grant 
 

FUND:
PROJECT:

Initial Budget Current
9-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Kerr-Tar Regional COG 55-302-458152 6,900$          6,900$           -$                6,900$                        
-$                           

Total 6,900$          6,900$           -$                6,900$                        
6,900$                        

Initial Budget Current
9-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

55-302-504500 5,600 5,600$           196$               5,796$                        
55-302-504520 1,300$          1,300$           (196)$              1,104$                        

Total 6,900$          6,900$           -$                6,900$                        
6,900$                        

Variance -$               

Initial Budget Current
9-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Kerr-Tar Regional COG 55-302-458152 6,900$          6,900$           (6,900)$           -$                           
-$                           

Total 6,900$          6,900$           (6,900)$           -$                           
-$                           

Initial Budget Current
9-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

55-201-507-400 5,600 5,796$           (5,796)$           -$                           
1,300$          1,104$           (1,104)$           -$                           

Total 6,900$          6,900$           (6,900)$           -$                           
-$                           

Variance -$               

55-302 Orange Breckenridge Redevelopment Expenditures

Landfill Fees

This amendment serves to re-align accounts in accordance with expenditures and subsequently to close out 
this project.

Contracted Services

55-302 Orange Breckenridge Redevelopment Revenues

Grant w as established via CAF 12-85; Ord 12-47 and BA#1 
on 9 Jul 12

The City received a grant for the acquisition and demolition of properties in the Orange-
Breckenridge Redevelopment Area in 2007-8.  The funding was a grant from the NC General 
Assembly and is administered by the Kerr-Tar COG.  Very few funds were remaining in the 
grant and Mr. Banes wished to have the funds transferred to the City for demolition of one last 
property.  The Redevelopment Commission concurred with this adjustment.

55-302 Orange Breckenridge Redevelopment

CAF 13-42; Ordinance 13-21; BA #32 13 May 2013

Contracted Services
Landfill Fees

Reference: Notes:

55-302 Orange Breckenridge Redevelopment Expenditures

Ordinance 13-21
55-Grants Fund FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #32

Part 3

55-302 Orange Breckenridge Redevelopment Revenues

 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 13-21, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the ________day of __________ 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   
ABSENT:  **.                 ___________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk  

Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***;  

 
 



CAF 13-42: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 6 

 

____________ 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA CITY OF HENDERSON 

 

I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-21 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on __________ _____________ 2013 (Minute Book 
42 p.**). This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of __________2013. 

_________________________ 

Esther J. McCrackin 

City Clerk 

City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 



CAF 13-53: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
 

4 May 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-53   

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-26, FY13 Budget Amendment #31 Amending 
the General Fund and the Water Fund. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approve Ordinance 13-26, FY13 Budget Amendment #31, Amending the General Fund and 

the Water Fund. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
FY 13 Budget Amendment #31 serves to amend the General Fund and the Water Fund for the 
purpose of corrections to Budget Amendment #25 and Budget Amendment #7, respectively. An 
incorrect amount was inadvertently used for the General Fund transactions reflected in Budget 
Amendment #25 and an incorrect account number was inadvertently used for the Water Fund 
transactions in Budget Amendment #7.  
 
 
Enclosures  
 

1. Ordinance 13—26 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 May 13 Regular Meeting 
 



CAF 13-53: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

O R D I N A N C E  13-26 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2012 -- 2013 BUDGET 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #31 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 14 June 2012, adopted its 

FY 12-13 Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating budget from time-to-time, said amendment incorporated in this Ordinance; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

 Trans Fr: 63: COD Round 2 10-980-461063 -$             3,061$           3,859$            6,920$                        
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             3,061$           3,859$            6,920$                        
6,920$                        

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

 Reserve 10-660-900999 -$             18,466$         3,859$            22,325$                      
   -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             18,466$         3,859$            22,325$                      
22,325$                      

Variance -$               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

0  -$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$                           

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Trans to 43: CIP Water 30-660-561043 -$             39,000$         (39,000)$         -$                           
Reserve 30-660-900999 -$             -$               39,000$          39,000$                      

Total -$             39,000$         -$                39,000$                      
39,000$                      

Variance -$               

30: WATER FUND EXPENDITURES

10: General Fund and 30: Water FundFUNDS:

10: GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

Reference:

CAF# 13-53; Ordinance #13-26: BA# 31

FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #31

Notes:
General Fund: To correct Budget Amendment #25.  Incorrect amount used for General Fund transactions. 
Water Fund: To correct Budget Amendment #7. Incorrect account used for Water Fund transactions.

30:  WATER FUND REVENUES

Ordinance 13-26

10: GENERAL FUND REVENUES

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-53: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-26 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 13 day of May 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. *** 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-xx adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 13 May 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of May 2013. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-54: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
04 May 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-54   

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-18, FY13 Budget Amendment #33 
Amending Fund 510: Police Department and Fund 530: Fire Department of the 
General Fund. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approve Ordinance 13-18, FY13 Budget Amendment #33 Amending Fund 510: Police 

Department and Fund 530: Fire Department of the General Fund. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
FY13 Budget Amendment #33 serves to amend the General Fund for the purpose of 
appropriating the proceeds of insurance claims back to the departments from which the claims 
originated for the purposed of offsetting the costs of repairs.  
 
 
Enclosures  
 

1. Ordinance 13-18 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 May 13 Regular Meeting 
 



CAF 13-54: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

O R D I N A N C E  13-18 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2012 -- 2013 BUDGET 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #33 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 14 June 2012, adopted its 

FY 12-13 Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating budget from time-to-time, said amendment incorporated in this Ordinance; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Insurance Proceeds 10-100-456000 -$             -$             10,500$        10,500$      
-$             -$             -$             -$           
-$             -$             -$             -$           
-$             -$             -$             -$           

Total -$             -$             10,500$        10,500$      
10,500$      

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Fire M & R - Automotive 10-530-501700 30,000$        38,200$        3,500$          41,700$      
Police Wrecked Vehicle Rep 10-510-501701 -$             -$             7,000$          7,000$       

-$             -$             -$             -$           
-$             -$             -$             -$           
-$             -$             -$             -$           
-$             -$             -$             -$           
-$             -$             -$             -$           

Total 30,000$        38,200$        10,500$        48,700$      
48,700$      

variance -$             

CAF 13-54; Ordinance 13-18; BA #33 This amendment serves to amend the budgets for repairs and maintenance 
of wrecked vehicles in the Fire and Police Departments.  Insurance claims 
have been filed and the proceeds of those claims have been recorded as 
insurance proceeds in the General Fund.  This amendment serves to 
appropriate these funds back to these departments to offset the cost of the 
repairs.

Reference: Notes:

EXPENDITURES

REVENUES

Ordinance 13-18
FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #33Fund: 10: General

 
 
 



CAF 13-54: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-18 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 13 day of May 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. *** 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-18 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 13 May 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of May 2013. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-56: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

6 May 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 13-56 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-28, FY13 Budget Amendment #34, 
Authorizing an Additional Appropriation of $25,000 to the Departmental Budget 
for the City Attorney 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation:   

 
 Approval of Ordinance 13-28, FY13 Budget Amendment #34, Authorizing an Additional 

Appropriation of $25,000 to the Departmental Budget for the City Attorney. 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
Funds totaling $19,560 have been paid to the law firm of Tharrington Smith, LLP for legal 
services in connection with the Pitts, Von Williams case.  This budget amendment will 
appropriate an additional $25,000 to the professional services line item of the City Attorney’s 
departmental budget to cover these extra expenses.    
 
 
Enclosure: 
 

1. Ordinance 13-28 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 May 13 Reg.  Meeting 



CAF 13-56: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

O R D I N A N C E  13-28 
 

BUDGET AMENDMENT #34 TO THE FY 13 BUDGET, 
AUTHORIZING AN ADDITIONAL APPROPROPRIATION 
OF $25,000 TO THE DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET FOR THE 

CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 14 June 2012, adopted its 
FY 12-13 Operating Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating budget from time-to-time, said amendment incorporated in this Ordinance; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

  -$             -$               -$             -$             
-$             -$               -$             -$             

Total -$             -$               -$             -$             
-$             

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

City Attorney Professional Services 10-414-500400 31,000$        31,000$         25,000$        56,000$        
Hend-Vance DDC Grant Match Funds 10-496-509901 50,000$        28,638$         (25,000)$       3,638$          

Total 81,000$        59,638$         -$             59,638$        
59,638$        

variance -$             

CAF 13-56; Ordinance 13-28; BA #34; 
13-May-2013

This budget amendment serves to amend the Professional Services line item in 
the City Attorney's budget.  The current budget of $31,000 is being amended 
primarily as a result of the utilization of outside counsel.  The City has paid 
legal fees totaling $19,560 to Tharrington Smith, LLP in connection with the 
Pits, VonWilliams case.  Funds are being re-allocated from the $28,638 of 
Grant Match Funds remaining in the Henderson-Vance Downtown Development 
Commission budget to cover this budget shortfall.

Reference:

Ordinance 13-28
FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #34Fund: 10: General

Notes:

EXPENDITURES

REVENUES

 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-56: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-28 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 13 day of May 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 13-56 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-28 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 13 May 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of May 2013. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 



CAF 13-55: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

6 May 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 13-55 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-27, FY13 Budget Amendment #36, 
Closing out the Water Main Replacement/Relocation of The Red Bud Creek Bridge 
Project Fund 43-848: and Amending Capital Reserve Utilities Fund 70 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5:   Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems. 

 
Recommendation: 
 
  Approval of Ordinance 13-27, FY13 Budget Amendment #36, Closing out the Water Main 

Replacement/Relocation of The Red Bud Creek Bridge Project Fund 43-848: and Amending 
Capital Reserve Utilities Fund 70. 
  

Executive Summary 
 
The North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) contacted the City of Henderson staff 
relative to a bridge replacement project BD-5105C, WBS Elements: 45351.3.3 over Red Bud 
Creek on SR 1120 (Vance Academy Road) and water main replacement which was required as a 
result of the project.  An agreement was approved by Council via Resolution 11-71 on 8 August 
2011.  The work was performed in conjunction with the State and the City utilizing a private 
contractor, H. G. Reynolds Company, to perform the necessary relocation work associated with the 
existing water main.  As a result, the total project cost came in under the estimated cost for a total 
of $66,633, resulting in a savings of $53,368.   
 
This Ordinance returns the surplus funds to Capital Reserves Utilities and effectively closes out 
this project budget. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Ordinance 13-27 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 May 2013 Reg. Meeting 



CAF 13-55: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 

 

O R D I N A N C E   13-27  
FY 2012-2013 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 36 

AMENDING AND/OR CLOSING OUT CIP-WATER FUND PROJECT: 

 43-848: Red Bud Creek Water-line Replacement  

AND AMENDING 
 

Fund 70: Capital Reserve Utilities 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council (Council) of the City of Henderson on 14 June 2012 adopted the 
FY12-13 Annual Operating Budget; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NC General Statues, the Council has created and uses Capital 
Improvements Projects and Grant Projects funds for active capital projects and grant 
project funds; and 

WHEREAS, the capital project and grant project funds are open for the life of the project and/or 
grant, they are nevertheless managed on a day-to-day basis and through the annual fiscal 
year cycle; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements and grant project budgets from time-to-time. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that the 
following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon 
approval of the City Council: 



CAF 13-55: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 

 

FUNDS:
PROJECT: Red Bud Creek Water-line Replacement

Approved Current
8-Aug-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Transfer from Cap Reserve Utilities Fund 43-433-461071 120,000$      120,000$         -$                  120,000$           
 -$             -$                -$                  -$                  

Total 120,000$      120,000$         -$                  120,000$           
120,000$           

Approved Current
8-Aug-11 Budget Amendment Revised

43-848-510400 120,000$      120,000$         (53,367)$            66,633$            
43-848-561070 -$             -$                53,367$             53,367$            

 -$             -$                -$                  -$                  
 -$             -$                -$                  -$                  

Total 120,000$      120,000$         -$                  120,000$           
120,000$           

Variance -$                  

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Trans fr: 43 CIP Water 70-801-561043 -$             -$                53,367$             53,367$            
  -$             -$                -$                  -$                  

Total -$             -$                53,367$             53,367$            
53,367$            

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Reserve 70-801-509850 -$             -$                53,367$             53,367$            
  -$             -$                -$                  -$                  

Total -$             -$                53,367$             53,367$            
53,367$            

Variance -$                  

Approved Current
8-Aug-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Transfer from Cap Reserve Utilities Fund 43-433-461071 120,000$      120,000$         (120,000)$          -$                  
 -$             -$                -$                  -$                  

Total 120,000$      120,000$         (120,000)$          -$                  
-$                  

Approved Current
8-Aug-11 Budget Amendment Revised

43-848-510400 120,000$      66,633$          (66,633)$            -$                  
43-848-561070 -$             53,367$          (53,367)$            -$                  

 -$             -$                -$                  -$                  
 -$             -$                -$                  -$                  

Total 120,000$      120,000$         (120,000)$          -$                  
-$                  

Variance -$                  

Amended project budget and returned unspent funds to the Capital Reserve Utilities 
Fund; closed project in CIP Water Fund to remove it from the books

Construction  

 

8 Aug 11; Ord 11-48; BA #3

13 May 13: CAF 13-55; Ord 13-27; BA #36

Notes:

FUND 43: CIP WATER EXPENDITURES

 

Reference:
Established project budget

FUND 43: CIP WATER EXPENDITURES

Trans to: 70 Capital Reserve Utilities

 

 

Ordinance 13-27

 

FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #36

Part 1-A Adjustment

Project Budget Created on 8 Aug 11
FUND 43: CIP WATER REVENUES

 

 

43: CIP WATER and 70: CAPITAL 
RESERVE UTILITIES

 
FUND 43: CIP WATER REVENUES

70: CAPITAL RESERVE UTILITIES FUND REVENUES

70: CAPITAL RESERVE UTILITIES FUND EXPENDITURES

Part 1-B Closeout

 
Construction  
Trans to: 70 Capital Reserve Utilities

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-55: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
The foregoing Ordinance 13-27, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the ________day of __________ 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   
ABSENT:  **.             

___________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk  

Rference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***;  

 
 
 
 
____________ 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA; CITY OF HENDERSON 

 

I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-27 adopted by the Henderson, 
City Council in Regular Session on __________ _____________ 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). 
This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of __________2013. 

_________________________ 

Esther J. McCrackin 

City Clerk 

City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 



CAF 13-59:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
7 May 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-59   

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-29, FY13 Budget Amendment #37 Amending 
the General Fund – Recreation Department Budget 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 13-29, FY13 Budget Amendment #37 Amending the General Fund – 

Recreation Department Budget. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
FY 13 Budget Amendment #37 serves two purposes: 1) To correct the donations account from 
which one half of the repairs to the tennis courts at Fox Pond Park were budgeted in BA #5.  
$8,355 was budgeted to come from Recreation Donations but should have been budgeted to 
come from Rental Fees at Fox Pond Park.  2) To amend the General Fund for the purpose of 
increasing the Recreation Department’s budget for donations received from a fund raiser.  The 
Henderson Rec Players conducted a fund raising performance in order to raise additional funds 
to use towards their first summer performance (“The Sound of Music”).    This amendment will 
budget the proceeds of the fund raiser ($6,623) plus an additional $377 from general recreation 
donations, to cover certain expenses from the fund raiser, with the remaining amount to be used 
to help offset expenses of the upcoming summer production.  
 
Enclosures  
 

1. Ordinance 13-29 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 May 13 Regular Meeting 
 



CAF 13-59:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

O R D I N A N C E  13-29 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2012 - 2013 BUDGET 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #37 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 14 June 2012, adopted its 

FY 12-13 Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating budget from time-to-time, said amendment incorporated in this Ordinance; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Donations - Rec Dept 10-100-455040 -$             14,245$         (1,355)$         12,890$        
Rental Fee-Fox Pond 10-100-433300 1,200$          1,200$           8,355$          9,555$          

Total 1,200$          15,445$         7,000$          22,445$        
22,445$        

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Recreation Departmental Supplies 10-620-503300 60,000$        56,160$         7,000$          63,160$        
-$             -$               -$             -$             

Total 60,000$        56,160$         7,000$          63,160$        
63,160$        

variance -$             

Fund: 10: General

Notes:

EXPENDITURES

REVENUES

Ordinance 13-29
FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #37

CAF 13-59; Ordinance 13-29; BA #37 This budget amendment serves two purposes.  1) To correct the donations 
account from which one half of the repairs to the tennis courts at Fox Pond 
Park were budgeted in BA #5.  The repairs ($8,355) were budgeted to come 
from Recreation Donations - and they should have been budgeted to come from 
Rental Fees at Fox Pond Park.  2) To budget $7,000 from Recreation 
Donations to cover expenses associated with a fund raising performance held 
for the purpose of raising additional funds to use towards the first summer 
performance of "The Sound of Music" and to cover expenses associated with 
that upcoming production.  $6,623 in donations were received specifically for 
this and an additional $377 of donations is being budgeted to cover these 
anticipated expenses.

Reference:

 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-59:  13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-29 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 13 day of May 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. *** 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-29 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ** ____ 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of ____ 2013. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-38:  March 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

23 April 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF 13-45 

Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the 
Month of March 2013.  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of tax releases and refunds from Vance County for the month of March 2013. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Vance County Tax office submitted the following tax releases and refunds to the Finance 
Department for the month March 2013.  These releases and refunds are found to be in order and 
are being recommended for approval.  
 
The State Assessed releases are due to the fact that utility companies are taxed by the State, 
therefore the county cannot do so, as that would result in double taxation. 

 

March 2013 Tax Releases

Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2000 11.20$            

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2001 11.20$            

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2003 12.20$            

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2003 253.75$          

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2004 12.80$            

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2004 13.12$            

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2005 13.40$            

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2005 63.74$            

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2006 13.40$            

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2006 13.74$            

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2007 13.40$            

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2007 13.74$            

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252-430-5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 May 13 Regular Meeting 
 



CAF 13-38:  March 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 
  

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2008 20.34$            

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2008 20.85$            

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2009 21.06$            

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2009 21.59$            

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2010 21.06$            

Cordell, William F Correct Ownership 2010 231.48$          

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2010 21.59$            

Vision of Hope Intern Correct Ownership 2010 (231.48)$         

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2011 21.06$            

Cordell, William F Correct Ownership 2011 231.43$          

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2011 21.59$            

Vision of Hope Intern Correct Ownership 2011 (231.43)$         

Brame, Leah B. Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2012 21.06$            

Cordell, William F Correct Ownership 2012 231.43$          

Davis, Georgia S Heirs Taxes  Lost to Foreclosure 2012 21.59$            

Vision of Hope Intern Correct Ownership 2012 (231.43)$         

Total R&P Prop. Releases 657.48$          

Registered Vehicle Refunds

Brownson, Jacqueline R Pro‐Rate 2011 5.15$               

Hargrove, Linda Wade Pro‐Rate 2011 3.95$               

Clark, Elizabeth Leona Pro‐Rate 2012 2.60$               

Corbitt Hills  Construction Pro‐Rate 2012 61.59$            

Hamm, Johnny Hartwell Pro‐Rate 2012 9.05$               

Hensley, Phyllis  Ann Pro‐Rate 2012 1.96$               

Howes, Lebert Andre Pro‐Rate 2012 4.15$               

Hughes, Howard Arthur Pro‐Rate 2012 2.49$               

Johnson, Sabrina Antio Pro‐Rate 2012 4.16$               

Kelley, Tryone Pro‐Rate 2012 23.61$            

Rouse, Jamon Andre Pro‐Rate 2012 63.71$            

Thorpe, Julia Henderson Pro‐Rate 2012 1.56$               

Vaughan, Ernest Lee Pro‐Rate 2012 1.99$               

Watkins, Lloyd Quintin Correct Situs 2012 47.56$            

Wilkerson, Sandra Harris Pro‐Rate 2012 5.74$               

Total Refunds 239.27$          



CAF 13-38:  March 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds: 13 May 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Registered Vehicle

Releases

Moore, NE Dempsey Jr. Correct Situs 2011 15.32$            

Perry,James Otis Pro‐Rate 2011 1.80$               

Allen, Helen Thomas Pro‐Rate 2012 4.24$               

Allen, Lathisha Monique Pro‐Rate 2012 19.26$            

Alliance Rehabilitation Charitable All  O 2012 95.64$            

Carroll, Larry Darnell Pro‐Rate 2012 58.50$            

Carter, Brandon Jamail Pro‐Rate 2012 37.61$            

Catlett, Robert Stephen Pro‐Rate 2012 1.09$               

Cawthorne, Wallace Graham Pro‐Rate 2012 38.08$            

Clodfelter, Catherine Correct Value 2012 5.01$               

Dieng, Xernorna Yoland Pro‐Rate 2012 28.59$            

Ellis, Charles  Lawrence Correct Situs 2012 73.53$            

ETC of Henderson Correct Value 2012 43.73$            

Henderson, Charline Shunta Pro‐Rate 2012 9.13$               

Henderson, Orthopaedic Pro‐Rate 2012 11.95$            

Henderson, Willie Correct Situs 2012 164.09$          

Howard, Bettie Denise Transfer Out 2012 60.54$            

Kelly, Jazman Shua Pro‐Rate 2012 33.69$            

Kerr Area Transportation Auth. Charitable All  O 2012 6,900.52$       

Kodavanti  Viswahdham Pro‐Rate 2012 4.43$               

Leyes, Gladys Pro‐Rate 2012 11.17$            

McLaughlin, Amy Ball Pro‐Rate 2012 38.26$            

Melchoir, Jessica Kamill Pro‐Rate 2012 2.16$               

Perry,James Otis Pro‐Rate 2012 15.28$            

Ragland, Tiffany Nicole Pro‐Rate 2012 9.48$               

Washington, Sheila Lorraine Pro‐Rate 2012 50.69$            

Wilkins, Kevin Michael Military Non Resident 2012 144.61$          

Williams, Jacquelin Hawley Pro‐Rate 2012 9.76$               

Total Reg Veh Releases  7,888.16$       

Total Reg Veh Releases 

& Refunds 8,127.43$       

Total All Release & Refunds 8,784.91$       







 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

26 April 2013 
 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: Declaration of Surplus Property. 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Pursuant to Resolution 9-10, property identified in the attached memo dated 22 April 2013 from 
Henderson Police Chief Keith Sidwell is declared surplus and will be purchased and presented to 
Sergeant James Ragland for his years of dedicated service to the citizens of Henderson.  No 
action is required of Council; however, it is felt appropriate to advise Council of said declaration 
and to offer an opportunity for questions and/or objections to the proposed sale. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

City Council Memo 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 May 13 Reg. Meeting 



 2

 



  

                 

                Last Updated: 5/10/2013 10:56 AM 

Date Time Event Location 

May 9th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Park & 
Recreations Commission 

Aycock Recreation Center 

May 13th 5:00 PM Library Board of Trustees 
H. Leslie Perry Memorial Library Board 

Room 

May 13th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

May 14th 3:00 PM 
Henderson Community 

Appearance Commission 
City Council Chambers 

May 16th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

May 20th 6:00 p.m. 
Special Called Meeting – Budget 

Presentation 
City Council Chambers 

May 23rd 6:00 p.m. Budget Work Session #1 City Council Chambers 

May 28th 6:00 p.m. Budget Work Session #2 City Council Chambers 

May 27th 
City Hall 
Closed 

City Council Meeting Cancelled 
due to Holiday 

  Memorial        
     Day                   

May 30th 6:00 p.m. Budget Work Session #3 City Council Chambers 

May 31st 10:00 AM 
Henderson-Vance E911 
Advisory Board Meeting 

E 911 Operations Center 

June 3rd 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

June 3rd 6:00 PM Budget Work Session #4 City Council Chambers 

June 4th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of 
Adjustment 

City Council Chambers 

June 4th 6:00 PM Budget Work Session #5 City Council Chambers 

June 10th 9:30 AM KLRW Advisory Board Meeting City Hall Large Conference Room 

June 10th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting/ 
Budget Hearing 

City Council Chambers 

June 11th 3:00 PM 
Henderson Community 

Appearance Commission 
City Council Chambers 

June 11th 6:00 PM 
Budget Work Session # 7 

If Needed 
City Council Chambers 

June 13th 12:00 PM Henderson-Vance Park & 
Recreations Commission 

Aycock Recreation Center 

June 13th 6:00 PM 
Budget Work Session #8 

If Needed 
City Council Chambers 

June 17th 6:00 PM 
Budget Work Session #9  

If Needed 
City Council Chambers 

June 18th 6:00 PM Budget Work Session #10 
If Needed 

City Council Chambers 

June 20th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Meetings and Events Calendar 
































	#13 RM 13 May  2013
	CAF 13-50 Resolution 2013 BJA Bulletproof Vest Application
	CAF 13-52  Kerr Tar Additional Assessment R 13-25 FY 13 BA #30
	CAF 13-51 Dedication and Acceptance of r Vance Granville CC Waterline R 13-38
	CAF 13-48  water meter purchase project R 13-34
	CAF 13-49 Approving contract with  McGill Assoc for Elmwood Sewer Project. R 13-35, O 13-23 BA# 31
	CAF 13-58 approving Vance County wate line extending into Warren County
	CAF 13-57 Authorizing Embassy Cultural Center Agreement R 13-39
	CAF 13-46 Amending the Contract with Cordell's Lawn Care & Perks Lawn Service R 13-32
	CAF 13-60 Approving FY 13 Audit Contract R 13-41
	CAF 13-23 Approval of revised sewer  ord. chapter 15 O 13-14
	CAF 13-37  Outside watering sewer credit R 13-29
	CAF 13-42 Amending or Closing Various Grant Projects-Fund 55 (2)
	CAF 13-53 Budget Amendment #31
	CAF 13-54 Insurance Proceeds O 13-18 FY 13 BA# 33
	CAF 13-56  City Attorney Budget Appropriation FY13 BA # 34 O 13-28
	CAF 13-55 Amending CIP Water of $53,368 O 13-27 FY13 BA#
	CAF 13-59 Amending Recreation Fund FY 13 BA# 37- O 13-29
	CAF 13-45  Tax rel-ref March  2013
	CM Declaring Service Weapon Surplus Property 13 May 13 Council meeting
	Meetings and Event Calendar
	#4 April 2013 HFD Report
	#3 Mar 21 Thru Apr 20 2013 Report



